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COMMON STOCK 

 
$2.00 per Share Maximum Offering: $20,000,000 

No Minimum Offering 
 

Minimum Subscription: $100,000 (50,000 Shares) 
 
PixarBio Corporation (“we”, “our”, “us”, “PixarBio”, or the “Company”) is a specialty biotechnology company 
focused on pre-clinical and commercial development of novel neurological drug delivery systems for post-
operative pain. As we develop our delivery system we also expect to continue research and development for 
injectable drug/cell delivery systems for spinal cord injury, epilepsy, and Parkinson’s disease. Based on pre-
clinical data, we believe that we will reduce the need for morphine in many clinical settings and patients will 
have effective pain treatment without risks of addiction and without the loss of motor function. Our lead product 
platform, NeuroRelease™, has achieved sustained therapeutic release of non-opiate drugs for post-operative, 
acute and chronic pain in pre-clinical models. Initial clinical studies in 2017-2018 will be for Nerve Blocks to 
provide pain treatment to large nerve and small nerve in the body.  The two clinical studies will provide FDA 
approval marketing for NeuroRelease to treatment pain with a nerve block anywhere along never fibers in the 
body.  Typical surgical applications include total knee implants, total hip implants, spine surgery, and sciatica. 
Over the next 5 years, we expect to create a new clinical franchise in medicine around our microparticle and 
nanoparticle based pain portfolio pipeline extending into dental, trauma, and neuropathic pain. There can be 
no assurance these objectives can be achieved (See “Description of Business” and “Risk Factors”). 
 
This document is our confidential private placement memorandum (this “Memorandum”).  This is not a public 
offering. The securities described in this Memorandum are available only to “accredited” investors in 
accordance with Sections 4(a)(2), 4(a)(5) and/or Regulation D Rule 506(b) of the Securities Act of 1933, as 
amended, and applicable state law (the “Offering”). 
 
This investment involves a high degree of risk further described in the “Risk Factors” section of this 
Memorandum. Subscription of these securities should be considered only if you can afford a possible 
total loss of your investment. Neither the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC” or 
“Commission”) nor any state securities commission has approved or disapproved of this Offering or 
determined if this Memorandum is truthful or complete. Any representation to the contrary is a 
criminal offense. 
 

FOR MORE INFORMATION, PLEASE CONTACT: 

 
 

PixarBio Corporation 
 200 Boston Avenue, Suite 1875   

Medford, Massachusetts 02155 USA  
Telephone: (617) 803-8838 
E-mail: info@pixarbio.com 

 
The effective date of this Memorandum is August 21, 2016 

 
This cover page is continued on the following pages.  
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 Price to Investors Selling Commissions 
and Discounts (1)(3) 

Proceeds to Company or 
Other Persons (2)(3) 

Price per Share (1) $2.00 $0.20 $18,000,000 
Minimum Subscription 
(4) 

$100,000 $10,000 $90,000 

Seven Year Warrant $4.50 N/A 45,000,0000 
Oversubscription limit $30,000,000 $3,000,000 $27,000,000 

 
FOOTNOTES: 
(1) Our Shares of Common Stock will be offered by PixarBio Corporation.   
(2) Sales commissions and/or finder fees may be paid by the Company to broker-dealers who are members 

of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (“FINRA”), licensed issuer-agents, or others where 
permitted by law of up to ten percent (10%). Such persons may be Affiliates of the Company’s 
management. 

(3) Before deducting expenses related to the offering including legal, accounting, marketing, overhead, 
administration, etc. (See “Use of Proceeds”). 

(4) May be paid to affiliates of the Company. 
(5) Minimum subscription is 50,000 Shares of Common Stock. We may waive such minimum in our sole 

discretion. 
(6) No minimum number of Common Shares need to be sold in order for us to utilize the proceeds of this 

offering. Your invested funds will not be escrowed and will become available to the Company for 
immediate use. 

 
THE SEC DOES NOT PASS UPON THE MERITS OF OR GIVE ITS APPROVAL TO ANY SECURITIES 
OFFERED OR THE TERMS OF THE OFFERING, NOR DOES IT PASS UPON THE ACCURACY OR 
COMPLETENESS OF ANY OFFERING MEMORANDUM OR OFFERING CIRCULAR OR OTHER SELLING 
LITERATURE. THESE SECURITIES ARE OFFERED PURSUANT TO AN EXEMPTION FROM 
REGISTRATION WITH THE SEC; HOWEVER, THE SEC HAS NOT MADE AN INDEPENDENT 
DETERMINATION THAT THE SECURITIES OFFERED HEREUNDER ARE EXEMPT FROM 
REGISTRATION. 
 
THE SECURITIES OFFERED HEREBY HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT 
OF 1933, AS AMENDED, AND ARE SUBJECT TO RESTRICTIONS ON TRANSFERABILITY AND RESALE 
AND MAY NOT BE TRANSFERRED OR RESOLD EXCEPT AS PERMITTED UNDER THE SECURITIES 
ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, AND APPLICABLE STATE OR OTHER SECURITIES LAWS, PURSUANT 
TO REGISTRATION OR EXEMPTION THEREFROM. 
 
IN MAKING A DECISION YOU MUST RELY ON YOUR OWN EXAMINATION OF THE ISSUER (THE 
COMPANY) AND THE TERMS OF THE OFFERING, INCUDING THE MERITS AND RISKS INVOLVED. 
YOU SHOULD BE AWARE THAT YOU WILL BE REQUIRED TO BEAR THE FINANCIAL RISKS OF THIS 
INVESTMENT FOR AT LEAST SIX TO TWELVE (6 to 12) MONTHS OR PERHAPS FOR AN INDEFINITE 
PERIOD OF TIME. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



P i x a r B i o    C o r p o r a t i o n 
 

C O N F I D E N T I A L    P R I V A T E    P L A C E M E N T    M E M O R A N D U M 
 

iii 

IMPORTANT NOTICES ABOUT INFORMATION PRESENTED IN THIS MEMORANDUM 

 
The information contained in this Memorandum is available to “accredited investors” only and is 
furnished for your use as a potential Shareholder of the Company. 
 
By receiving this Memorandum you agree not to transmit, reproduce or make this Memorandum or any 
related exhibits or documents available to any other person or entity. 
 
If you do not agree to this condition, you will return this Memorandum to the address on the cover, 
postage pre-paid, within three (3) days of your receipt.  
Your failure to keep this Memorandum strictly confidential may cause the Company to incur actual 
damages of an indeterminable amount, subjecting you to potential legal liability. 
 
This Offering is available only to “accredited investors” as defined by Rule 501(a) of the Securities Act 
of 1933, as amended (See “Who May Invest”). 
 
We reserve the right to withdraw this Offering at any time and for any or no reason without notice. 
 
This Memorandum does not constitute an offer in any jurisdiction or to any person to whom it is 
unlawful to make such an offer in such jurisdiction. 
 
An offer may be made only by an authorized representative of the Company and must be accompanied 
by a copy of this Memorandum including all Exhibits. Unless a FINRA-registered broker-dealer is 
involved in this Offering, the securities described herein will be offered by the Company through our 
management on a “best efforts” basis in which case such persons will not receive direct 
compensation based upon such efforts. No dealer, salesman or other person unaffiliated with the 
Company has been authorized to give you any information or make any representations other than 
those contained in this Memorandum. If you receive other information, do not rely on it. 
 
Our affairs may have changed materially since the date on the cover of this Memorandum.  Neither 
delivery of this Memorandum nor any transactions made hereunder shall, under any circumstances, 
create an implication that there has been no material change in our affairs since that date. 
 
You and/or your advisors and representatives may ask questions of, and receive answers from, our 
management concerning the terms and conditions of this Offering as well as our overall objectives.  
We also will endeavor to provide you with any additional information, to the extent we possess such 
information or can acquire it without unreasonable effort or expense, necessary to substantiate the 
information set forth in this Memorandum. 
 
Securities acquired through this Offering may not be transferred without the express written 
permission of the Company or in the absence of an effective registration statement unless the 
prospective transferee establishes, to the satisfaction of the Company, that an exemption from 
registration is available.  Any certificates evidencing ownership of securities offered hereby shall bear 
a restrictive legend to this effect. 
 
The securities described herein should be considered a non-liquid, speculative investment.  (See “Risk 
Factors”). 
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IF YOU OR YOUR ADVISOR(S) DESIRE ADDITIONAL INFORMATION, PLEASE CONTACT: 
 

 
PixarBio Corporation 
200 Boston Avenue, Suite 1875  
Medford, Massachusetts 02155 USA  
Telephone: (617) 803-8838 
E-mail: info@pixarbio.com 
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STATE NOTICES 

 
The presence of a legend for any given state reflects only that a legend may be required by that state and should 
not be construed to mean an offer or sale may be made in any particular state. 
 
FOR ALABAMA RESIDENTS: THESE SECURITIES ARE OFFERED PURSUANT TO A CLAIM OF 
EXEMPTION UNDER THE ALABAMA SECURITIES ACT. A REGISTRATION STATEMENT RELATING TO 
THESE SECURITIES HAS NOT BEEN FILED WITH THE ALABAMA SECURITIES COMMISSION. THE 
COMMISSION DOES NOT RECOMMEND OR ENDORSE THE PURCHASE OF ANY SECURITIES, NOR 
DOES IT PASS UPON THE ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS OF THIS PRIVATE PLACEMENT 
MEMORANDUM ANY REPRESENTATION TO THE CONTRARY IS A CRIMINAL OFFENSE. THE 
PURCHASE PRICE OF THE INTEREST ACQUIRED BY A NON- ACCREDITED INVESTOR RESIDING IN 
THE STATE OF ALABAMA MAY NOT EXCEED 20% OF THE PURCHASER’S NET WORTH. 
 
FOR ALASKA RESIDENTS: THE SECURITIES OFFERED HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED WITH THE 
ADMINISTRATOR OF SECURITIES OF THE STATE OF ALASKA UNDER PROVISIONS OF 3 AAC 08.500-3 
AAC 08,506. THE INVESTOR IS ADVISED THAT THE ADMINISTRATOR HAS MADE ONLY A CURSORY 
REVIEW OF THE REGISTRATION STATEMENT AND HAS NOT REVIEWED THIS DOCUMENT SINCE THE 
DOCUMENT IS NOT REQUIRED TO BE FILED WITH THE ADMINISTRATOR. THE FACT OF 
REGISTRATION DOES NOT MEAN THAT THE ADMINISTRATOR HAS PASSED IN ANY WAY UPON THE 
MERITS, RECOMMENDED, OR APPROVED THE SECURITIES. ANY REPRESENTATION TO THE 
CONTRARY IS A VIOLATION OF A.S. 45.55.170. THE INVESTOR MUST RELY ON THE INVESTOR’S OWN 
EXAMINATION OF THE PERSON OR ENTITY CREATING THE SECURITIES AND THE TERMS OF THE 
OFFERING, INCLUDING THE MERITS AND RISKS INVOLVED, IN MAKING AN INVESTMENT DECISION 
ON THESE SECURITIES. 
 
FOR ARIZONA RESIDENTS: THE SECURITIES OFFERED HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE 
SECURITIES ACT OF ARIZONA, AS AMENDED, AND ARE OFFERED IN RELIANCE UPON AN EXEMPTION 
FROM REGISTRATION PURSUANT TO A.R.S. SECTION 44-1844(1). THE SECURITIES CANNOT BE 
RESOLD UNLESS REGISTERED UNDER THE ACT OR PURSUANT TO AN EXEMPTION FROM 
REGISTRATION. 
 
FOR ARKANSAS RESIDENTS: THESE SECURITIES ARE OFFERED PURSUANT TO A CLAIM OF 
EXEMPTION UNDER SECTION 14(b)(14) OF THE ARKANSAS SECURITIES ACT AND SECTION 4(a)(2) OF 
THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933. A REGISTRATION STATEMENT RELATING TO THESE SECURITIES HAS 
NOT BEEN FILED WITH THE ARKANSAS SECURITIES DEPARTMENT OR WITH THE SECURITIES AND 
EXCHANGE COMMISSION. NEITHER THE DEPARTMENT NOR THE COMMISSION HAS PASSED UPON 
THE VALUE OF THESE SECURITIES, MADE ANY RECOMMENDATIONS AS TO THEIR PURCHASE, 
APPROVED OR DISAPPROVED THE OFFERING, OR PASSED UPON THE ADEQUACY OR ACCURACY 
OF THIS MEMORANDUM. ANY REPRESENTATION TO THE CONTRARY IS UNLAWFUL. THE PURCHASE 
PRICE OF THE INTEREST ACQUIRED BY AN UNACCREDITED INVESTOR RESIDING IN THE STATE OF 
ARKANSAS MAY NOT EXCEED 20% OF THE PURCHASER’S NET WORTH. 
 
FOR CALIFORNIA RESIDENTS: THESE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED OR QUALIFIED 
UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR THE CALIFORNIA CORPORATE SECURITIES 
ACT, BY REASON OF SPECIFIC EXEMPTIONS THEREUNDER RELATING TO THE LIMITED AVAILABILITY 
OF THE OFFERING. THESE SECURITIES CANNOT BE SOLD, TRANSFERRED, OR OTHERWISE 
DISPOSED OF TO ANY PERSON OR ENTITY UNLESS THEY ARE SUBSEQUENTLY REGISTERED OR AN 
EXEMPTION FROM REGISTRATION IS AVAILABLE. 
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FOR COLORADO RESIDENTS: THESE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE 
SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR THE COLORADO SECURITIES ACT, BY REASON OF 
SPECIFIC EXEMPTIONS THEREUNDER RELATING TO THE LIMITED AVAILABILITY OF THE OFFERING. 
THESE SECURITIES CANNOT BE SOLD, TRANSFERRED, OR OTHERWISE DISPOSED OF TO ANY 
PERSON OR ENTITY UNLESS THEY ARE SUBSEQUENTLY REGISTERED OR AN EXEMPTION FROM 
REGISTRATION IS AVAILABLE. 
 
FOR CONNECTICUT RESIDENTS: THESE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER SECTION 
36- 485 OF THE CONNECTICUT UNIFORM SECURITIES ACT AND THEREFORE CANNOT BE RESOLD 
UNLESS THEY ARE REGISTERED UNDER SUCH ACT OR UNLESS AN EXEMPTION FROM 
REGISTRATION IS AVAILABLE. 
 
FOR DELAWARE RESIDENTS: THESE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE 
DELAWARE SECURITIES ACT AND ARE OFFERED PURSUANT TO A CLAIM OF EXEMPTION UNDER 
SECTION 7309(b)(9) OF THE DELAWARE SECURITIES ACT AND RULE 9(b)(9)(I) THEREUNDER. THESE 
SECURITIES CANNOT BE SOLD, TRANSFERRED, OR OTHERWISE DISPOSED OF TO ANY PERSON OR 
ENTITY UNLESS THEY ARE SUBSEQUENTLY REGISTERED UNDER THE ACT OR AN EXEMPTION FROM 
REGISTRATION IS AVAILABLE. 
 
FOR DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA RESIDENTS: THESE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER 
THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA SECURITIES ACT SINCE SUCH ACT DOES NOT REQUIRE REGISTRATION 
OF SECURITIES ISSUES. THESE SECURITIES CANNOT BE SOLD, TRANSFERRED, OR OTHERWISE 
DISPOSED OF TO ANY PERSON OR ENTITY UNLESS THEY ARE SUBSEQUENTLY REGISTERED UNDER 
THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR AN EXEMPTION FROM REGISTRATION IS 
AVAILABLE. 
 
FOR FLORIDA RESIDENTS: THESE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE 
SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR THE FLORIDA SECURITIES ACT, BY REASON OF 
SPECIFIC EXEMPTIONS THEREUNDER RELATING TO THE LIMITED AVAILABILITY OF THE OFFERING. 
THESE SECURITIES CANNOT BE SOLD, TRANSFERRED, OR OTHERWISE DISPOSED OF TO ANY 
PERSON OR ENTITY UNLESS THEY ARE SUBSEQUENTLY REGISTERED OR AN EXEMPTION FROM 
REGISTRATION IS AVAILABLE. THE SECURITIES REFERRED TO HEREIN WILL BE SOLD TO, AND 
ACQUIRED BY, THE HOLDER IN A TRANSACTION EXEMPT UNDER SECTION 517.061 OF THE FLORIDA 
SECURITIES ACT. THE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER SAID ACT IN THE STATE 
OF FLORIDA. IN ADDITION, ALL FLORIDA RESIDENTS SHALL HAVE THE PRIVILEGE OF VOIDING THE 
PURCHASE WITHIN THREE (3) DAYS AFTER THE FIRST TENDER OF CONSIDERATION IS MADE BY 
SUCH PURCHASER TO THE ISSUER, AN AGENT OF THE ISSUER, OR AN ESCROW AGENT OR WITHIN 
3 DAYS AFTER THE AVAILABILITY OF THAT PRIVILEGE IS COMMUNICATED TO SUCH PURCHASER, 
WHICHEVER OCCURS LATER. 
 
FOR GEORGIA RESIDENTS: THESE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE 
SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR SECTION 10-5-5 OF THE GEORGIA SECURITIES ACT OF 
1973 AND ARE BEING SOLD IN RELIANCE UPON EXEMPTIONS THEREFROM. THESE SECURITIES 
CANNOT BE SOLD, TRANSFERRED, OR OTHERWISE DISPOSED OF TO ANY PERSON OR ENTITY 
UNLESS THEY ARE SUBSEQUENTLY REGISTERED OR AN EXEMPTION FROM REGISTRATION IS 
AVAILABLE. THE INVESTMENT IS SUITABLE IF IT DOES NOT EXCEED 20% OF THE INVESTOR’S NET 
WORTH. 
 
FOR HAWAII RESIDENTS: THESE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE 
SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR THE HAWAII UNIFORM SECURITIES ACT (MODIFIED), BY 
REASON OF SPECIFIC EXEMPTIONS THEREUNDER RELATING TO THE LIMITED AVAILABILITY OF THE 
OFFERING. THESE SECURITIES CANNOT BE SOLD, TRANSFERRED, OR OTHERWISE DISPOSED OF 
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TO ANY  PERSON  OR ENTITY UNLESS THEY ARE SUBSEQUENTLY REGISTERED OR AN EXEMPTION 
FROM REGISTRATION IS AVAILABLE. 
 
FOR IDAHO RESIDENTS: THESE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN  REGISTERED  UNDER  THE  IDAHO 
SECURITIES ACT (THE “ACT”) AND MAY BE TRANSFERRED OR RESOLD BY RESIDENTS OF IDAHO 
ONLY IF REGISTERED PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF THE ACT OR IF AN EXEMPTION FROM 
REGISTRATION IS AVAILABLE. THE INVESTMENT IS SUITABLE IF IT DOES NOT EXCEED 10% OF THE 
INVESTOR’S NET WORTH. 
 
FOR ILLINOIS RESIDENTS: THESE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN APPROVED OR DISAPPROVED BY 
THE SECRETARY OF STATE OF ILLINOIS OR THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, NOR HAS THE SECRETARY OF 
STATE OF ILLINOIS OR THE STATE OF ILLINOIS PASSED UPON THE ACCURACY OR  ADEQUACY  OF  
THIS PROSPECTUS. ANY REPRESENTATION TO THE CONTRARY IS A CRIMINAL OFFENSE. 
 
FOR INDIANA RESIDENTS: THESE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER SECTION 3 OF 
THE INDIANA BLUE SKY LAW AND ARE OFFERED PURSUANT TO AN EXEMPTION PURSUANT TO 
SECTION 23-2-l- 2(b)(10) THEREOF AND MAY BE TRANSFERRED OR RESOLD ONLY IF SUBSEQUENTLY 
REGISTERED OR IF AN EXEMPTION FROM REGISTRATION IS AVAILABLE. INVESTORS SHOULD BE 
AWARE THAT THEY WILL BE REQUIRED TO BEAR THE FINANCIAL RISKS OF THIS INVESTMENT FOR 
AN INDEFINITE PERIOD OF TIME. INDIANA REQUIRES INVESTOR SUITABILITY STANDARDS OF A NET 
WORTH (EXCLUSIVE OF HOME, FURNISHINGS, AND AUTOMOBILES) OF THREE TIMES THE 
INVESTMENT BUT NOT LESS THAN $75,000 OR A NET WORTH (EXCLUSIVE OF HOME, FURNISHINGS, 
AND AUTOMOBILES) OF TWICE THE INVESTMENT BUT NOT LESS THAN $30,000 AND GROSS INCOME 
OF $30,000. 
 
FOR IOWA RESIDENTS: THESE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE IOWA 
UNIFORM SECURITIES ACT (THE “ACT”) AND ARE OFFERED PURSUANT TO A CLAIM OF EXEMPTION 
UNDER SECTION 502.203(9) OF THE ACT. THESE SECURITIES CANNOT BE SOLD, TRANSFERRED, OR 
OTHERWISE DISPOSED OF TO ANY PERSON OR ENTITY UNLESS THEY ARE SUBSEQUENTLY 
REGISTERED OR AN EXEMPTION FROM REGISTRATION IS AVAILABLE. INVESTORS SHOULD BE 
AWARE THAT THEY WILL BE REQUIRED TO BEAR THE FINANCIAL RISKS OF THIS INVESTMENT FOR 
AN INDEFINITE PERIOD OF TIME. 
 
FOR KANSAS RESIDENTS: THESE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE 
SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR THE KANSAS SECURITIES ACT, BY REASON OF SPECIFIC 
EXEMPTIONS THEREUNDER RELATING TO THE LIMITED AVAILABILITY OF THE OFFERING. THESE 
SECURITIES CANNOT BE SOLD, TRANSFERRED, OR OTHERWISE DISPOSED OF TO ANY PERSON OR 
ENTITY UNLESS THEY ARE SUBSEQUENTLY REGISTERED OR AN EXEMPTION FROM REGISTRATION 
IS AVAILABLE. 
 
FOR KENTUCKY RESIDENTS: THESE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE 
SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR THE SECURITIES ACT OF KENTUCKY, BY REASON OF 
SPECIFIC EXEMPTIONS THEREUNDER RELATING TO THE LIMITED AVAILABILITY OF THE OFFERING. 
THESE SECURITIES CANNOT BE SOLD, TRANSFERRED, OR OTHERWISE DISPOSED OF TO ANY 
PERSON OR ENTITY UNLESS THEY ARE SUBSEQUENTLY REGISTERED OR AN EXEMPTION FROM 
REGISTRATION IS AVAILABLE. 
 
FOR LOUISIANA RESIDENTS: THESE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE 
SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR THE LOUISIANA SECURITIES LAW, BY REASON OF 
SPECIFIC EXEMPTIONS THEREUNDER RELATING TO THE LIMITED AVAILABILITY OF THE OFFERING. 
THESE SECURITIES CANNOT BE SOLD, TRANSFERRED, OR OTHERWISE DISPOSED OF TO ANY 
PERSON OR ENTITY UNLESS THEY ARE SUBSEQUENTLY REGISTERED OR AN EXEMPTION FROM 
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REGISTRATION IS AVAILABLE. THE INVESTMENT IS SUITABLE IF IT DOES NOT EXCEED 25% OF THE 
INVESTOR’S NET WORTH. 
 
FOR MAINE RESIDENTS: THESE SECURITIES ARE BEING SOLD PURSUANT TO AN EXEMPTION FROM 
REGISTRATION WITH THE BANK SUPERINTENDENT OF THE STATE OF MAINE UNDER SECTION 
10502(2)(R) OF TITLE 32 OF THE MAINE REVISED STATUTES. THESE SECURITIES MAY BE DEEMED 
RESTRICTED SECURITIES AND AS SUCH THE HOLDER MAY NOT BE ABLE TO RESELL THE 
SECURITIES UNLESS PURSUANT TO REGISTRATION UNDER STATE OR FEDERAL SECURITIES LAWS 
OR UNLESS AN EXEMPTION UNDER SUCH LAWS EXISTS. 
 
FOR MARYLAND RESIDENTS: THESE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE 
SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR THE MARYLAND SECURITIES ACT, BY REASON OF 
SPECIFIC EXEMPTIONS THEREUNDER RELATING TO THE LIMITED AVAILABILITY OF THE OFFERING. 
THESE SECURITIES CANNOT BE SOLD TRANSFERRED, OR OTHERWISE DISPOSED OF TO ANY 
PERSON OR ENTITY UNLESS THEY ARE SUBSEQUENTLY REGISTERED OR AN EXEMPTION FROM 
REGISTRATION IS AVAILABLE. 
 
FOR MASSACHUSETTS RESIDENTS: THESE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE 
SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR THE MASSACHUSETTS UNIFORM SECURITIES ACT, BY 
REASON OF SPECIFIC EXEMPTIONS THEREUNDER RELATING TO THE LIMITED AVAILABILITY OF THE 
OFFERING. THESE SECURITIES CANNOT BE SOLD, TRANSFERRED, OR OTHERWISE DISPOSED OF 
TO ANY PERSON OR ENTITY UNLESS THEY ARE SUBSEQUENTLY REGISTERED OR AN EXEMPTION 
FROM REGISTRATION IS AVAILABLE. 
 
FOR MICHIGAN RESIDENTS: THESE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER SECTION 
451.701 OF THE MICHIGAN UNIFORM SECURITIES ACT (THE “ACT”) AND MAY BE TRANSFERRED OR 
RESOLD BY RESIDENTS OF MICHIGAN ONLY IF REGISTERED PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF 
THE ACT OR IF AN EXEMPTION FROM REGISTRATION IS AVAILABLE. THE INVESTMENT IS SUITABLE 
IF IT DOES NOT EXCEED 10% OF THE INVESTOR’S NET WORTH. 
 
FOR MINNESOTA RESIDENTS: THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS MEMORANDUM HAVE NOT 
BEEN REGISTERED UNDER CHAPTER 80A OF THE MINNESOTA SECURITIES LAWS AND MAY NOT BE 
SOLD, TRANSFERRED, OR OTHERWISE DISPOSED OF EXCEPT PURSUANT TO REGISTRATION, OR AN 
EXEMPTION THEREFROM. 
 
FOR MISSISSIPPI RESIDENTS: THESE SECURITIES ARE OFFERED PURSUANT TO A CERTIFICATE OF 
REGISTRATION ISSUED BY THE SECRETARY OF STATE OF MISSISSIPPI PURSUANT TO RULE 477, 
WHICH PROVIDES A LIMITED REGISTRATION PROCEDURE FOR CERTAIN OFFERINGS. THE 
SECRETARY OF STATE DOES NOT RECOMMEND OR ENDORSE THE PURCHASE OF ANY SECURITIES, 
NOR DOES THE SECRETARY OF STATE PASS UPON THE TRUTH, MERITS OR COMPLETENESS OF 
ANY OFFERING MEMORANDUM FILED WITH THE SECRETARY OF STATE. ANY REPRESENTATION TO 
THE CONTRARY IS A CRIMINAL OFFENSE. 
 
FOR MISSOURI RESIDENTS: THESE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE 
SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR THE MISSOURI UNIFORM SECURITIES ACT, BY REASON 
OF SPECIFIC EXEMPTIONS THEREUNDER RELATING TO THE LIMITED AVAILABILITY OF THE 
OFFERING. THESE SECURITIES CANNOT BE SOLD, TRANSFERRED, OR OTHERWISE DISPOSED OF 
TO ANY PERSON OR ENTITY UNLESS THEY ARE SUBSEQUENTLY REGISTERED OR AN EXEMPTION 
FROM REGISTRATION IS AVAILABLE. 
 
FOR MONTANA RESIDENTS: THESE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE 
SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR THE SECURITIES ACT OF MONTANA, BY REASON OF 
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SPECIFIC EXEMPTIONS THEREUNDER RELATING TO THE LIMITED AVAILABILITY OF THE OFFERING. 
THESE SECURITIES CANNOT BE SOLD, TRANSFERRED, OR OTHERWISE DISPOSED OF TO ANY 
PERSON OR ENTITY UNLESS THEY ARE SUBSEQUENTLY REGISTERED OR AN EXEMPTION FROM 
REGISTRATION IS AVAILABLE. 
 
FOR NEBRASKA RESIDENTS: THESE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE 
SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR THE SECURITIES ACT OF NEBRASKA, BY REASON OF 
SPECIFIC EXEMPTIONS THEREUNDER RELATING TO THE LIMITED AVAILABILITY OF THE OFFERING. 
THESE SECURITIES CANNOT BE SOLD, TRANSFERRED, OR OTHERWISE DISPOSED OF TO ANY 
PERSON OR ENTITY UNLESS THEY ARE SUBSEQUENTLY REGISTERED OR AN EXEMPTION FROM 
REGISTRATION IS AVAILABLE. 
 
FOR NEVADA RESIDENTS: THESE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE 
SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR THE NEVADA SECURITIES ACT, BY REASON OF SPECIFIC 
EXEMPTIONS THEREUNDER RELATING TO THE LIMITED AVAILABILITY OF THE OFFERING. THESE 
SECURITIES CANNOT BE SOLD, TRANSFERRED, OR OTHERWISE DISPOSED OF TO ANY PERSON OR 
ENTITY UNLESS THEY ARE SUBSEQUENTLY REGISTERED OR AN EXEMPTION FROM REGISTRATION 
IS AVAILABLE. 
 
FOR NEW HAMPSHIRE RESIDENTS: THESE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE 
SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR THE NEW HAMPSHIRE UNIFORM SECURITIES ACT,  BY 
REASON OF SPECIFIC EXEMPTIONS THEREUNDER RELATING TO THE LIMITED AVAILABILITY OF THE 
OFFERING. THESE SECURITIES CANNOT BE SOLD, TRANSFERRED, OR OTHERWISE DISPOSED OF 
TO ANY PERSON OR ENTITY UNLESS THEY ARE SUBSEQUENTLY REGISTERED OR AN EXEMPTION 
FROM REGISTRATION IS AVAILABLE. THE INVESTMENT IS SUITABLE IF IT DOES NOT EXCEED 10% OF 
THE INVESTOR’S NET WORTH. 
 
FOR NEW JERSEY RESIDENTS: THE ATTORNEY GENERAL OF THE STATE OF NEW JERSEY HAS NOT 
PASSED ON OR ENDORSED THE MERITS OF THIS OFFERING. THE FILING OF THE WITHIN OFFERING 
WITH THE BUREAU OF SECURITIES DOES NOT CONSTITUTE APPROVAL OF THE ISSUE OR THE SALE 
THEREOF BY THE BUREAU OF SECURITIES OR THE DEPARTMENT OF LAW AND PUBLIC SAFETY OF 
THE STATE OF NEW JERSEY. ANY REPRESENTATION TO THE CONTRARY IS UNLAWFUL. 
 
FOR NEW MEXICO RESIDENTS: THESE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN APPROVED OR DISAPPROVED 
BY THE SECURITIES BUREAU OF THE NEW MEXICO DEPARTMENT OF REGULATION AND LICENSING, 
NOR HAS THE SECURITIES BUREAU PASSED UPON THE ACCURACY OR ADEQUACY OF THIS 
PROSPECTUS. ANY REPRESENTATION TO THE CONTRARY IS A CRIMINAL OFFENSE. 
 
FOR NEW YORK RESIDENTS: THESE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE 
SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR THE NEW YORK FRAUDULENT PRACTICES (“MARTIN”) 
ACT, BY REASON OF SPECIFIC EXEMPTIONS THEREUNDER RELATING TO THE LIMITED AVAILABILITY 
OF THE OFFERING. THESE SECURITIES CANNOT BE SOLD, TRANSFERRED, OR OTHERWISE 
DISPOSED OF TO ANY PERSON OR ENTITY UNLESS SUBSEQUENTLY REGISTERED UNDER THE 
SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR THE NEW YORK FRAUDULENT PRACTICES (“MARTIN”) 
ACT, IF SUCH REGISTRATION IS REQUIRED. THIS PRIVATE OFFERING MEMORANDUM HAS NOT BEEN 
FILED WITH OR REVIEWED BY THE ATTORNEY GENERAL PRIOR TO ITS ISSUANCE AND USE. THE 
ATTORNEY GENERAL OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK HAS NOT PASSED ON OR ENDORSED THE 
MERITS OF THIS OFFERING. ANY REPRESENTATION TO THE CONTRARY IS UNLAWFUL. PURCHASE 
OF THESE SECURITIES INVOLVES A HIGH DEGREE OF RISK. THIS PRIVATE OFFERING MEMORANDUM 
DOES NOT CONTAIN AN UNTRUE STATEMENT OF A MATERIAL FACT OR OMIT TO STATE A MATERIAL 
FACT NECESSARY TO MAKE THE STATEMENTS MADE, IN THE LIGHT OF THE CIRCUMSTANCES 
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UNDER WHICH THEY WERE MADE, NOT MISLEADING. IT CONTAINS A FAIR SUMMARY OF THE 
MATERIAL TERMS OF DOCUMENTS PURPORTED TO BE SUMMARIZED HEREIN. 
 
FOR NORTH CAROLINA RESIDENTS: THESE SECURITIES ARE OFFERED PURSUANT TO A CLAIM OF 
EXEMPTION UNDER THE NORTH CAROLINA SECURITIES ACT. THE NORTH CAROLINA SECURITIES 
ADMINISTRATOR NEITHER RECOMMENDS NOR ENDORSES THE PURCHASE OF ANY SECURITY, NOR 
HAS THE ADMINISTRATOR PASSED UPON THE ACCURACY OR ADEQUACY OF THE INFORMATION 
PROVIDED HEREIN. ANY REPRESENTATION TO THE CONTRARY IS A CRIMINAL OFFENSE. THE 
INVESTMENT IS SUITABLE IF IT DOES NOT EXCEED 10% OF THE INVESTOR’S NET WORTH. 
 
FOR NORTH DAKOTA RESIDENTS: THESE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN APPROVED OR 
DISAPPROVED BY THE SECURITIES COMMISSIONER OF THE STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA, NOR HAS 
THE COMMISSIONER PASSED UPON THE ACCURACY OR ADEQUACY OF THIS PROSPECTUS. ANY 
REPRESENTATION TO THE CONTRARY IS A CRIMINAL OFFENSE. 
 
FOR OHIO RESIDENTS: THESE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES 
ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR THE OHIO SECURITIES ACT, BY REASON OF SPECIFIC EXEMPTIONS 
THEREUNDER RELATING TO THE LIMITED AVAILABILITY OF THE OFFERING. THESE SECURITIES 
CANNOT BE SOLD, TRANSFERRED, OR OTHERWISE DISPOSED OF TO ANY PERSON OR ENTITY 
UNLESS THEY ARE SUBSEQUENTLY REGISTERED OR AN EXEMPTION FROM REGISTRATION IS 
AVAILABLE. 
 
FOR OKLAHOMA RESIDENTS: THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE HAVE NOT 
BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR THE OKLAHOMA 
SECURITIES ACT. THE SECURITIES HAVE BEEN ACQUIRED FOR INVESTMENT AND MAY NOT BE SOLD 
OR TRANSFERRED FOR VALUE IN THE ABSENCE OF AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION OF THEM UNDER 
THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED AND/OR THE OKLAHOMA SECURITIES ACT, OR AN 
OPINION OF COUNSEL SATISFACTORY TO THE ISSUER THAT SUCH REGISTRATION IS NOT 
REQUIRED UNDER SUCH ACT OR ACTS. 
 
FOR OREGON RESIDENTS: THE SECURITIES OFFERED HAVE BEEN REGISTERED WITH THE 
CORPORATION COMMISSIONER OF THE STATE OF OREGON UNDER PROVISIONS OF O.A.R. 815 
DIVISION 36. THE INVESTOR IS ADVISED THAT THE COMMISSIONER HAS MADE ONLY A CURSORY 
REVIEW OF THE REGISTRATION STATEMENT AND HAS NOT REVIEWED THIS DOCUMENT SINCE THE 
DOCUMENT IS NOT REQUIRED TO BE FILED WITH THE COMMISSIONER. THE INVESTOR MUST RELY 
ON THE INVESTOR’S OWN EXAMINATION OF THE COMPANY CREATING THE SECURITIES AND THE 
TERMS OF THE OFFERING, INCLUDING THE MERITS AND RISKS INVOLVED IN MAKING AN 
INVESTMENT DECISION ON THESE SECURITIES. 
 
FOR PENNSYLVANIA RESIDENTS: THE SECURITIES OFFERED HEREBY HAVE NOT BEEN 
REGISTERED UNDER SECTION 201 OF THE PENNSYLVANIA SECURITIES ACT OF 1972 (THE “ACT”) 
AND MAY BE RESOLD BY RESIDENTS OF PENNSYLVANIA ONLY IF REGISTERED PURSUANT TO THE 
PROVISIONS OF THAT ACT OR IF AN EXEMPTION FROM REGISTRATION IS AVAILABLE. EACH PERSON 
WHO ACCEPTS AN OFFER TO PURCHASE SECURITIES EXEMPTED FROM REGISTRATION BY SECTION 
203(d), (f), (p), or (r), DIRECTLY FROM AN ISSUER OR AFFILIATE OF AN ISSUER, SHALL HAVE THE RIGHT 
TO WITHDRAW HIS ACCEPTANCE WITHOUT INCURRING ANY LIABILITY TO THE SELLER, 
UNDERWRITER (IF ANY), OR ANY OTHER PERSON WITHIN TWO BUSINESS DAYS FROM THE DATE OF 
RECEIPT BY THE ISSUER OF HIS WRITTEN BINDING CONTRACT OF PURCHASE OR, IN THE CASE OF 
A TRANSACTION IN WHICH THERE  IS  NO  WRITTEN BINDING CONTRACT OF PURCHASE, WITHIN 
TWO BUSINESS DAYS AFTER HE MAKES THE INITIAL PAYMENT FOR THE SECURITIES BEING 
OFFERED. NEITHER THE PENNSYLVANIA SECURITIES COMMISSION NOR ANY OTHER AGENCY HAS 
PASSED ON OR ENDORSED THE MERITS OF THIS OFFERING, AND ANY REPRESENTATION TO THE 
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CONTRARY IS UNLAWFUL. PENNSYLVANIA SUBSCRIBERS MAY NOT SELL THEIR SECURITIES 
INTERESTS FOR ONE YEAR FROM THE DATE OF PURCHASE IF SUCH A SALE WOULD VIOLATE 
SECTION 203(d) OF THE PENNSYLVANIA SECURITIES ACT. 
 
FOR RHODE ISLAND RESIDENTS: THESE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE 
SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR THE BLUE SKY LAW OF RHODE ISLAND, BY REASON OF 
SPECIFIC EXEMPTIONS THEREUNDER RELATING TO THE LIMITED AVAILABILITY OF THE OFFERING. 
THESE SECURITIES CANNOT BE SOLD, TRANSFERRED, OR OTHERWISE DISPOSED OF TO ANY 
PERSON OR ENTITY UNLESS THEY ARE SUBSEQUENTLY REGISTERED OR AN EXEMPTION FROM 
REGISTRATION IS AVAILABLE. 
 
FOR SOUTH CAROLINA RESIDENTS: IN MAKING AN INVESTMENT DECISION INVESTORS MUST RELY 
ON THEIR OWN EXAMINATION OF THE PERSON OR ENTITY CREATING THE SECURITIES AND TERMS 
OF THE OFFERING, INCLUDING THE MERITS AND RISKS INVOLVED. THESE SECURITIES HAVE NOT 
BEEN RECOMMENDED BY ANY FEDERAL OR STATE SECURITIES COMMISSION OR REGULATORY 
AUTHORITY. FURTHERMORE, THE FOREGOING AUTHORITIES HAVE NOT CONFIRMED THE 
ACCURACY OR DETERMINED THE ADEQUACY OF THIS DOCUMENT. ANY REPRESENTATION TO THE 
CONTRARY IS A CRIMINAL OFFENSE. THESE SECURITIES ARE SUBJECT TO RESTRICTIONS ON 
TRANSFERABILITY AND RESALE AND MAY NOT BE TRANSFERRED OR RESOLD EXCEPT AS 
PERMITTED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, AND THE APPLICABLE STATE 
SECURITIES LAWS, PURSUANT TO REGISTRATION OR EXEMPTION THEREFROM. INVESTORS 
SHOULD BE AWARE THAT THEY WILL BE REQUIRED TO BEAR THE FINANCIAL RISKS OF THIS 
INVESTMENT FOR AN INDEFINITE PERIOD OF TIME. 
 
FOR SOUTH DAKOTA RESIDENTS: THESE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER 
CHAPTER 47- 31 OF THE SOUTH DAKOTA SECURITIES LAWS AND MAY NOT BE SOLD, TRANSFERRED, 
OR OTHERWISE DISPOSED OF FOR VALUE EXCEPT PURSUANT TO REGISTRATION, EXEMPTION 
THEREFROM, OR OPERATION OF LAW. EACH SOUTH DAKOTA RESIDENT PURCHASING ONE OR 
MORE WHOLE OR FRACTIONAL SECURITIES MUST WARRANT THAT HE HAS EITHER (1) A MINIMUM 
NET WORTH (EXCLUSIVE OF HOME, FURNISHINGS AND AUTOMOBILES) OF $30,000 AND A MINIMUM 
ANNUAL GROSS INCOME OF $30,000 OR (2) A MINIMUM NET WORTH (EXCLUSIVE OF HOME, 
FURNISHINGS AND AUTOMOBILES) OF $75,000. ADDITIONALLY, EACH INVESTOR WHO IS NOT AN 
ACCREDITED INVESTOR OR WHO IS AN ACCREDITED INVESTOR SOLELY BY REASON OF HIS NET 
WORTH, INCOME OR AMOUNT OF INVESTMENT, SHALL NOT MAKE AN INVESTMENT IN THE PROGRAM 
IN EXCESS OF 20% OF HIS NET WORTH (EXCLUSIVE OF HOME, FURNISHINGS AND AUTOMOBILES). 
 
FOR TENNESSEE RESIDENTS: THESE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE 
SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR THE TENNESSEE SECURITIES ACT OF 1800, BY REASON 
OF SPECIFIC EXEMPTIONS THEREUNDER RELATING TO THE LIMITED AVAILABILITY OF THE 
OFFERING. THESE SECURITIES CANNOT BE SOLD, TRANSFERRED, OR OTHERWISE DISPOSED OF 
TO ANY PERSON OR ENTITY UNLESS THEY ARE SUBSEQUENTLY REGISTERED OR AN EXEMPTION 
FROM REGISTRATION IS AVAILABLE. 
 
FOR TEXAS RESIDENTS: THESE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES 
ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR THE TEXAS SECURITIES ACT, BY REASON OF SPECIFIC EXEMPTIONS 
THEREUNDER RELATING TO THE LIMITED AVAILABILITY OF THE OFFERING. THESE SECURITIES 
CANNOT BE SOLD, TRANSFERRED, OR OTHERWISE DISPOSED OF TO ANY PERSON OR ENTITY 
UNLESS THEY ARE SUBSEQUENTLY REGISTERED OR AN EXEMPTION FROM REGISTRATION IS 
AVAILABLE. THE INVESTMENT IS SUITABLE IF IT DOES NOT EXCEED 10% OF THE INVESTOR’S NET 
WORTH. 
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FOR UTAH RESIDENTS: THESE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES 
ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR THE UTAH UNIFORM SECURITIES ACT, BY REASON OF SPECIFIC 
EXEMPTIONS THEREUNDER RELATING TO THE LIMITED AVAILABILITY OF THE OFFERING. THESE 
SECURITIES CANNOT BE SOLD, TRANSFERRED, OR OTHERWISE DISPOSED OF TO ANY PERSON OR 
ENTITY UNLESS THEY ARE SUBSEQUENTLY REGISTERED OR AN EXEMPTION FROM REGISTRATION 
IS AVAILABLE. 
 
FOR VERMONT RESIDENTS: THESE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE 
SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR THE VERMONT SECURITIES ACT, BY REASON OF 
SPECIFIC EXEMPTIONS THEREUNDER RELATING TO THE LIMITED AVAILABILITY OF THE OFFERING. 
THESE SECURITIES CANNOT BE SOLD, TRANSFERRED, OR OTHERWISE DISPOSED OF TO ANY 
PERSON OR ENTITY UNLESS THEY ARE SUBSEQUENTLY REGISTERED OR AN EXEMPTION FROM 
REGISTRATION IS AVAILABLE. 
 
FOR VIRGINIA RESIDENTS: THESE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE 
SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR THE VIRGINIA SECURITIES ACT, BY REASON OF 
SPECIFIC EXEMPTIONS THEREUNDER RELATING TO THE LIMITED AVAILABILITY OF THE OFFERING. 
THESE SECURITIES CANNOT BE SOLD, TRANSFERRED, OR OTHERWISE DISPOSED OF TO ANY 
PERSON OR ENTITY UNLESS THEY ARE SUBSEQUENTLY REGISTERED OR AN EXEMPTION FROM 
REGISTRATION IS AVAILABLE. 
 
FOR WASHINGTON RESIDENTS: THIS OFFERING HAS NOT BEEN REVIEWED OR APPROVED BY THE 
WASHINGTON SECURITIES ADMINISTRATOR, AND THE SECURITIES OFFERED HAVE NOT BEEN 
REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT (THE “ACT”) OF WASHINGTON CHAPTER 21.20 RCW AND 
MAY BE TRANSFERRED OR RESOLD BY RESIDENTS OF WASHINGTON ONLY IF REGISTERED 
PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF THE ACT OR IF AN EXEMPTION FROM REGISTRATION IS 
AVAILABLE. THE INVESTOR MUST RELY ON THE INVESTOR’S OWN EXAMINATION OF THE PERSON 
OR ENTITY CREATING THE SECURITIES AND THE TERMS OF THE OFFERING, INCLUDING THE MERITS 
AND RISKS INVOLVED, IN MAKING AN INVESTMENT DECISION ON THESE SECURITIES. 
 
FOR WEST VIRGINIA RESIDENTS: THESE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE 
SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR THE WEST VIRGINIA UNIFORM SECURITIES ACT, BY 
REASON OF SPECIFIC EXEMPTIONS THEREUNDER RELATING TO THE LIMITED AVAILABILITY OF THE 
OFFERING. THESE SECURITIES CANNOT BE SOLD, TRANSFERRED, OR OTHERWISE DISPOSED OF 
TO, ANY PERSON OR ENTITY UNLESS THEY ARE SUBSEQUENTLY REGISTERED OR AN EXEMPTION 
FROM REGISTRATION IS AVAILABLE. 
 
FOR WISCONSIN RESIDENTS: THESE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE 
SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR THE WISCONSIN UNIFORM SECURITIES LAW, BY 
REASON OF SPECIFIC EXEMPTIONS THEREUNDER RELATING TO THE LIMITED AVAILABILITY OF THE 
OFFERING. THESE SECURITIES CANNOT BE SOLD, TRANSFERRED, OR OTHERWISE DISPOSED OF 
TO ANY PERSON OR ENTITY UNLESS THEY ARE SUBSEQUENTLY REGISTERED OR AN EXEMPTION 
FROM REGISTRATION IS AVAILABLE. 
 
FOR WYOMING RESIDENTS: THESE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE 
SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR THE WYOMING UNIFORM SECURITIES ACT, BY REASON 
OF SPECIFIC EXEMPTIONS THEREUNDER RELATING TO THE LIMITED AVAILABILITY OF THE 
OFFERING. THESE SECURITIES CANNOT BE SOLD, TRANSFERRED, OR OTHERWISE DISPOSED OF 
TO ANY PERSON OR ENTITY UNLESS THEY ARE SUBSEQUENTLY REGISTERED OR AN EXEMPTION 
FROM REGISTRATION IS AVAILABLE. WYOMING REQUIRES INVESTOR SUITABILITY STANDARDS OF 
A $250,000 NET WORTH (EXCLUSIVE OF HOME, FURNISHINGS, AND AUTOMOBILES), AND AN 
INVESTMENT THAT DOES NOT EXCEED 20% OF THE INVESTOR’S NET WORTH. 
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FOR RESIDENTS OF ALL OTHER JURISDICTIONS: THESE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN 
RECOMMENDED BY ANY FEDERAL, STATE, OR PROVINCIAL SECURITIES COMMISSION OR 
REGULATORY AUTHORITY. FURTHERMORE, THE FOREGOING AUTHORITIES HAVE NOT CONFIRMED 
THE ACCURACY OR DETERMINED THE ADEQUACY OF THIS DOCUMENT. ANY REPRESENTATION TO 
THE CONTRARY MAY BE A CRIMINAL OFFENSE. 
 
 

WHO MAY INVEST 
 
To invest in this Offering, you must represent in writing that: 
 
a. You accept the terms of this Memorandum; 
 
b. You are acquiring such securities for your own account, and not with a view to resale or distribution; 
 
c. Your overall commitment to invest is not disproportionate to your net worth, and your capital contribution 

and/or loan to the Company will not cause such overall commitment to become excessive; 
 
d. You can bear the economic risk of your capital contribution and/or loan to the Company for an indefinite 

period of time, and can at the present time afford a total loss of your investment; 
 
e. You have thoroughly read and understand the terms of this Memorandum (including all Exhibits) and 

agree to be bound thereto; 
 
f. You understand and accept the risks associated with the Company’s activities; and 
 
g. You are an “Accredited Investor” as defined by Rule 501(a) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended 

(the “Act”). You are deemed an “Accredited Investor” if: 
 

• You are a natural person whose individual net worth (not including of the value of your primary 
residence), or joint net worth with your spouse, presently exceeds $1,000,000; 

 
• You are a natural person who had an individual income in excess of $200,000 in each of the two most 

recent years or joint income with your spouse in excess of $300,000 in each of those years and you 
reasonably expect reaching the same income level in the current year; 

 
• You are a corporation, partnership, limited liability company, or other entity in which all of the equity 

owners are “Accredited Investors” (each meeting at least one of these suitability requirements); 
 
• You are a trust with total assets in excess of $5,000,000 and was not formed for the specific purpose 

of investing in a Debenture, the trustee of which has such knowledge and experience in financial and 
business matters that it is capable of evaluating the merits and risks of investing in a Debenture; 

 
• You are either a bank, savings and loan association or other financial institution; a registered 

securities broker or securities dealer; an insurance company; a registered investment company or 
business development company; a licensed Small Business Investment Company; or a private 
business development company; 

 
• You are a state-sponsored pension plan with total assets in excess of $5,000,000; 
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• You are an employee benefit plan which either (a) has a fiduciary that is a bank, savings and loan 
association, insurance company, or registered investment adviser; (b) has total assets in excess of 
$5,000,000; or (c) is a self-directed plan and investment decisions are made solely by persons that are 
“Accredited Investors” (meeting at least one of the listed suitability requirements); 

 
• You are a non-profit organization described in section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code that was 

not formed for the specific purpose of acquiring Debentures and have total assets in excess  of 
$5,000,000; or 

 
• You are a director, executive officer, or affiliate control-person of the Company. 
 

These general standards represent the minimum requirements for you to subscribe to the terms of this 
Offering and do not necessarily mean if you meet all of these requirements that your subscription shall be 
accepted by the Company. We reserve the right to withdraw this Offering and/or adjust the foregoing 
standards in our sole discretion for any or no reason without notice. 

 
 
 
 
 
[THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 
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$20,000,000 
Common Stock 

SUMMARY OF OFFERING TERMS* 

 
The following statements relating to the securities offered by the Company are summaries, do not purport to 
be complete, and are subject to and qualified in their entirety by reference to all of the provisions contained 
elsewhere in the Memorandum or to other documents referenced in the Memorandum. *NOTE: This summary 
alone is not the Memorandum and does not constitute an offer to sell securities of the Company. An offer may 
be made only by an authorized representative of the Company and the recipient must receive a complete, 
original, numbered Memorandum, including all Exhibits. PLEASE READ THE MEMORANDUM. 
 
The Company PixarBio Corporation (“we”, “our”, “us”, “PixarBio”, or the “Company”) is a specialty 

biotechnology company focused on pre-clinical and commercial development of novel 
neurological drug delivery systems for post-operative pain. As we develop our delivery 
system we also expect to continue research and development for injectable 
neuromaterials for spinal cord injury, epilepsy, and Parkinson’s disease. Based on pre-
clinical data, we believe that we will eradicate the need for morphine in many clinical 
settings and patients will have effective pain treatment without risks of addiction and 
without the loss of motor function. Our lead product platform, NeuroRelease™, has 
achieved sustained therapeutic release of non-opiate drugs for post-operative, acute 
and chronic pain in pre-clinical models. Initial clinical studies in 2016 will be three 
nerve block treatments for knee implants, hip implants, and sciatica. Over the next 5 
years, we expect to create a new clinical franchise in medicine around our 
microparticle and nanoparticle based pain portfolio pipeline extending into dental, 
trauma, and neuropathic pain. There can be no assurance these objectives can be 
achieved (See “Description of Business” and “Risk Factors”). 
 
Our principal place of business is located at 200 Boston Avenue, Suite 1875, Medford, 
Massachusetts 02155 USA. Our main telephone number is (617) 803-8838. General 
e-mail inquiries may be sent to info@pixarbio.com. 
 

Common Stock 
Forward Split as 
of August 6, 2016 
 

As of August 6, 2016, the Company effected a forward split of its authorized common 
stock of approximately 2.07:1.  All current common stock holdings and equity based 
awards will be multiplied by this factor of 2.07, and the current market value of our 
common stock has been reduced by this same 2.07 factor, from $3.00 to $1.45. Total 
investment value remains the same.  So, for example, if you owned 1,000 shares at 
$3.00 your current investment would be $3,000.  Now you will own 1,000 x 2.07 or 
2,070 shares at a market value of $1.45 or that same $3,000 in total value with a minor 
rounding factor that will be taken into account (see below). 
 

 
 
 

Market Total Market Total

Value Shares Investment Value Shares Investment

3.00$                  1,000 3,000$               1.45$                  2,069 3,000$              

Pre‐split  Post‐split
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The Offering  We are offering up to 10,000,000 Shares of Common Stock (the “Shares”) in the
Company at the price of $2.00 per Share (i.e., up to $20,000,000) only to
accredited investors (“you”, “your”, or the “Investor(s)”) on a “best efforts” basis in
accordance with the terms of our Confidential Private Placement Memorandum
(the “Memorandum”):

 Each share purchased will receive a seven year warrant to purchase one share at
$4.50, see Exhibit D Warrant agreement for warrants terms.

 Management will have the authority to issue shares if the offering is
oversubscribed up to an additional 5,000,000 shares at $2.00.

 The offer will be open until September 9, 2016.

This Offering is being made pursuant to Sections 4(a)(2), 4(a)(5), and/or Rule 506(b) 
of Regulation D promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Act”), 
and/or other applicable federal and state law exemptions from registration (this 
“Offering”).  

Minimum 
Investment 

Although we reserve the right to accept lesser amounts in our sole discretion, the 
minimum required investment amount is $100,000 (50,000 Common Shares). 

Type of 
Securities 

Shares of Common Stock: The Shares have standard voting rights and are entitled to 
share in dividends when or if declared by the board of directors subordinate to any 
preferred shares and provided the Company’s debts and other obligations have been 
satisfied and/or are current. 

Voting Rights Shares of Common Stock have voting rights (i.e., one (1) vote per Share).  For a more 
complete description of voting rights, see the section of this Memorandum entitled 
“Description of Securities” and the Company’s Bylaws attached hereto as an Exhibit. 

Capitalization Information regarding the capitalization of the Company is set forth in the 
Memorandum under the section entitled “Capitalization and Indebtedness” 

Investor 
Suitability 

To invest in the Company you must, among other things, represent in writing that you 
are an “Accredited Investor” as defined by Rule 501(a) of the Securities Act of 1933, 
as amended (the “Act”). 

Use of Proceeds General working capital, including the development and operation of our business 
plan. See “Use of Proceeds” and “Description of Business”. 

Pricing The pricing and terms of the Shares has been set by the Company and is not 
indicative of our actual or book value. 

Subscription 
Instructions 

To subscribe, you must: 

1. Read the Memorandum in its entirety;

2. Complete, date and sign the following documents:
(a) Suitability Questionnaire; and
(b) Subscription Agreement.

3. Deliver the above documents together with a check or bank wire payable to
“PixarBio Corporation” to the following address: 

PixarBio Corporation
200 Boston Avenue, Suite 1875
Medford, Massachusetts 02155 USA
Telephone: (617) 401-0050
E-mail: info@pixarbio.com
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BANK WIRE COORDINATES: 
 
Bank of America 
220 N. Broadway, Salem, NH 03079 
ABA Routing No. 026009593 
International SWIFT Code: BOFAUS3N 
Account Name: PixarBio Corporation 
Account No.  388002783898 
 
 

*Notice The foregoing summary is qualified in its entirety by the PixarBio Corporation (“we”, 
“our”, “us”, “PixarBio”, or the “Company”) Confidential Private Placement 
Memorandum as may be amended or supplemented from time to time (the 
“Memorandum”) which contains more complete information including risk factors. This 
summary also contains forward-looking statements and hypothetical economic 
forecasts that may not be realized. By receiving or viewing this summary, you 
acknowledge and agree not to rely upon it in making an investment decision. Please 
read the Memorandum. By receiving or viewing this summary, you acknowledge and 
agree that (i) all of the information contained herein is subject to confidentiality 
between yourself and the Company and/or its Affiliates; (ii) you will not copy, 
reproduce or distribute this summary or the Memorandum, in whole or in part to any 
person or party without the prior written consent of the Company; (iii) in the event you 
do not invest you will return this summary and the Memorandum as soon as 
practicable to the Company, together with any other summary relating to the Company 
or its Affiliates in your possession. This summary does not constitute or form a part of 
any offer to sell or solicitation to buy securities nor shall it or any part of it form the 
basis of any contract or commitment whatsoever. Without limiting the foregoing, this 
summary does not constitute an offer or solicitation in any jurisdiction in which such an 
offer or solicitation is not permitted under applicable law or to any person or entity who 
is not an “accredited investor” as defined under Rule 501(a) of the Securities Act of 
1933, as amended, or who does not possess the qualifications described in the 
Memorandum. PLEASE READ THE MEMORANDUM. 
 

For More 
Information 

If you or your advisor(s) need additional information, and/or to obtain a copy of the 
Memorandum, please contact us: 
 

 
PixarBio Corporation 
200 Boston Avenue, Suite 1875  
Medford, Massachusetts 02155 USA  
Telephone: (617) 803-8838 
E-mail: info@pixarbio.com 
 

 
 
 

[THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 
  



P i x a r B i o    C o r p o r a t i o n 
 

C O N F I D E N T I A L    P R I V A T E    P L A C E M E N T    M E M O R A N D U M 
 

5 

SOURCES OF INFORMATION 
 
This Memorandum contains summaries of and references to certain documents which are believed to be 

accurate and reliable.  Complete information concerning these documents is available for your inspection or 
your duly authorized financial consultants and advisors.  All documents relating to the Company, our 
objectives and our current activities will be made available to you or your representatives at our offices by 
appointment.  In some cases, a confidentiality agreement must be signed.  Our management is available by 
telephone or by appointment to provide answers to questions concerning our current plans.  NO 
REPRESENTATIVE HAS BEEN AUTHORIZED TO GIVE YOU ANY INFORMATION OTHER THAN THAT 
SET FORTH IN THIS MEMORANDUM. 

 
 

REPRESENTATIONS 

 
This Memorandum has been prepared to provide you with information concerning the risk factors, terms 

and proposed activities of the Company and to help you make an informed decision before subscribing for the 
Shares. 

However, neither the delivery of this Memorandum to you nor any transaction made hereunder shall create 
any implication that there has been no change in our affairs since the date on the cover of this Memorandum. 
Also, there are terms used throughout this Memorandum which may be unfamiliar to some readers.  Please 
refer to the definitions at the end of this Memorandum. 

 
Any clerical mistakes or errors in this Memorandum are ministerial in nature and are not a material factual 

misrepresentation or a material omission of fact. 
 
The Company has not retained independent counsel for prospective investors in this Offering. Attorneys 

assisting in the preparation of this Memorandum represent only the Company and do not represent any 
individual shareholder, officer, director, manager, investor, or prospective investor. 

 
This Memorandum does not constitute an offer or solicitation to anyone in any state or jurisdiction in which 

such an offer or solicitation is not authorized.  Any reproduction or distribution of this Memorandum in whole or 
in part or the divulgence of any of its contents without our prior written consent is strictly prohibited.  By 
accepting delivery hereof, you agree to return this Memorandum and all associated documents to the 
Company to the address on the cover unless you subscribe for the Shares. 

 
We reserve the right to withdraw this Offering in our sole discretion for any or no reason. 
 
The Company’s securities described in this Memorandum are offered in reliance upon an exemption from 

registration under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and other applicable federal and state law 
exemptions. Accordingly, the Shares are deemed “restricted securities” as such term is defined under federal 
and state securities laws, and cannot be subsequently sold or transferred without registration or reliance, to 
the satisfaction of counsel for the Company, that an exemption from registration is available.  You should be 
aware that no market for the Shares presently exists and there can be no assurance that a market will ever 
materialize. 

 
We are not registered as an “investment company” as such term is defined under the Investment 

Company Act of 1940, as amended.  To the extent such statute applies to us, if at all, we are relying upon 
exemptions available to companies under Section 3(c)(1) of the Investment Company Act of 1940, as 
amended, and other applicable federal and state law exemptions. 
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We are not currently subject to ongoing information disclosure requirements of the Securities and 

Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and most likely will not be subject to such requirements after the 
completion of this Offering. Accordingly, we are not required to provide annual reports. However, we plan to 
keep investors apprised of the Company’s activities and progress from time to time. 

 
This Memorandum does not purport to be complete. Throughout this Memorandum reference is made to 

certain information not contained in this document.  If you wish to read the referenced material, we will attempt 
to provide it for you so long as procuring such information is not unduly expensive or burdensome. Please call 
us at our main telephone number (see cover page) to inquire about referenced information. 

 

RISK FACTORS 

 
The securities described in this Memorandum entail certain risks that investors should consider before 

making decision to accept the terms of this Offering. There can be no assurance that any rate of return or 
other investment objectives will be realized or that there will be any return of capital. You should consider the 
following risk factors among others risks in making a decision: 

 
The securities being offered are speculative and involve high risk 
 
The Shares being offered via this Memorandum should be considered speculative involving a high degree 

of risk.  Therefore, you should thoroughly consider all of the risk factors discussed herein.  You should 
understand that it is possible that you could lose your entire capital contribution or investment if the Company 
is ultimately not successful.  You should not subscribe if you are unwilling to accept the risks associated with 
the Company and/or its affiliates. 

 
This Memorandum includes forward-looking statements 
 
This Memorandum includes many forward-looking statements.  These forward-looking statements are 

subject to risks, uncertainties and assumptions, including, among other things: 
 
• The actions of our competitors; 
 
• Successful implementation of our objectives; 
 
• Resonance for our products and services in the marketplace; 
 
• Effectiveness of the legal strategies employed by us; 
 
• Acceptance of our value proposition among consumers and/or our intended customers; 
 
• Economic, technological, and demographic trends affecting us; and 
 
• The skills of our key personnel and management. 
 
We may not attempt to supplement this Memorandum from time to time with new information with respect 

to our progress and we may not update or revise forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new 
information, future events or otherwise.  In light of these risks, uncertainties and assumptions, the forward-
looking events discussed in this Memorandum might not occur. 
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You should rely only on the information contained in this Memorandum.  We have not authorized any other 

person to provide you with different information.  If anyone provides you with different or inconsistent 
information, do not rely on it. 

 
We are not making an offer in any jurisdiction where such is not permitted.  You should assume that the 

information appearing in this Memorandum is accurate as of the date on the front cover.  Our business or 
financial condition, the results from our operations and prospects may have materially changed subsequent to 
that date. 

 
Do not rely upon any of our forward-looking statements 
 
Although we believe that any forward-looking statements set forth herein are reasonably achievable, any 

such statements are not to be construed as presenting the actual financial returns which will be experienced 
by you or a guarantee or promise of any type that the returns will be as depicted. Rather, they merely 
represent our judgment, as of the date of this Memorandum, and based on the assumptions underlying these 
forward-looking statements, regarding the potential future economic conditions of the Company. There will be 
differences between the anticipated and actual results because events and circumstances frequently do not 
occur as expected, and those differences may be material. Additionally, since we are a unique and novel 
enterprise with no operating history, it is very unlikely that our operating results for any given time period can 
be accurately predicted even if the overall objectives for the Company are achieved. Consequently, it is 
possible that you may never realize any return from your investment. 

 
Our business model is unproven 
 
Our business model entails testing and developing new pharmaceutical products and eventually bringing 

them to the marketplace. Because of the uncertainty that is present when attempting to bring any new drug or 
similar product to market, it is not possible to predict all of the risks associated with our Company. Additionally, 
we don’t have an extensive operating history. Therefore, our forward-looking statements as to the success or 
failure of the Company are speculative. It is possible that our operations will not generate sufficient revenue to 
pay all of our acquisition and operating expenses, taxes, and debt service requirements, which would result in 
failure to meet our payment obligations. There is no assurance that we will generate net positive cash flows. 
Because of the newness of our business we may be required to implement significant operational adjustments 
to respond to unanticipated contingencies.  As a result, we may need to make significant changes to our 
business model to address any unanticipated issues. The cost of making such changes could be significantly 
detrimental to the Company and our ability to make a profit. 

 
There can be no assurance that we will be successful or will achieve our objectives 
 
There can be no assurance that we will be successful or achieve our objectives, or, if we are successful, 

that any particular return on investment will be realized by you. 
 
There can be no assurance that we will be able to obtain sufficient capital and/or financing 
 
There can be no assurance that we will be able to obtain sufficient capital and/or financing to do so. In 

order to finance the development and operation of our business model the Company or one or more of our 
affiliates may obtain lines of credit, additional equity investment and/or borrow. 

 
While we may actively seek investors to obtain working capital, there can be no assurance that we will be 

able to do so. In such event, and if the Company or our affiliates are unable to secure additional financing, we 
may be unable to grow our business. In addition, if additional financing is necessary there can be no 
assurance that it can be obtained at favorable rates. 
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There are risks associated with our management 
 
The future operations of the Company could be adversely affected by future changes related to our 

management and/or founders which could include, without limitation, illness, disability, or a decision to pursue 
other interests. While none of these events is contemplated as of the date of this Memorandum, there can be 
no assurance that one or more of these events or other potential events adversely affecting the ability of the 
Company’s officers and directors to fulfill their obligations to the Company will not occur. See the section of 
this Memorandum titled “Management”. 

 
Our management and affiliates may have conflicts of interest 
 
Our management may act in a similar capacity for other unaffiliated concerns.  Our management’s 

capability to satisfy its obligations to the Company could be adversely affected by such other involvements. 
Certain services to be provided to the Company, such as legal, accounting, engineering, analysis, consulting, 
marketing, overhead, and technical services may be performed by affiliates or related parties of the 
Company’s management. Such services will be performed at rates believed to be comparable to rates charged 
by other independent non-affiliated concerns operating in nearby areas for similar services.  However, there is 
the likelihood that if our anticipated activities are not ultimately profitable, that such affiliates or related parties 
may still realize profits even though you do not realize the same such profit. Conflicts of interest may arise for 
our management, consultants, affiliates, and others associated with the Company by way of contract.  Such 
individuals, either directly or indirectly, may provide like services to other concerns. In addition, certain 
consultants and members of our key personnel and their affiliates are presently engaged in other companies 
or ventures. 

 
Each of our management may be engaged in other business endeavors, may commit themselves to other 

entities similar to those of the Company, and are not obligated to contribute any specific number of hours per 
week to the Company’s affairs. For example, our management are actively involved in other start-up business 
concerns which operate out of the same office building as utilized by the Company. If the other business 
affairs of our management require them to devote more substantial amounts of time to such affairs, it could 
limit their ability to devote time to the affairs of the Company, which could have a negative impact on our ability 
to operate efficiently. 

 
In addition, our management may become affiliated with other entities engaged in business activities 

similar to those intended to be conducted by us. Additionally, our management may become aware of 
business opportunities which may be appropriate for presentation to the Company as well as the other entities 
with which they are or may be affiliated. Due to their existing affiliations, our management may have fiduciary 
obligations to present potential business opportunities to those entities before presenting them to us, which 
could cause additional conflicts of interest. We cannot assure you that these conflicts will be resolved in our 
favor. 

 
Also, certain managers may have personal, family, unrelated business or other relationships with each 

other. 
Such relationships could give rise to issues not otherwise present. 
 
Our directors and our management will be indemnified by the Company and authorized to obtain D&O 

(directors and officers) liability insurance paid for by the Company. 
 
All of these activities and factors may result in conflicts of interest. 
 
There can be no assurance that the Company’s transactions with related parties reflect the most 

favorable terms and conditions available to the Company 
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We have entered (and expect to enter) into transactions with related parties. While we believe that such 

transactions may reflect reasonable market terms and conditions, there can be no assurance that these 
transactions reflect the most favorable terms and conditions available to us. 

 
There is no assurance that the strategies selected by our management will be productive 
 
There can be no assurance that the strategies chosen by our management will be economically viable or 

will yield positive financial results. 
 
We may not be able to achieve our marketing and future growth goals 
 
Our ability to implement our business plan in a rapidly evolving market requires planning and 

management. Future expansion efforts could be expensive and may strain our managerial and other 
resources. To manage any future growth effectively, we must maintain and enhance our processes and 
technology, integrate existing and new personnel, and manage expanded operations. There can be no 
assurance that our current and planned personnel, systems, procedures, and controls will be adequate to 
support our future operations or that management will be able to hire, train, retain, motivate, and manage 
required personnel or that our management will be able to successfully identify, manage, and capitalize on 
existing and potential market opportunities. If we are unable to manage growth effectively, our business, 
prospects, and general financial condition would be materially adversely affected. 

 
Our industry is highly diverse and competitive 
 
We may be competing with a diverse assortment of pharmaceutical-related concerns to attract new 

customers. Moreover, our business could be adversely affected by too many competitors in a given market 
which could adversely affect the Company. Our success, therefore, will depend in part upon our ability (i) to 
attract new customers, and (ii) to provide quality products or services to such customers at a value they are 
willing to pay for. 

 
We have limited access to capital 
 
We are not required to maintain any minimum level of permanent working capital reserves. To the extent 

that expenses increase or unanticipated expenses arise and accumulated reserves are insufficient to meet 
such expenses, we would be required to obtain additional funds through raising equity capital and/or 
borrowing, if available. Due to our limited capitalization there would be limited resources to tap in the event 
that we are unable to honor our financial commitments. Our ability repay any indebtedness incurred in 
connection with our business will depend upon net revenues realized from our operations prior to the date 
such amounts become due. There can be no assurance that such net revenues, if any, or other financing can 
be received or accomplished at a time or on such terms and conditions as will permit us to repay the 
outstanding principal amount of such indebtedness. Financial market conditions in the future may affect the 
availability and cost of equity or debt financing. In the event we are unable to raise sufficient equity capital we 
would be required to obtain the necessary funds through additional borrowings, if available. In such case if 
additional funds are not available from any source, we would be subject to the risk of selling certain assets or 
closing certain business endeavors. Any such occurrence may have material adverse consequences for the 
Company and our investors. 

 
Because our business is narrowly focused, our business may be adversely affected by adverse 

conditions in our industry 
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Any adverse change in demand for our products or services, general economic conditions, significant price 
increases, or adverse occurrences affecting our business, including the rising cost of labor, etc., could have a 
material adverse effect on us and the results of our operations. 

 
We may be subject to tort liability, consumer lawsuits, etc. 
 
Even the most careful and conscientious drug manufacturers are subjected to lawsuits.  Under various 

federal, state, and local laws, ordinances, and regulations, as well as common law, we may be liable for 
alleged damages as well as related costs of investigations by regulators of our products and/or operations. 
Such laws could impose liability without regard to whether we knew of, or were responsible for, the alleged 
conditions. Noncompliance with such laws or regulations may require us to cease or alter operations. 

 
Regional and local economic conditions may adversely affect our business 
 
Our ability to generate revenues will be influenced by the regional and local economy, which may be 

negatively impacted by economic slowdowns, increased unemployment, lack of availability of consumer credit, 
increased levels of consumer debt, poor housing market conditions, adverse weather conditions, natural 
disasters and other factors. Similarly, other conditions, such as an oversupply of, or a reduction in demand for, 
pharmaceutical- related products or services and the supply of prospective customers may affect our ability to 
generate revenue. 

 
Economic conditions may have an adverse effect on our revenues and available cash 
 
If general economic conditions worsen, people and business may be more reluctant to pay for our 

products and services.  This would hinder our ability to implement our business strategies and have an 
unfavorable effect on our operations and our ability to generate revenue. 

 
We may be liable for certain uninsured losses 
 
Certain types of losses, such as losses arising from acts of God, certain environmental issues or acts of 

terrorism or war, generally are not insured because they are either uninsurable or not economically insurable. 
Should an uninsured loss or a loss in excess of insured limits occur, this could drain us from any net cash flow 
realized from our operations. Consequently, any such losses could have a material adverse effect on our 
results of operations. 

 
We have limited operating history 
 
Although we were formed in 2013, the Company is reliant upon the proceeds of this Offering to commence 

active business operations and lacks an operating history in operations and in business in general for that 
matter.  As a result, we are subject to all the risks and uncertainties which are characteristic of a new business 
enterprise, including the substantial problems, expenses and other difficulties typically encountered in the 
course of establishing a business, organizing operations and procedures, and engaging and training new 
personnel.  The likelihood of our success must be considered in light of these potential problems, expenses, 
complications, and delays. 

 
We cannot forecast or predict the outcome of our activities 
 
There is no information at this time upon which to base an assumption that our plans will materialize or 

prove successful.  There can be no assurance that our planned endeavors will result in any operational 
revenues or profits in the future.  This, coupled with our lack of an operating history, makes prediction of our 
future operating results difficult, if not impossible. Because of these reasons, you should be aware that your 
entire investment is at risk. 
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Our success is dependent on our key personnel 
 
Our success depends on the success of our management team and our other key personnel (see the 

“Management” section of this Memorandum). Our performance and the value of the Company and its assets 
also depend on our ability to retain and motivate our officers and key employees. The loss of the services of 
any of our management or other key employees could have a material adverse effect on our business, 
prospects, financial condition, and results of operations. 

 
Our future success depends on our ability to identify, attract, hire, train, retain, and motivate other highly 

skilled technical, managerial, sales, marketing, and customer service personnel. Competition for such 
personnel is intense and there can be no assurance that we will be able to successfully attract, assimilate, and 
retain sufficiently qualified personnel. The failure to attract and retain the necessary technical, managerial, 
sales, marketing, and customer   service personnel could have a material adverse effect on our business, 
prospects, financial condition, and results of operations. 

 
Our management will have broad discretion on how to use proceeds 
 
Our management will have broad discretion with respect to the use of the proceeds of this Offering, 

including discretion to use the proceeds in ways which may not be discussed in this Memorandum and with 
which investors may disagree. You will be relying on the sole judgment and discretion of our management 
regarding the application of the proceeds of this Offering which may be used for any purpose. 

 
Certain shareholders may exert significant influence over any corporate action requiring stockholder 

approval 
 
As of the date of this Memorandum, certain founding shareholders and/or control persons own or control a 

majority of our Shares of Common Stock (See “Management – Company Ownership of Certain Beneficial 
Owners and Management”). As a result, these shareholders may be in a position to exert significant influence 
over any corporate action requiring shareholder approval, including the election of directors, determination of 
significant corporate actions, amendments to our certificate of incorporation and by-laws, and the approval of 
any business transaction, such as mergers or takeover attempts, in a manner that could conflict with the 
interests of other shareholders. 

 
We arbitrarily determined the terms of this Offering 
 
The terms of this Offering as outlined in this Memorandum bear no relationship to our assets, prospects, 

net worth, or any recognized criteria of value and should not be considered to be an indication of the actual 
value of the Company. The price or terms of the securities offered via this Memorandum has been arbitrarily 
determined by us. While the proceeds of this Offering are primarily intended to cover the cost and the 
development of our operations, no assurance is or can be given that any security issued by the Company, if 
transferable, could be sold for any amount. You should make an independent evaluation of the fairness of the 
terms of this Offering. There can be no assurance that the price you pay for the securities described in this 
Memorandum is equal to the fair market value thereof. 

 
This Memorandum contains a very limited discussion of possible tax consequences 
 
This Memorandum contains very limited discussion as to the possible tax consequences likely to arise 

from the transaction(s) contemplated. We expressly intend to not advise you as to such matters. You are 
urged to consult with your own tax advisors. 
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There may be income tax risks and ERISA risks associated with our Shares of Common Stock 
 
The following is a brief summary of what we believe are the most significant tax risks associated with our 

Shares of Common Stock. Numerous changes in the tax law have increased the tax risk and uncertainty 
associated with investments in start-up companies like us. An unfavorable outcome with respect to any tax risk 
factor may have an adverse effect on an investment in our Shares of Common Stock. Other tax considerations 
that could be significant to you are discussed under the “Tax Risks” and “ERISA Aspects of the Offering” 
sections of this Memorandum. You are strongly urged to review the material and to discuss with your tax 
advisors the potential tax consequences that may be associated with our Shares of Common Stock. 

 
• Tax Liabilities on Dividends; Capital Gains. Each shareholder of the Company will be required to 

pay federal and state income taxes at their individual rate on any dividend declared by our Board of 
Directors. Also, the sale of any Shares will be subject to capital gains tax treatment. 

 
• Reduction in Tax Basis. Dividends, if any, issued by the Company to shareholders will result in 

taxable gain to the extent those dividends exceed the shareholder’s basis for their Shares. Initially we 
expect for the basis of Shareholders holding Shares will be the amount of their investment. 

 
• Unrelated Business Taxable Income. Organizations generally exempt from federal income taxation 

(including qualified pension, profit-sharing and stock-bonus plans, Keogh plans and individual 
retirement accounts (IRAs)) may be taxable on their allocable share of Company income to the extent 
such income constitutes “unrelated business taxable income” (“UBTI”). Real estate rental income and 
gain on the sale of real property is generally not included in UBTI. However, a portion of the rental 
income from real property and gain upon sale of such real property may be treated as UBTI if the 
property is subject to “acquisition indebtedness.” Such portion is approximately equal to the ratio of the 
acquisition indebtedness to the aggregate basis of the property. Tax-exempt entities, other than IRAs, 
may qualify for an exception that would allow them to avoid the recognition of UBTI if the Company 
meets certain disproportionate allocation rules; however, it is unclear whether the Company satisfies 
these rules, and therefore all tax-exempt entities may be required to recognize UBTI by reason of their 
investment in the Company. The receipt of UBTI by a charitable remainder trust results in taxation of 
all trust income for the taxable year, and therefore this is not a suitable investment for a charitable 
remainder trust. 

 
• Risk of Characterization of Assets. The Internal Revenue Service (the “IRS”) could characterize a 

particular asset owned by the Company or our affiliates to be or consist of property held primarily for 
sale to customers in the ordinary course of business. Under such characterization, any gain 
recognized by the Company on the sale of such property would be ordinary income and any loss on 
such sale would be ordinary loss. 

 
• Audit Risk. Although we do not believe that the Company is the type that would be subject to such 

IRS scrutiny, the federal income tax return of the Company will still be subject to audit. If our tax return 
is audited, such audit may cause corresponding adjustments to, and may increase the probability of an 
audit of, our shareholders’ federal income tax returns. 

 
• Factual Determinations by the Company. The determination of the correct amount of certain 

deductions and their availability and timing to the Company depend on factual determinations to be 
made by our management. Counsel for the Company has specifically declined to give an opinion on 
such matters. Although we will exercise judgment regarding the facts when preparing the Company’s 
tax return, the IRS may assert that our judgment of the facts is not correct, which could result in the 
disallowance or deferral of deductions in whole or part. Such adjustments could result in the 
assessment of additional tax liability to our shareholders. 
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• Changes in the Tax Law. Significant changes have been made in the Internal Revenue Code (the 
“Code”) in recent years. The U.S. Treasury Department’s position regarding many of those changes 
remains unclear pending publication of interpretive and legislative regulations, some of which may not 
be forthcoming for some time. Additionally, the Code is subject to change by Congress, and existing 
interpretations of the Code may be reversed, modified or otherwise affected by judicial decisions, by 
the U.S. Treasury Department through changes in its regulations, and by the IRS through its audit 
policy, announcements and published and private rulings. No assurance can be given that any 
changes in the tax law will be given only prospective application to the Company or our shareholders. 

 
• ERISA Risks. The Employment Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (“ERISA”) subjects trustees 

and certain other parties-in-interest with respect to Qualified Plans to special standards. The ERISA 
considerations of an investment in the Company should be thoroughly considered before making a 
decision to invest. We make no warranty or representation as to such matters. 

 
IRAs, Pension Plans or profit-sharing trusts should exercise caution 
 
When considering an investment in the Company of a portion of the assets of a qualified profit sharing, 

pension, or other retirement trust, a fiduciary, taking into account the facts and circumstances of such trust, 
should consider among other things (i) the definition of plan assets under the Employee Retirement Income 
Security Act of 1974 (“ERISA”) and the status of labor regulations regarding the definition of plan assets, (ii) 
whether the investment satisfies the diversification requirements of Section 404(a)(1)(C) of ERISA, and (iii) 
whether the investment is prudent, considering the nature of an investment in the Company, and the fact that 
we do not expect a market to be created in which one can sell or otherwise dispose of our securities, and we 
have had no substantial history of operations. The prudence of a particular investment must be determined by 
the responsible fiduciary (usually the trustee or investment officer) with respect to each employee benefit plan 
taking into account all of the facts and circumstances of the investment. 

 
We will require future capital to continue our operations 
 
We may permit or request significant material additional capital contributions from our shareholders on a 

pro rata basis, new investors on terms different from those set forth in this Offering, or from other sources.  
This may have dilutive effect upon your actual or potential percentage ownership of the Company. 

 
We have incurred losses since our inception 
 
We have not generated revenues and have experienced negative cash flow from operations since our 

inception. We anticipate that our operating expenses will continue to increase substantially in the foreseeable 
future as we develop our pharmaceutical-related ideas, products and/or services.  There can be no assurance 
that our business strategy will be successful or will generate sufficient revenues to achieve or maintain 
profitability in the future. 

 
We require substantial capital requirements to finance our operations 
 
We expect to have substantial future capital requirements. We expect our ongoing capital requirements to 

consist primarily of expanding the scope of our current business operations, developing pharmaceutical-
related products, and/or making acquisitions of pharmaceutical-related concerns or related intellectual 
property. We also expect to have ongoing overhead, salaries, wages, and administrative costs to bear. We 
plan to finance our anticipated ongoing expenses and capital requirements with funds generated from the 
following sources: 

 
• Capital raised through this Offering and future debt and equity offerings; 
• Available cash; 
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• Funds received under lines of credit or loans; 
• Funds from strategic partners; and/or 
• Cash generated from operations upon commencement of operations. 
 
We currently do not have the cash available or any agreed source of funding to meet our capital 

requirements. 
 
If we are unable to obtain the necessary financing, we will not be able to acquire the assets necessary for 

our proposed business or to implement our proposed business plan. Changes in our industry or the economy, 
over which we have no control, may adversely affect our ability to obtain the necessary capital. We may not be 
able to obtain the amount of additional capital needed or may be forced to pay an extremely high price for 
capital. If we are unable to obtain sufficient capital or are forced to pay a high price for capital, we may be 
unable to meet future obligations or adequately exploit existing or future opportunities, and may be forced to 
discontinue operations. 

 
As of December 31, 2015, we had approximately $463,000 in long-term debt and other liabilities.  See the 

section of this Memorandum titled “Capitalization and Indebtedness” and “Conflicts of Interest” for additional 
information.  There is a risk we will not be able to service or pay this debt. If we elect to raise additional funds 
through the issuance of more debt, we will be required to service that debt and our operational flexibility may 
be restricted by the terms of the financing. If we successfully raise additional funds through the issuance of 
equity securities, then those securities may have rights, preferences or privileges senior to the rights of our 
Shares of Common Stock and the holders of Shares may experience dilution. 

 
Failure to invent, develop or acquire one or more minimally viable products or services would 

adversely affect our business 
 
We are a development stage corporation primarily focused on pre-clinical and commercial development of 

new products that meet the needs of neurological clinicians and their patients. We have developed a novel 
drug delivery platform to treat post-operative, acute and chronic pain. We are using patent pending 
formulations of FDA approved biomaterials and FDA approved non-opiate drugs to target key neurological 
areas to treat pain. There can be no assurance that we will be successful in inventing, developing or acquiring 
pharmaceutical-related products or services that will be economically viable in the marketplace or that such 
will be profitable for the Company. 

 
Failure to obtain customers and retain any existing customers would adversely affect our business 
 
Our success depends in part on our ability to find and/or retain customers that want pharmaceutical-

related products or services from us. Our ability to obtain customers depends on a variety of factors, including 
the quality, price, and responsiveness of the products or services we offer, as well as our ability to market such 
products or services effectively and differentiate our offerings from those of our competitors. We cannot assure 
you that we will be able find customers for our products or services or that any customers we find will not turn 
to competitors. Our failure to find customers or retain customers would have a material adverse effect on our 
business, financial condition, results   of operations, and cash flows. 

 
Increases in fuel and energy costs and fuel shortages could adversely affect our results of 

operations and financial condition 
 
The price of fuel is unpredictable and fluctuates based on events outside our control, including geopolitical 

developments, supply and demand for oil and gas, actions by the Organization of the Petroleum Exporting 
Countries (“OPEC”) and other oil and gas producers, war and unrest in oil producing countries, regional 
production patterns, limits on refining capacities, natural disasters and environmental concerns. In recent 
years, fuel prices have fluctuated widely. An increase in fuel prices typically raises the costs of shipping, 
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transportation, manufacturing, and operating vehicles and equipment. We cannot predict the extent to which 
we may be adversely impacted by future increases in fuel    costs or whether we will be able to pass any 
increased costs through to our customers. A fuel shortage, higher transportation costs or the curtailment of 
scheduled service could adversely impact our profitability. If we experience delays in the delivery of products 
or services to our customers, or if the services or products are not provided to the customers at all, 
relationships with our customers could be adversely impacted, which could have a material adverse effect on 
our business and prospects. As a result, future increases in fuel costs or fuel shortages could have a material 
adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations, and cash flows. 

 
Our products or services may contain, utilize or involve hazardous materials and chemicals which 

could result in claims against us 
 
While we intend to utilize environmentally-friendly methods and/or non-toxic products wherever possible, 

in the pharmaceutical industry many products or services may contain, utilize or involve hazardous materials 
and chemicals. 

 
Misuse of such hazardous material can lead to injuries and damages even with the use of proper PPEs 

(Personal Protection Equipment) and procedures. While the chances of injuries and accidents are rare, 
because of the nature of these substances or related residues, we may be liable for certain costs, including, 
among others, costs for health- related claims, or removal or remediation of such substances. We may be 
involved in claims and litigation filed on behalf of persons alleging injury as a result of exposure to such 
substances or by governmental or regulatory bodies related to our handling and disposing of these 
substances. Because of the unpredictable nature of personal injury and property damage litigation and 
governmental enforcement, it is not possible to predict the ultimate outcome of any such claims or lawsuits 
that may arise. Any such claims and lawsuits, individually or in the aggregate, that are resolved against us, 
could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations, and cash flows. 

 
We may be subject to environmental, health and safety regulations and may be adversely affected 

by new and changing laws and regulations 
 
We may be subject to laws and regulations relating to the protection of the environment and natural 

resources, and workplace health and safety. These include, among other things, reporting on chemical 
inventories and risk management plans, and the management of hazardous substances. Violations of existing 
laws and enactment of future legislation and regulations could result in substantial penalties, temporary or 
permanent facility closures, and legal consequences. Moreover, in the event we acquire other pharmaceutical-
related companies or concerns, the nature of their existing and historical operations may expose us to the risk 
of liability to third parties. The potential costs relating to environmental, solid waste, and product registration 
laws and regulations are uncertain due to factors such as the unknown magnitude and type of possible 
contamination and clean-up costs, the complexity and evolving nature of laws and regulations, and the timing 
and expense of compliance. Changes to current laws, regulations or policies could impose new restrictions, 
costs, or prohibitions on our intended practices which could have a material adverse effect on our business, 
results of operations, financial condition, and cash flows. 

 
If our products are improperly manufactured, packaged, or labeled or become adulterated or 

expire, those items may need to be recalled or withdrawn from sale 
 
We may need to recall, voluntarily or otherwise, any products we sell if such products are improperly 

manufactured, packaged, or labeled or if they become adulterated or expire. Widespread product recalls could 
result in significant losses due to the costs of a recall and lost sales due to the unavailability of product for a 
period of time. A significant product recall could also result in adverse publicity, damage to our reputation, and 
loss of customer confidence in our products, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, 
financial condition, results of operations, and cash flows. 
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Changes in the types or variety of our service offerings could affect our financial performance 
 
Our financial performance may be affected by changes in the types or variety of pharmaceutical-related 

products and services offered to our customers. For example, if we evolve our business to include a 
combination of products with services, the amount of money required for the purchase of additional equipment 
and training for associates may increase. Additionally, the gross margin on product sales can often be less 
than gross margin on service revenue. Any such changes in variety or adjustment to any product and service 
offerings could have a material adverse effect on our financial performance. 

 
Any acquisition we make would involve a number of risks and could have an adverse effect on our 

results of operations 
 
The success of any acquisition depends on management’s ability following the transaction to consolidate 

operations and integrate departments, systems and procedures, and thereby create business efficiencies, 
economies of scale, and related cost savings. Consequently, any acquisition we make, if any, would involve 
various risks, such as uncertainties in assessing the value, strengths, weaknesses, liabilities, including 
undisclosed liabilities, and potential profitability of the acquired company or asset. In such cases there would 
be a risk of potential losses of key employees and customers of an acquired business and of an inability to 
achieve identified operating and financial synergies anticipated to result from an acquisition. Any one or more 
of these factors could cause us not to realize the benefits anticipated to result from the acquisition or have a 
negative impact on the fair value of the acquired company or asset. 

 
Accordingly, intangible assets recorded as a result of acquisitions could become impaired. Additionally, 

previously undisclosed liabilities could be identified and have a material adverse impact on our results of 
operations and cash flows. 

 
We may not be able to adequately protect our intellectual property and other proprietary rights that 

are material to our business 
 
Our ability to compete effectively and enhance the value of our brand depends in part on our rights to 

service marks, trademarks, trade names, formulas and other intellectual property rights we own or license, 
particularly our brand names, including “PixarBio” and the “pixarbio.com” Internet domain name. We may or 
may not seek to register our marks either in the U.S. or in every country in which they are used. As a result, 
we may or may not be able to adequately protect such marks. Furthermore, because of the differences in 
foreign trademark, patent and other intellectual property or proprietary rights laws, we may or may not receive 
the same protection in other countries as we would in the U.S. and Canada. Failure to protect such proprietary 
information and brand names could impact our ability to compete effectively and could adversely affect our 
business, financial condition, results of operations, and cash flows. Litigation may be necessary to enforce our 
intellectual property rights and protect our proprietary information, or to defend against claims by third parties 
that our products or services infringe on their intellectual property rights. Any litigation or claims brought by or 
against us could result in substantial costs and diversion of our resources. A successful claim of trademark, 
patent or other intellectual property infringement against us, or any other successful challenge to the use of 
our intellectual property, could subject us to damages or prevent us from providing certain services under our 
recognized brand names, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, 
results of operations, and cash flows. 

 
Interruptions in our information and telecommunication systems, or a failure to maintain the 

security, confidentiality or privacy of sensitive data residing on such systems, could adversely affect 
our business 
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We intend to rely extensively on computer systems to process transactions, maintain information and 
manage our business. Disruptions in the availability of our computer systems could impact our ability to 
service our customers and adversely affect our sales and results of operations. We are dependent on internal 
and third party information technology networks and systems, including the Internet and wireless 
communications, to process, transmit and store electronic information. In particular, we expect to depend on 
our information technology infrastructure for fulfilling and invoicing customer orders, applying cash receipts, 
determining reorder points and placing purchase orders with suppliers, making cash disbursements, and 
conducting digital marketing activities, data processing, and electronic communications among business 
locations. We also expect to depend on telecommunication systems for communications between company 
personnel and our customers and suppliers. Our computer systems are subject to damage or interruption due 
to system conversions, power outages, computer or telecommunication failures, computer viruses, security 
breaches, catastrophic events such as fires, tornadoes and hurricanes and usage errors by our employees. 
Also, our computer systems could be subject to physical or electronic break-ins, unauthorized tampering or 
other security breaches, resulting in a failure to maintain the security, confidentiality or privacy of sensitive 
data, including personal information relating to customers, or in the misappropriation of our proprietary 
information. 

Interruptions in information and telecommunication systems, or a failure to maintain the security, 
confidentiality or privacy of sensitive data residing on such systems, whether due to actions by us or others, 
could delay or disrupt our ability to do business and service our customers, require us to incur significant 
investments to fix or replace them,   harm our reputation, subject us to regulatory sanctions and other claims, 
lead to a loss of customers and revenues and otherwise adversely affect our business. 

 
We could incur securities regulatory action 
 
Prior to the date on the cover of this Memorandum we may have conducted one or more private 

placement offerings of equity and/or debt securities in the Company. We believe the placement of such 
securities were conducted in compliance with existing federal and state securities laws and exemptions from 
registration. However, any one or more of such placements of such securities could be found by the SEC 
and/or one or more state securities regulatory agencies to have not been conducted in accordance with the 
requirements of available exemptions and/or constitute a single offering of securities, which finding could lead 
to a disallowance of exemptions from registration. Such could   give rise to various legal actions against the 
Company brought by federal or state regulatory agencies and/or private litigants. In such event there can be 
no assurance that such proceedings would be settled in our favor. 

 
This Offering is not registered under federal or state securities laws 
 
This Offering has not been registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Act”), nor 

registered under the securities laws of any state or jurisdiction.  We do not intend to register this Offering at 
any time in the future. Thus, you will not enjoy any benefits that may have been derived from registration and 
corresponding review by regulatory officials. 

 
You must make your own decision as to subscribing for the securities described herein with the knowledge 

that regulatory officials have not commented on the adequacy of the disclosures contained in this 
Memorandum or on the fairness of the terms of this Offering. 

 
Shareholders could become liable for excessive dividends 
 
As a shareholder of the Company (i.e., a Holder of our Shares) you will not be liable for the liabilities of the 

Company in excess of your investment. Notwithstanding this fact, you could become liable for any dividends 
paid to you by the Company if, after such distribution, our remaining assets are not sufficient to pay our then-
outstanding liabilities. 
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There are restrictions on transfers 
 
Transferability of the Shares is restricted so as to maintain control and consistency and to comply with 

federal and state securities laws. You will not have the right to withdraw your investment from the Company or 
to receive a return of all or any portion of your investment.  The Shares offered by way of this Memorandum 
have not been registered with the SEC or any government’s securities authority and will be restricted and 
therefore cannot be resold unless they are also registered or unless an exemption from registration is 
available.  Therefore, you should be prepared to hold such securities for at least six to twelve (6 to 12) months 
and perhaps even an indefinite period of time. 

 
We may be adversely affected by regulatory matters 
 
Our operations may be adversely affected by legislative, regulatory, administrative and enforcement 

actions at the local, state and national levels (for example, the U.S. Food and Drug Administration, U.S. 
Securities and Exchange Commission, Federal Trade Commission, state consumer protection agencies, etc.). 

 
There is no active trading market in our Shares; Sales in the secondary market may result in 

significant losses 
 
There is not any current secondary market for our Shares. Our Shares will not be listed or displayed on 

any securities exchange, the Nasdaq National Market System or any electronic communications network. Our   
management and other affiliates of the Company may engage in limited purchase and resale transactions in 
the Shares, although they are not required to do so. If they decide to engage in such transactions, they may 
stop at any time. If the Shares are sold to third parties you may have to do so at a substantial discount from 
the issue price and, as a result, you may suffer a substantial loss of principal or invested capital. It is not 
anticipated that there will be any market for the resale of our securities. As a result, an investor may be unable 
to sell or otherwise dispose of their investment in the Company. Moreover, if an investor were able to liquidate 
their investment, they would likely receive less than the amount of their original investment. Buyers of equity 
on the secondary market typically expect and receive a substantial discount from the pro rata portion of the fair 
market value of an entity’s assets. 

 
This Offering is being conducted on a best efforts basis 
 
We are offering our Shares via this Memorandum on a “best efforts” basis. However, there is no 

assurance that we will reach our objectives in this Offering. If this Offering does not proceed according to our 
plans we may not have sufficient working capital to launch and operate our business. 

 
There is no minimum offering threshold associated with this Offering 
 
No minimum amount of securities need to be subscribed in order for the Offering to proceed.  Funds will 

not be escrowed. All accepted funds will become immediately available to the Company to proceed with its 
objectives. There is the risk that if only nominal amounts are raised through this Offering that only the costs of 
the Offering will be covered and the Company will not make any material or substantive progress toward its 
business objectives. Thus initial investors in this Offering will bear a disproportionate share of the risks 
described in this Memorandum. 

 
All financial forecasts are subject to limitations 
 
If any financial forecasts are utilized by the Company in connection with this Offering, they have been 

prepared solely by the Company’s management and are qualified in their entirety by the risk factors set forth in 
this Memorandum. Such forecasts, if any, have not been compiled or reviewed by independent accountants 
and, accordingly, no opinion or other form of assurance is expressed. Because such projections are based on 
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a number of assumptions and are subject to significant material uncertainties and contingencies, many of 
which are beyond the control of the Company, there can be no assurance that such projections, if any, will be 
realized as actual results may vary significantly and materially from the results shown. Such projections, if any, 
should not be regarded as a representation that the projections will be achieved, nor should the projections be 
relied upon in subscribing for the securities offered hereby and are qualified in their entirety by the content of 
this Memorandum. 

 
We may be subject to other risks 
 
The foregoing represents our best attempt to identify the various risks you may be exposed to by 

subscribing to this Offering. This Memorandum does not purport to be complete and may not adequately cover 
all activities in which we may be engaged nor all the risks the Company will be subject to, either directly or 
indirectly, as a result of pursuing our objectives. You are encouraged to ask questions of and receive answers 
from our management to assess the merits and risks of the securities offered hereby. 

 

CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS 

 
Some of the information in this Memorandum may contain forward-looking statements. Such statements 

include, in particular, statements about our plans, strategies and prospects. You can generally identify forward-
looking statements by our use of forward-looking terminology such as “may”, “will”, expect”, “intend”, 
“anticipate”, “are”, “is”, “estimate”, “believe”, “continue”, or other similar words. Although we believe that our 
plans, intentions and expectations reflected in such forward-looking statements are reasonable, you should not 
rely upon our forward-looking statements because the matters they describe are subject to known and 
unknown risks, uncertainties and other unpredictable factors, many of which are beyond our control. These 
forward-looking statements are subject to various risks and uncertainties, including, but not limited to, those 
discussed above under “Risk Factors”, that could cause our actual results to differ materially from those 
projected in any forward-looking statement we make. We do not anticipate to update or revise any forward-
looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise. 

 

DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS 

 
Overview 

 
PixarBio Corporation (“we”, “our”, “us”, “PixarBio”, or the “Company”) is a specialty biotechnology company 

focused on pre-clinical and commercial development of novel neurological drug delivery systems for post-
operative pain. As we develop our delivery system we also expect to continue research and development for 
injectable New Drugs for acute/chronic pain, for spinal cord injury, epilepsy, and Parkinson’s disease. Based 
on pre-clinical data, we believe that we will eradicate the need for morphine in many clinical settings and 
patients will have effective pain treatment without risks of addiction and without the loss of motor function. Our 
lead product platform, NeuroRelease™, has achieved sustained therapeutic release of non-opiate drugs for 
post-operative, acute and chronic pain in pre-clinical models. 

 
There will be two initial clinical studies, large nerve and small nerve, that will provide us with broad label 

for nerve blocks anywhere in the body. Over the next 5 years, we expect to create a new clinical franchise in 
medicine around our microparticle and nanoparticle based pain portfolio pipeline extending into dental, trauma, 
and neuropathic pain. There can be no assurance these objectives can be achieved (See “Risk Factors”). 
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Background 
 

Pain is the largest medical application in the market.  Over 70,000,000 surgeries and 40,000,000 pain 
treatments performed annually in the US, making the annual pain market exceed $30B in the USA. Globally 
surgical procedures exceed 1,000,000,000. 
 
Morphine Strength, Non-addictive Non Opioid/Opiate Pain Treatment 
 
We use carbamazepine, a drug in pill form that is FDA approved for trigeminal neuralgia pain and we deliver it 
in a new way using PLGA or poly (lactic-co-glycolic acid) microparticles drug delivery system, in a powder form 
to be sprinkled on wounds for incision pain treatment or injected as a nerve block along nerve fibers (cables). 
 
Optimized R&D Model: Reynolds School of Business (RSB)—ALL 505(b)(2) Pathways 
• Targeted Drug Delivery, Tissue Engineering, and Regeneration 
• All pain products follow the US FDA 505 (b)(2) approval Pathway with our 14-day treatment expected FDA 

approval in 2018 
• 505 (b)(2) new post-op pain drugs benefit from a speedy less than 5 year FDA process as opposed 

to up to a 10 year FDA pathway for Non 505(b)(2) new drugs 
• Just-in-time delivery of Science, Engineering, Funding and R&D Mgmt.  
 
PixarBio co-founder Frank Reynolds founded InVivo Therapeutics in November 2005 to develop the first 
NeuroScaffolds to treat acute traumatic spinal cord injury.  As the only employee of InVivo Therapeutics until 
2008 Mr. Reynolds invented the first NeuroScaffolds ever conceived to treat or neuro-protect an acute spinal 
cord injury.  Frank built InVivo’s Therapeutics Chem/Bio labs in Medford, MA while expanding to build cGMP 
clean rooms in Cambridge, MA.  In addition, Mr. Reynolds led 100% of invention the many iterations of 
Neuroscaffolds in addition to a significant portfolio of injectable non-opiate pain treatments for acute and 
chronic pain based on his hydrogel drug delivery system.   
 
In 2012, Mr. Reynolds selected one of his NeuroScaffold devices to seek FDA approval to treat acute spinal 
cord injury.  In the spring of 2013, while leading clinical studies and regulatory affairs, Mr. Reynolds received 
the first FDA approval to begin human studies on his NeuroScaffold.  Due to a fractured foot that took 30 
months to heal, Mr. Reynolds retired from InVivo Therapeutics in August 2013.   
 
In 2014, Neuroscaffold human studies resulted in the first humans to ever regain the ability to walk in pools 
and on land in braces after the most severe spinal cord injuries known as ASIA A spinal cord injuries.  Lastly, 
the patients to receive the Neuroscaffolds report improved bowel, bladder and sexual function.  In 2015, Mr. 
Reynolds received a life-time achievement award from the National Spinal Injury Association for invention of 
the NeuroScaffold.  Mr. Reynolds has won global science and business award for his neurological inventions. 

 
Frank’s competencies in neuroscience, spinal-cord neurosurgery, drug discovery, drug delivery, US FDA 
Regulatory Affairs, Clinical Studies, cGMP Manufacturing, Patents, Intellectual Property, GAAP, SEC, 
Financial Analysis, MIS, Serialization, HR, Process Engineering, Legal, commercialization have all combined 
to lead to miraculous breakthroughs for acute/chronic pain, epilepsy and of course for paralyzing spinal cord 
injury, the NeuroScaffold™. 
 
As an inventor of Pharma, Biotech, and Medical Device inventions Mr. Reynolds leads the invention, R&D, 
regulatory, manufacturing, financing, and commercialization of all projects as the CEO/CFO/CSO of his 
companies.  Since 2010, Mr. Reynolds has raised over $100,000,000 and he has created over $675,000,000 
in market cap valuation for his investors. 
 
Mr. Reynolds has hired leading science advisors and consultants to assist in the R&D of his Neurological 
portfolio including the areas of spinal cord injury, acute and chronic pain, epilepsy and Parkinson’s disease.   
 
Since Q4 2006, Dr. Robert S. Langer has been a key advisor to Mr. Reynolds, as “Bob Langer” is widely 
regarded as the co-founder of the fields of tissue engineering, drug delivery, regeneration and angiogenesis 
inhibitors.  Bob holds more science and medical patents than any person in history including over 50 patents 
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applications filed along with PixarBio co-founder Frank Reynolds. Everyone in our field owes their careers to 
Bob Langer. 
 
The Drive for Optimized Neurological Treatments 
 
On August 29, 2013, Frank Reynolds, Katrin Holzhaus, and Dr. Robert S Langer co-founded PixarBio to 
develop novel drug delivery systems for Neurological disease (PD). Dr. Jason Criscione was recruited to 
cofound PixarBio as Chief Technology Officer to co-invent NeuroRelease. As the founding team grew, 
additional co-founders Dr. Amer Khalil, Xi Chen, and Haining Dai joined the PixarBio co-founders team. 
 
NeuroRelease is a 505 (b)(2) pathway through the FDA which is the FDA fastest approval pathway for new 
drugs.  To quality for 505 (b) (2) pathway all components of the treatment must already be FDA approved and 
they are simply being used in a new way.  We use carbamazepine a drug in pill form approved for pain, and 
we deliver it in a new way as a powder so it can be sprinkled on an open wound in battle, or injected along 
nerve cables as nerve blocks. 
 
NeuroRelease is made of FDA approved Carbamazepine and FDA approved PLGA or poly (lactic-co-
glycolic acid) 
 
Frank Reynolds time-tested R&D Model known as “The RSB” has produced a powerful new patent portfolio for 
PixarBio Stakeholders.  For hundreds of years, the medical community has demanded a morphine strength, 
non-addictive post-op pain that can replace morphine in the clinic.  As the PixarBio product portfolio evolved in 
his labs Mr. Reynolds again added leading advisors to his patent portfolio like Drs. Amer Khalil, Jason 
Criscione, and Bob Langer   
 
Over 70,000,000 surgeries per year in the USA require a replacement for addictive Morphine and opioid/opiate 
based pain treatments that are the current standard of care for post-op pain treatment in the clinic.   
 
Pacira Pharmaceuticals launched Exparel in 2013 after 19 years of R&D. Exparel received FDA approval for 
single dose infiltration into the surgical site to produce post-surgical analgesia.   
 
In its phase III hemorrhoidectomy trial, 72% of patients had rebounded to opioids at 72 hours post-surgery. 
Exparel does not solve “Rebound pain” often cited as the cause of “Clinic-Based Addiction”.   
 
In March 2015, the US FDA rejected Exparel as Nerve Block and in June 2016 a LAST or Local Anesthetic 
Systemic Toxicity report was filed regarding adverse events during March 2016. 
 

PixarBio Maintains Industry Leading Core Competencies in Targeted Drug Delivery  
 
With core competencies in neuroscience, tissue engineering, drug delivery, regeneration, and optimized R&D 
management, and cGMP manufacturing, PixarBio made the strategic decision to optimize next generation 
micro and nanotechnology drug delivery platforms and apply them to a range of neurological conditions and 
diseases.  

As our research platform advanced, we explored a range of chronic neurological conditions currently treated 
in pill form, where local targeted drug delivery with long-term drug release profiles emerged to be logical next 
steps for paradigm shifting treatment options in pain, epilepsy, spinal cord injury, and Parkinson’s disease.  

As of July 2016, PixarBio Corp has evolved into a neurological innovation engine and we will be an important 
pharma leader 2016-2039, with 10+ products in our R&D portfolio.  Our primary focus is driving commercial 
development of novel neurological drug delivery systems for post-op pain through the FDA process.  
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Market Demand for NeuroRelease Exceeds $30B or 100,000,000 units per year in the USA 
 

Morphine Strength Non-Opiate and Non-Addictive Pain Treatment for Post-Op Pain, Pre-clinical data leads us 
to believe that we will replace morphine in many clinical settings and patients will have effective pain treatment 
without risks of opiate addiction and without the loss of motor function.  Our lead product platform 
NeuroRelease has achieved sustained therapeutic release of non-opiate drugs in preclinical models and it is 
intended to be used for post-operative, acute and chronic pain.   
 As a 505 (b) (2) product NeuroRelease has a speedy FDA approval pathway. 
 One label for small nerve block and one label for large nerve block.   
 We’ll conduct large nerve block on total knee replacement (TKA) surgeries for large nerve approval 
 We’ll perform a small nerve block human study of the brachial plexus nerve during shoulder surgery.    
 We expect that two clinical studies in 2017 will lead to US FDA approval in 2018 for use as a Nerve block 

anywhere in the body. 
 

PixarBio’s NeuroRelease System: Materials Selection 
 
PixarBio utilizes superior biomaterials to treat post-op pain. NeuroRelease is a biodegradable, polymeric 
microparticle platform designed to sustain and control release of anticonvulsants for durations of hours to days 
to weeks to months. Our product has the following unique attributes: 
 Ability to control the size and drug loading; 
 Ability to control release and degradation rates to sustain desired durations of therapeutic efficacy 
 Ability to yield stable, reproducible release kinetics that exhibit both diffusion-limited and degradation-

limited release characteristics; 
 No residual materials, as clearance occurs through both bioerosion and phagocytosis; and 
 Ability to be handled and stored as a stable, dry powder at room temperature 
 
PixarBio NeuroRelease System: Pre-Clinical Data Overview 
 
In order to maximize R&D output, PixarBio maintains a rodent vivarium located in Cambridge, MA.  We have 
achieved 99.99999 reliability in the data across pain treatment timelines. 

NeuroRelease Biomaterials Data  
 
Reproducibly fabricate the microparticles using a simple and scalable emulsification method.  

• Reproducibly control the loading of carbamazepine across the range of 0.5-20 weight percent.  
• Reproducibly control the particle size and surface characteristics to yield reconstitutable 

microparticles. 

o Microparticle size was selected to ensure that NeuroRelease would be easily injected without 
changing the standard of care for peripheral nerve blocks 

o Microparticle polydispersity was specifically engineered to achieve rapid onset of therapeutic 
efficacy.  

• Reproducibly control the release rate of carbamazepine and microparticle degradation rate by 
controlling the biomaterial science properties and microparticle size 

o In vitro release kinetics have been evaluated for all materials fabricated to show a range of 
release rates spanning durations of days, to weeks, to months. 

• Suitability of terminal sterilization with e-beam has been demonstrated. 
 

Regarding the polymer biomaterial selected for the single dose peripheral nerve block preclinical studies, 
carbamazepine is released at therapeutically efficacious levels for 14 days and the material degrades within 
6 weeks post-injection.  
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NeuroRelease Safety and Toxicology Data (comparable to Human Phase I)  
 

Carbamazepine has been researched for 50 years and it has no known nerve toxicity 
 PixarBio has performed safety and toxicology preclinical studies in rodents and is currently performing 

safety and toxicology preclinical studies in pigs to enable IND submission.  
 Histopathological analysis of the perineural depot injection site in rodents shows no neurotoxicity, no 

myotoxicity, and no evidence of foreign body response 
 Pharmacokinetics analysis in rodents showed orders of magnitude lower systemic concentrations of 

carbamazepine compared to orally administered carbamazepine  
o 200 to 1000-fold lower blood plasma levels than oral dosage 

 

NeuroRelease Preclinical Efficacy Studies Data (comparable Human Phase II) 
 
 Replicatable efficacy data 99.99999 has been obtained showing sustained peripheral nerve block 

for 14 days in the “gold standard” rodent (rat) model of sciatica 
 Evaluated by von Frey anesthesiometry and thermal plantar analysis 
 No motor deficit confirmed with gate analysis 
 Compared efficacy with bupivacaine and Exparel and found that sciatic nerve block with either 

bupivacaine or Exparel only provides therapeutic efficacy for 4 hours, consistent with published literature 
from Boston Children’s Hospital – Dr. Daniel Kohane’s group.  

  
The chart below shows that when combined, PLGA microparticles and Carbamazepine provide 
therapeutics pain effect not achieved by Exparel 
 
NeuroRelease has achieved effectiveness across timelines 
 
Consider the data in the following illustrations: 
 

 
 
 
 



P i x a r B i o    C o r p o r a t i o n 
 

C O N F I D E N T I A L    P R I V A T E    P L A C E M E N T    M E M O R A N D U M 
 

24 

 
 

The data shows that when PLGA (NR-vehicle control) is combined with CBZ, the results is the light green 
NR(CBZ) 14-day treatment profile, that provides therapeutics pain effect not achieved by Exparel. 

 
PixarBio Targeted Market Opportunity- Product Launch 

PixarBio Price Point control- We believe that with market economies of scale we can sell NeuroRelease 
pain between $150.00 and $316.50 per treatment.  The current cost of Exparel is $316.50 per injection. 

Potential Market: Achieve 57% market adoption for Top 15 Surgeries in the USA Represents 
$2.179Billion Annual Sales 

PixarBio’s Targeted Annual Nerve Block Surgical Procedures: 5.3 million  

Revenues:  $1.7B @ $316.5 and $928MM @ $175 

• Hernias:  1,000,000     Breast Augmentation:  280,000  
• Total Knee Arthroplasty: 929,000  Bariatric:  200,000 
• Reduction of Fracture: 995,000    Mastectomies:  180,000 
• Rotator Cuff:  660,000   Tummy Tuck:  130,000 
• Colorectal:  600,000    Breast Reconstruction: 100,000 
• Spine (TLIF/PLIF): 1,189,624    ACL Repair:  250,000  
• Total Hip: 332,000     Total Shoulder Arthroplasty:  708,000 
• Foot & Ankle:  300,000   
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Market Opportunity: Top 15 Surgeries in the USA Represents $2.179B Annual Sales 

 

 
 
Competitive Market Analysis- The Bupivacaine/Opioid Issue 
 
 In Q2 2016, the FDA gave “Black Box” label to all Opioids/Opiates which mean every dose has the 

potential to do harm to the body and may lead to death 
 In Q2 2016, the US Center for Disease Control (USCDC) issued Opioid/Opiates Use guidelines in which 

they recommended that opiates for acute pain beyond 7 days will rarely be needed. 
 Our non-addictive competitors are Bupivacaine-based pain treatments. Bupivacaine is a local anesthetic 

with low potency that blocks sensory and is associated with concentration dependent motor blockade. 
 Bupivacaine has associated concentration and time dependent risks of neurotoxicity, so prolonged 

exposure is ill-advised.   
 Bupivacaine products struggle to treat pain longer than 5 days due to small body cavity space and 

inherent low potency.  ON-Q pumps (catheterized delivery of bupivacaine) are FDA approved for up to 
5 days but a one-time injection of NeuroRelease is preferred to a catheter pump by patients and clinicians. 

 Purdue Pharma: In Sept 2015, two FDA advisory committees voted 23 to 1 not to recommend approval of 
Avridi, abuse deterrent OxyContin in September 2015.  Avridi is physically addictive.  Collegium was 
recently approved for an abuse deterrant opioid but it is addictive like OxyContin. 

 All abuse deterrant Opioids/Opiates may be physically addictive, they simply cannot be smoked, crushed, 
or injected by drug addicts. 

 Our bupivacaine competitors have risks of neuro-toxic, myotoxic and cardio-toxic events. 
 
NeuroRelease vs. Competition  
  
Exparel- The only FDA approved extended-delivery post-surgical pain drug   
 
Exparel has been FDA approved for single-dose infiltration into the surgical site to produce post-surgical 
analgesia. However, in its phase III hemorrhoidectomy trial, 72% of patients had rebounded to opioids at 
72 hours post-surgery. 
 
PixarBio founder, Frank Reynolds has been in chronic pain since December 1992 when he was paralyzed 
during a spine implant surgery, and the spine implant was rejected by the FDA for use in the spine in 1991. 
 
NOTHING motivates us MORE to invent, than to out-invent poorly market FDA approved products. 

TOP 15 NON‐OPIOID, NON‐ADDICTIVE POST‐OP 

OPPORTUNITIES ‐ PROCEDURES/SURGERIES

% Responders want 

a Non‐Opioid 3‐day 14‐day  Total Procedures   Total Dollarized  14‐Day Dollarized

A B C  D   E  F

Anesthesia‐nerve blocks/injections (Knee) 95% 30% 35% 4,502,370                   1,425,000,105$       473,812,535$         

Anesthesia‐nerve blocks/injections (Shoulder) 95% 33% 33% 2,251,185                   712,500,053$          225,625,017$         

Spine Surgery  81% 0% 100% 1,189,624                   376,515,996$          304,977,957$         

Fracture Repair  80% 0% 82% 995,000                      314,917,500$          207,475,059$         

Anesthesia‐nerve blocks/injections (Hip) 85% 40% 33% 2,251,185                   712,500,053$          201,875,015$         

Knee Replacement 90% 0% 73% 929,000                      294,028,500$          194,058,810$         

C‐Section Delivery 90% 20% 40% 1,300,000                   411,450,000$          148,122,000$         

Injection‐paravertebral facet joint‐w/wo ultrasound   60% 27% 40% 1,026,856                   324,999,924$          77,999,982$           

Shoulder Arthroscopy 65% 7% 53% 708,000                      224,082,000$          77,681,760$           

Hip Replacement, Total 80% 0% 71% 332,000                      105,078,000$          60,044,571$           

Hysterectomy 90% 11% 44% 400,000                      126,600,000$          50,640,000$           

Rotator Cuff Tear Repair 75% 0% 69% 272,148                      86,134,842$            44,413,278$           

Amputation 100% 15% 50% 247,000                      78,175,500$            39,087,750$           

Hip Nailing for Hip Fracture 55% 0% 69% 307,100                      97,197,150$            37,009,684$           

Ligament Reconstruction – ACL, MCL, PCL 70% 0% 67% 250,000                      79,125,000$            36,925,000$           

Averages/Total Dollars 81% 12% 57% 16,961,468                 5,368,304,622$       2,179,748,417$     
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Liposomal system inherent challenges limits to short-term or acute pain release profile  
 Exparel storage as an aqueous suspension induces release of bupivacaine into the suspension media as 

the diffusion gradients approach equilibrium, thus, Exparel is a cold chain product.   
 This causes fluctuations in duration of efficacy observed in the clinical administration of Exparel, as the 

half-life of bupivacaine is short-lived.   
 
Market Analysis 
 
Exparel has achieved high brand awareness but market penetration has not followed at about 
3 percent. Q2 earnings report showed a 15% growth rate, year over year (Jan-June 2015 v 2016). 
 
After 20+ years of R&D Exparel manufacturing is constrained to 1,000,000 units/year 
 
Exparel has struggled with unrestricted use in major hospitals throughout the nation due to concerns 
over cost and efficacy. 
 Inconsistencies among surgeons due to variability on infiltration technique with regards to a product that is 

heavily dependent on technique and volume expansion has been an ongoing issue. 
 Knee surgery requires multiple injection with a delayed onset. 
 FDA LAST filing-neurotoxic adverse events report in June 2016 
 

On March 2, 2015, the USFDA rejected Exparel for nerve blocks.  

 Exparel’s liposomal drug delivery system is not biodegradable. 
 Key Pacira patents protecting DepoFoam, Exparel’s liposomal delivery system, expired in 2013 
 Exparel blocks both motor and sensory fibers compared to NeuroRelease that impacts just sensory fibers, 

so there is no impact on walking or moving around 
 
NeuroRelease Invented 2014 vs. DepoFoam Patent Invented 1993 
 
The Exparel liposomal drug delivery system (DepoFoam) which was selected in 1993, has the following 
biomaterials limitations:  
  

• Cannot achieve long-term, sustained delivery of bupivacaine so we believe that it will NEVER treat 
chronic pain  

• Liposomal membrane instability, that translates to inconsistent release profiles because of the 
liposomal “popping mechanism” thus no control of release  

• Not bioresorbable, so the residual material must be cleared either by the reticulo-endothelial system 
(RES) or by membrane fusion and lipid bilayer reorganization  

• Average particle size is ~32 microns which restricts the selection of needle gauge for administration  
• The fabrication technique necessitates storage as an aqueous suspension which causes great product 

stability and quality variations, since diffusion gradients approach equilibrium causing drug release, thus, 
Exparel is a cold chain product to minimize this issue.  

• Is delivered by an infiltration technique that requires hours of training and education, and changes 
the standard of care.  Results vary from injection to injection  and of course results vary from physician to 
physician  
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Bupivacaine has the following limitations:  

• Bupivacaine has low potency so you need A LOT to be effective, Body cavities all over the body 
have physical constraints/limits and injection volumes are limited by the anatomical space around 
the injection site 

• Common sense tells you there are limits of Bupivacaine dosage 
• The small body cavities and low potency limit the potential therapeutic effects of Exparel to about 

4 days following administration. 
• Primary Exparel mechanism of action is the blockade of the “open” state of voltage-gated sodium 

channels so its administration affects both sensory and motor function. 
• Both motor and sensory tracts are affected and there have been reports of falls in knee surgery patients 

during human studies with Exparel. 
• Effect on motor function is concentration dependent which restricts Exparel dosing, so you can’t just 

inject more, as you’ll likely lose more ability to function.   
• In June 2016, Pacira reported a LAST filing or “Local Anesthetic Systemic Toxicity” filing to the US 

FDA related to toxicity events with Exparel 
 
 

Intellectual Property 
 
The patent picket fence:  our patents focus on protecting composition, methods of use, kinetics, and duration 
of efficacy.   

Bob Langer is #1 in the history of US Life science patents, trailing only Thomas Edison for #1 in US history of 
patents.  We predict Bob Langer will pass Thomas Edison to be #1 and we will help him achieve that 
milestone by co-inventing for a range of neurological conditions.  

Our founding team has been co-inventing together for over a decade on over 50+ neurological patent 
applications.  The patents have been based on the RSB picket fence approach to patent protection.  
  
During 2013-2015, PixarBio filed more than 15 provisional and final patents for Parkinson’s disease, epilepsy, 
spinal cord injury and pain.  We selectively chose to continue to file our pain, epilepsy, and spinal cord injury 
patents while creating trade secrets for our Parkinson’s disease treatments.  Frank Reynolds and Jason 
Criscione are the holders of the trade secrets regarding Parkinson’s disease and epilepsy.  

 
Our patents focus on protecting composition, methods of use, kinetics, and duration of efficacy.   
 
Description of the patent disclosure for acute, post-operative, or chronic pain  

Type of claim  Description of Claims  

Composition  Fabrication methods   

Composition  Biodegradable polymer or copolymer selection  

Composition  Anticonvulsant selection  

Composition  Control over particle size distribution  

Composition  Control over anticonvulsant loading  
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Kinetics  Ability to release less than 60% of the anticonvulsant for times spanning 3 hours 
to 12 months  

Duration of efficacy  Ability to maintain delivery of a therapeutically effective dose of the anticonvulsant for 
durations spanning 3 hours to 12 months  

Methods of use  Utility in the treatment of a multitude of pain indications where peripheral nerve blocks 
are possible  

 
PixarBio’s Patent Applications 
PixarBio Pain Patent Portfolio 

 

For “COMPOSITIONS FOR TREATING ACUTE, POST-OPERATIVE, OR CHRONIC PAIN AND METHODS 
OF USING THE SAME”  

 Provisional Patent Application No. 62/081,162 filed on November 18, 2014  
 U.S. Non-Provisional Patent Application No. 14/628,563 filed on February 23, 2015  
 International Patent Application No. PCT/US2015/017112 filed on February 23, 2015  
 U.S. Non-Provisional CIP Application No. 14/938,274 filed on November 11, 2015   
 International Patent Application No.  PCT/US2015/060093 filed on November 11, 2015  

 

NeuroRelease “Sprinkle On” Pain Powder For “METHODS FOR TREATING INCISIONAL PAIN” 
 Provisional Patent Application No. 62/337,033 filed on May 16, 2016 

 

For “COMPOSITIONS COMPRISING NAV1.7 SELECTIVE INHIBITORS FOR TREATING ACUTE, POST-
OPERATIVE, OR CHRONIC PAIN AND METHODS OF USING THE SAME” 

 Provisional Patent Application No. 62/298,729 filed on February 23, 2016 
 

Spinal Cord Injury Patent Portfolio 

 

For “COMPOSITIONS FOR INHIBITING INFLAMMATION IN A SUBJECT WITH A SPINAL CORD INJURY 
AND METHODS OF USING THE SAME”  

 Provisional Patent Application No. 62/037,628 filed on August 15, 2014  
 U.S. Non-Provisional Patent Application No. 14/826,541 filed on August 14, 2015  
 International Patent Application No. PCT/US2015/045199 filed on August 14, 2015  

  
For “COMPOSITIONS FOR AN INJECTABLE, IN SITU FORMING NEUROSCAFFOLD AND METHODS OF 
USING THE SAME”  
  

 Provisional Application No. 62/236,309 filed on October 2, 2015   
  

Epilepsy Patent Portfolio 

 

For “METHODS OF TREATING EPILEPSY OR SEIZURE DISORDERS”  
  

 U.S. Non-Provisional CIP Application No. 14/943,846 filed on November 17, 2015  
 International Patent Application No.  PCT/US2015/061066 filed on November 17, 2015  
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Regulatory Path, Clinical Studies, Manufacturing 
 
Our human studies will be performed at the Hospital for Special Surgery NYC, Hoag Orthopedic Institute, 
Mayo Clinic, OrthoCarolina, and the Cleveland Clinic.  These centers average a combined 1500+ surgeries 
per week and we only need 260 subjects for the first FDA approval. 

Clinical studies are 30 days, and submitted to the FDA within 90 days of first patient enrollment 

Phase I & II Combined= 160 or 8-arms in the study with 20 subjects per arm   

Phase III study= 100 subjects or 5-arms in the study with 20 subjects per arm 

All three clinical study phases for small nerve or large nerve approval is just 260 subjects for small OR large 
Nerve block approval.   

 The PixarBio executive team has experience doing the required tasks for FDA approval 
 Short human studies take just 30 days, lead to FDA approval in 2018 
 260 total patients required for FDA Approval for “small nerve, Nerve Blocks” 
 260 total patients are required for FDA approval for “large nerve, Nerve Block” 
 Nerve Block Approval for the entire Body requires about 520 subjects 
 Our first clinical trial site conducts over 500 surgeries per week 
 We’ll capture our patients quickly and submit results to the FDA within 90 days of starting the human study 
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NeuroRelease US FDA Regulatory Path: 505 (b)(2)   
  
 The Drug Carbamazepine and the Polymer PLGA were FDA approved in the 1960’s so PixarBio has a 

505 (b)(2) pathway through the US FDA.  The safety profiles for both PLGA and Carbamazepine are well 
known.  
 

 Live US FDA PIND meeting on September 30, 2015 confirmed our IND package and discuss our pathway 
to clinical studies in late 2017 and FDA approvals expected in 2018  
 

 NeuroRelease comprises PLGA, a FDA approved biomaterial in combination with Carbamazepine an 
FDA approved drug so safety profiles of our treatments are very well known and both suppliers have US 
FDA DMF’s Drug Master Files  
 

 Combined Phase I & II Clinical studies includes six arms with 20 patients in each arm, totaling 160 
patients per study and the clinical face-off is NeuroRelease vs. Bupivacaine. 
 

 Phase III clinical study include 8 arms with 20 patients in each arm totaling 160 patients 
 

 The obvious benefit of using FDA approved components for a drug delivery system is our safety profile 
and safety data is excellent.  
 

 Rapid Clinical study turnaround:  clinical post-op pain studies have low enrollment numbers of 20 subjects 
in a study arm and the studies will complete in 30 days.  PixarBio will complete multiple clinical studies for 
multiple products every year   
 

 Our cGMP facility and it will be online in Q1:2017 to support 2017 and 2018 clinical studies.  
 

Forecasted US FDA 505 (b)(2) Regulatory Path For NeuroRelease Pain absent expedited review, which we 
expect to be approved in 2018  
 
2016-2017 Build out cGMP Facility, Submit & Receive IND approval, initiate clinical studies   

2018                Submit NDA to FDA for 14 Day, expect FDA approval for 14 Days 

2019  Submit IND for 3-Day “sprinkle 0n”; submit IND for 90- Day NeuroRelease  

2020  Receive FDA approval for 3-Day “sprinkle On”, 90 day pain product 

 

PixarBio Clinical Study Requirements 
 
 PixarBio expects two product labels from the FDA 
o Small Nerve Label-one is for small nerve, nerve blocks 
o Large Nerve Label- two is for large nerve, nerve blocks 

 

 Led by PixarBio founder Frank Reynolds, a Harvard trained in the management of clinical studies 
researcher, Mr. Reynolds has been involved with clinical studies for over 25 years and led Clinical Affairs 
at InVivo Therapeutics Corp for almost 8 years 

 The two labels will allow PixarBio to market NeuroRelease for nerve blocks around the entire body 
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 505(b)(2) pathway allows the small nerve and the large nerve clinical studies have the same exact clinical 
study trial design 

 PixarBio Discussed clinical study design with the FDA at Sept 2015 PIND Meeting  
 
 
Shoulder/Knee Surgery--Small Nerve/Large Nerve Clinical Phases I & II Combined 
 

 

The 505(b)(2) pathway permits PixarBio to combine phases I & II because our components of the 
NeuroRelease system have been found to be non-toxic for over 50 years 

 

Shoulder/Knee Surgery--Small Nerve/Large Nerve Phase III Study 

 

 

We are frequently asked about why the Phase III study at 100 subjects is small compared to other phase III 
human studies that investors typically evaluate.   
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The answer is quite simple our components have 50 years of safety data so large sample size numbers aren’t 
required to get statistical significance on the data.  In addition, PixarBio pre-clinical data is binary at 99.99999 
reliability has been so powerful that large numbers of human subjects in each arm are NOT required. 

Pacira’s Exparel also had 20 patients in each arms of the studies.  

 

PixarBio cGMP Manufacturing 

PixarBio expects to manufacture 10,000,000 units per year for each facility.  Pacira Exparel 
manufacturing has been limited to under 1,000,000 units per year 

PixarBio CEO Frank Reynolds has patented and led cGMP manufacturing for over a decade.  At InVivo 
Therapeutics Frank led pre-clinical and clinical cGMP manufacturing from the founding of InVivo until his 
retirement in August 2013.   

It’s rare that a Pharma CEO also has cGMP manufacturing experience but that’s the benefit of 20 years of 
relevant university study at some globally renowned institutions, such as Penn Engineering, MIT, Harvard, 
Wharton, St Joseph’s, Temple University, Rider University, and Chestnut Hill College, THEN integrating formal 
education with a great mix of small and large company career experiences involving pharma in order to gain a 
complete range of skillsets to invent new medical treatments from concept to revenue generation. 

Frank Reynolds has designed and/or built cGMP clean rooms for combination drug/polymer products.  There 
isn’t a manufacturing process at PixarBio that Frank hasn’t patented and experience doing during his career.  
The Process flow is comprised of Pharma industry manufacturing equipment so the skill sets we need are 
available in the marketplace.  We’ve scaled our process from 365,000 units per year to 10,000,000 units per 
year, for each 100,000 square foot cGMP manufacturing facility. 

PixarBio Corporation will bring a cGMP pilot production facility online in 2017 to support IND/NDA enabling 
studies for NeuroRelease (14 day), including the production of clinical lots to support clinical trials.  Toward 
these ends, pilot production scale-up will occur over three phases, resulting in a projected maximum capacity 
of 365,000 units/year.   

Further, the pilot facility will be utilized to demonstrate the capability of manufacturing 10 times the initial batch 
size produced during the first scale-up phase.  This pilot production facility will be utilized to support the launch 
of NeuroRelease (14 day).  Additionally, this pilot production facility will subsequently be similarly utilized for 
initial scale-up and pilot production of other NeuroRelease pipeline products (e.g. 3 day and 7 day). 

Commercial production will be performed in a 100,000 ft2 facility equipped to manufacture the largest batch 
size demonstrated within the pilot production facility.  Based on the design of the commercial facility and 
3 shifts of operation, the projected maximum capacity of this facility is 10,000,000 units/year.  Bringing four of 
these commercial production facilities online will yield a projected capacity of 40,000,000 units/year to 
meet market demand.       
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Annual Manufacturing Production Capacity:  10,000,000 units per year from each 100,000 sq. foot 
manufacturing facility 

The final product is shipped to the end user after final product release from our sterilization partner, who also 
supports the processing of returned products. 

* * * * * 
 
The above information does not purport to be complete and is subject to continual and material change 

without notice.  For more information regarding the Company, or for a copy of our latest business plan, please 
contact us: 

 

 
PixarBio Corporation 

200 Boston Avenue, Suite 1875 
Medford, Massachusetts 02155 USA 

Telephone: (617) 401-0050 
E-mail: info@pixarbio.com 
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COMPETITION 

 
The competition to provide pharmaceutical-related products or services is vast and includes participants 

ranging from multi-national companies to local small businesses.  We may compete with any company, 
enterprise, government or NGO that provides products or services associated with pharmaceuticals. 
Specifically, however, we expect to compete primarily with the following alternative systems to pain 
management: 

 
Comparative Analysis: Exparel vs. PixarBio’s NeuroRelease 

 
The following side-by-side comparisons are noteworthy: 
 

PixarBio NeuroRelease 
 

Exparel 

• PixarBio’s NeuroRelease is biodegradable, and 
selectively blocks sensory fibers without impact 
on locomotion defended by patent pending 
protection until 2034. 
 

• We expect the treatment to reduce morphine 
intake, expedite the start of physical therapy, 
reduce costs of hospital stays, and the platform 
is not addictive. 
 

• Our pending patent protects PixarBio’s novel 
NeuroRelease drug delivery system for 
delivering a range of FDA approved neurological 
medicines, to treat post-op pain, acute and 
chronic pain. 

• FDA approved for single-dose infiltration into 
the surgical site to produce post-surgical 
analgesia. 
 

• Key Exparel patents expired in 2013. 
 

• Exparel blocks motor and sensory fibers. 

 
 

Material Characteristic NeuroRelease Exparel 
Rate of release – controlled and tunable X 
Stability X 
Diffusion-based release kinetics X X 
Degradation-based release kinetics X 
Ability to sustain release for >1 week X 
Stored as a powder 
Stored as an aqueous suspension 

X  
X 

Biodegradable (no residual) X 
Clearance by biodegradation X 
Clearance by RES X X 
Nerve block impacts motor X 
Nerve block impacts sensory X X 

 
 
Exparel’s liposomal system presents inherent challenges due to limits to its short-term release profile. Exparel 
storage as an aqueous suspension induces release of bupivacaine into the suspension media as the diffusion 
gradients approach equilibrium.  This causes fluctuations in duration of efficacy observed in the clinical 
administration of Exparel, as the half-life of bupivacaine is short-lived.  Thus, the use of Exparel results in less 
than 48 hours of effective pain treatment. 
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Critical Analysis: Bupivacaine 
 
Bupivacaine has the following limitations: 

• Therapeutically efficacious dose is high. 
• Primary mechanism of action is the blockade of the “open” state of voltage-gated sodium channels; 

both motor and sensory tracts are affected. 
• Effect on motor function is concentration dependent which restricts dosing. 
• Known nerve toxicity and cardiotoxicity. 

 
Critical Analysis: DepoFoam 
 
The liposomal drug delivery system (DepoFoam) has the following material limitations: 

• Little-to-no control over release rate due to diffusion-limited release kinetics. 
• Cannot achieve long-term, sustained delivery. 
• Liposomal membrane instability that translates to inconsistent release profiles because of the 

liposomal “popping mechanism.” 
• Not bioresorbable, so the residual material must be cleared either by the reticulo-endothelial system 

(RES) or by membrane fusion and lipid bilayer reorganization. 
• Average particle size is ~32 microns which restricts the selection of needle gauge for administration. 
• The fabrication technique necessitates storage as an aqueous suspension which causes great product 

stability and quality variations. 
 
 

USE OF PROCEEDS 

 
We intend to use the net proceeds received from this Offering for general working capital purposes, 

including, but not limited to, (i) direct and indirect costs of the development and operating of our business 
model and related expenses, (ii) research, development and marketing of pharmaceutical-related products, 
services, technologies, or other assets, (iii) legal, accounting, administrative, overhead, salaries, wages, 
marketing and similar or other costs and expenses associated with pursuing the Company’s business 
objectives, and/or (iv) any other purpose. 

 
While it is impossible to predict exact costs and the expenses necessary to conduct the business of the 

Company, the following tables estimates our management’s expected use of funds for the next 36 to 48 
months. 
 
This offering is targeting $20,000,000 - $30,000,000 by issuing common stock with the potential to raise 
an additional $45,000,000 through warrant conversions.   
 
FDA 505(b)(2) timelines permit management to utilize resources efficiently, so we do not expect to spend 
more than $50,000,000 to receive first product FDA approval for NeuroRelease pain.   
 
Investor often see the financial value of a warrant but there is great benefit to the management team, as the 
executive team doesn’t have to spend time raising cash.   
 
The warrants are expected to create $45mm in proceeds to fund further NeuroRelease development.  
Management may issue additional equity or debt to fund future R&D, and since 2005, PixarBio CEO has never 
done a down-round in his career of public fund raising. 
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Based on our experience, we believe that this offer of common stock and warrants, will provide the 
necessary funding to receive FDA approval of our first NeuroRelease product. 
 
Primary Use of Proceeds 
 
1) Bring on-line and staff our cGMP manufacturing facility 
2) Conduct clinical studies in 2017-2018 and submit FDA application in 2018 
 
 Pilot cGMP facility expected early 2017 facility to include 50,000 sq. feet of lab/office space in addition to 

the 20,000 Sq. ft. we have in Medford, MA, Cambridge, MA, Salem and Fort Lee NJ.  
 cGMP facility will house our cleanroom, equipped to produce products for clinical study treatment, R&D 

labs, and new global HQ  
 Fine tuning of the facility will require cGMP calibration and validation processes, to bring the cGMP facility 

online in 2017.    
 Complete the scale-up process from the bench to the pilot manufacturing line, to the production facility, 

we’ll need 3 process development engineers that will work with the R&D team to produce the product and 
generate SOPs.  

 
In Q1, 2017, the cGMP facility will hire:  
 VP of cGMP Manufacturing and Process Development  
 Four Manufacturing Engineers 
 20 technicians for fabrication  
 Four QA specialists  
 One QA Director - package the product for terminal sterilization of the product.    
 Sr. Analytical Chemist  
 Three analytical chemists for the QC team to support release of raw materials into the cGMP process, 

perform in process materials analysis, and perform lot testing for product release.  
 Facilities Manager to maintain labs, raw materials and supplies.  
 Shipping/receiving manager for finished product.  

 

 Q4'16-Q4'17 

HR & Payroll $12,568,352 

G&A  $4,420,615 

Plant & Facilities $13,916,879 

Ops/Supplies $3,240,399 

Total $34,146,244 
 
Total Investment to Date: $12.3M 
2015 monthly burn: $411,000 
Current monthly burn: $675,000 
2017 Forecasted monthly burn: $3,050,000 
 
This offering is targeting $20,000,000 - $30,000,000 by issuing common stock with the potential to raise an 
additional $45,000,000 through warrant conversions.   
 
The amounts and timing of our actual expenditures may vary significantly depending on numerous factors, 
including: 
 the extent to which the FDA may require us to perform additional clinical trials;  
 the timing and success of this offering;  
 the costs of our commercialization activities;  
 the cost and timing of expanding our facilities and purchasing manufacturing and other capital equipment 

for our product candidates;  
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 the scope, progress, results and costs of development for additional indications for our product 
candidates;  

 the cost, timing and outcome of regulatory review of our product candidates;  
 the extent to which we acquire or invest in products, businesses and technologies;  
 the extent to which we choose to establish collaboration, co-promotion, distribution or other similar 

agreements for product candidates;  
 the costs of preparing, submitting and prosecuting patent applications and maintaining, enforcing and 

defending intellectual property claims; and  
 any unforeseen or underestimated cash needs. 
 
We therefore cannot estimate the amount of net proceeds to be used for all of the purposes described above. 
We may find it necessary or advisable to use the net proceeds for other purposes, and we will have broad 
discretion in the application of net proceeds. 

 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY 

 
We currently utilize 9,200 square feet of office space in Medford and Cambridge, Massachusetts. In 2016, 

the Company added 5,000 sq. ft. of office space in Salem, NH and 5,000 sq. ft. of office space in Fort Lee, NJ 
and is currently negotiating a lease for an additional 65,000 sq. ft. of pilot manufacturing facility. 

 
 

MATERIAL AGREEMENTS 

 
The Company has entered into, will enter into, and/or is otherwise a party to various material contracts 

with affiliates and/or third parties. We will make copies of all such contracts available to you for inspection at 
our corporate offices in Medford, Massachusetts, at normal business hours or via electronic file sharing upon 
reasonable request. In some cases, some agreements may be redacted or withheld. We may also require you 
to enter into a confidentiality agreement as a condition. 

 
 

MANAGEMENT 
 
We are a Nevada corporation governed by a Board of Directors (the “Board”) and managed on a day-to-

day basis by officers appointed by the Board. Directors and officers serve until their successors have been 
duly chosen and elected. By way of majority vote or written consent, our Common Shareholders may remove 
the Board with or without cause. 

 
Our Board may fix the compensation of all Company officers. Pursuant to this authority, the Board may, by 

resolution, provide for Directors to be paid their expenses, if any, for attendance at each meeting of the Board, 
and may be paid a stated salary or a fixed sum as a Director for attendance at each meeting of the Board. No 
such payment shall preclude any Director from also serving as an officer of the Company or in any other 
capacity and receiving compensation therefrom. The Board may adopt incentive compensation plans in the 
form of Shares, stock options, warrants, etc., in the future for our management, directors, officers, consultants, 
advisors, employees or others. 
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Officers appointed by the Board shall conduct the operation and management of the Company’s business 
on a day-to-day basis on such terms and for such compensation as the Board shall determine. No officer is 
prevented from also holding a position as a Director concurrently. 

 
The biographies of certain of our key officers, directors, or other key personnel, consultants or advisors, 

are set forth below. 
 

The Leadership Team 
 

Frank Reynolds – CEO, CFO, CSO, Engineer, Chairman of the Board of Directors, and Co-founder 
Mr. Reynolds co-founded PixarBio Corporation after retiring from InVivo Therapeutics Corp (NVIV), a 

company he founded in 2005 and served as its Chairman of the Board, CEO, CSO, and CFO until his 
retirement in August 2013. In addition, he is a co-inventor on over 50 neurological biomaterials focused patent 
applications. His research has   been published in the Journal of Biomaterials and the Journal of 
Neuroscience: Methods. As lead inventor on the NeuroScaffold, Mr. Reynolds led the team to become the first 
and only team to achieve functional recovery after a spinal cord injury in all three required models for FDA 
approval (rodents, non-human primates and humans). Mr. Reynolds was nominated for the “2013 Boston 
Business Journal CFO of the Year”, and led InVivo Therapeutics to win the Boston Business Journal’s “2013 
Best Places to Work in Boston”. He was featured in the March 2010 and October 2009 issues of Inc. 
Magazine. He was awarded the 2010 Irish Life Science 50 Award by the President of Ireland, Mary McAleese. 
Mr Reynolds won the American Spinal Injury Association’s “2011 David F Apple Award for Excellence in 
Publishing” in spinal cord injury rehabilitation research.  Frank received the 2014 Irish Education 100 Award, 
and in March 2015 he received the 2015 IABCN “Taoiseach Award” or Prime Minister’s Award for Leadership, 
presented by Anne Andersen, Ireland Ambassador to the USA. The former Director of Global Business 
Development at Siemens, Mr. Reynolds was responsible for new business in over 100 countries. He has over 
30 years of executive management experience and was the founder and CEO of Expand The Knowledge, Inc. 
He is an Executive Board Member of the Irish American Business Chamber and has served on the board of 
the Special Olympics of Massachusetts, and Wharton Consulting Partners. Mr. Reynolds is also a member of 
the American College of Healthcare Executives, an international professional society of healthcare executives 
who lead hospitals, healthcare systems and other   healthcare organizations as well as a member of the 
American Psychological Association. Mr. Reynolds suffered a paralyzing injury to his spine in December 1992. 
In the following months he began years of graduate school with formal training in Neuroscience, providing the 
foundation for his neuroscience expertise. He holds an MBA from MIT-Sloan Fellows Program in Global 
Innovation and Leadership- Massachusetts Institute of Technology; a Master’s of Science in Engineering – 
University of Pennsylvania; he is an alumni of the Executive Masters of Technology Management – Wharton 
School of Business; a Master’s of Science in Management Information Systems – Temple University; a 
Master’s of Science in Health Administration – Saint Joseph’s University; and a Master’s of Science in 
Counseling Psychology – Chestnut Hill College. He also holds a Bachelor of Science in Marketing- Rider 
University. 

 
Robert S. Langer – Science Advisory Board Member and Co-Founder 

Dr. Langer is the David H. Koch Institute Professor at MIT and, as one of 14 Institute Professors, has 
received the highest honor that can be awarded to a faculty member. His research is at the interface of 
medicine – cancer in particular – and materials science and chemical engineering. Nanotechnology is a major 
focus area for Dr. Langer,   who is developing new nanoparticles to treat cancer and other diseases. 
Specifically, he designs polymer, lipid, and polymer-lipid hybrid nanocarriers for improved drug delivery, as 
well as similar controlled delivery systems for genetically engineered therapeutic proteins, DNA and RNA. Dr. 
Langer’s work also includes the creation of novel approaches for the engineering of new tissues and organs. 
Dr. Langer has authored more than 1,200 articles, and has more than 800 issued and pending patents 
worldwide. He served as a member of the FDA’s Science Board, its highest advisory board, from 1995-2002 
and as its Chairman from 1999-2002. Dr. Langer is one of very few people ever  elected to all three United 
States National Academies, and has received more than 220 major awards. Highlights include the U.S. 
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National Medal of Science, the U.S. National Medal of Technology and Innovation, the Charles Stark Draper 
Prize (considered engineering’s Nobel Prize), the Millennium Technology Prize, the Albany Medical Center 
Prize, the Priestley Medal (the highest award of the American Chemical Society) the Wolf Prize in Chemistry, 
and the Gairdner Foundation International Award. Forbes (1999) and Bio World (1990) named him as one of 
the 25 most important individuals in biotechnology in the world. Forbes (2002) selected Dr. Langer as one of 
the 15 innovators worldwide who will reinvent the future. Both TIME and CNN (2001) named Dr. Langer as 
one of the 100 most important people in America and one of the 18 top people in science or medicine in 
America. Dr. Langer earned a BS from Cornell University and a Sc.D. from the Massachusetts Institute of 
Technology both in chemical engineering, and    holds 20 honorary doctorates. 

 
Katrin Holzhaus – CAO, Director, and Co-founder 

Ms. Holzhaus co-founded PixarBio Corp as Chief Operating Officer, leveraging her 20 years of experience 
in operations, corporate development, program management, entrepreneurship and communications.  Having 
worked in the executive suite with PixarBio co-founder and CEO Frank Reynolds for almost 15 years she has 
had a front row view to revolutionary neurological R&D models that have led to breakthrough treatments for 
spinal cord injury and pain. Initially with Expand the Knowledge, InVivo Therapeutics Holdings Corp (NVIV), 
and now with PixarBio Corporation, Ms. Holzhaus brings complimentary leadership skillsets to PixarBio’s 
operations team and a proven record of success. At PixarBio, she oversees the company’s administrative and 
resource allocations including long- range financial planning and budgeting, finance, business and contractual 
services, research support, human resources, facilities planning and management, and management 
information systems ensuring accountability across the organization by measuring results under established 
SOP’s, systems, and metrics. A critical partner to the CEO, her career has been focused on operational 
execution, organizational design, application of technology to the business, and financial accountability.  As a 
key member of the management team she enables the organization’s rapid growth and development based on 
her strong track record of rapidly developing corporate capabilities. From 2004-2012, she was Director of 
Operations at Magnum Group, Inc., a leading global communications company supporting clients in the life 
sciences sector. Katrin Holzhaus received her MBA and MS in Management Information Systems from Temple 
University, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania and a Master of Arts from Leipzig University, Germany. 

 
Jason Criscione, PhD – Chief Technology Officer and Co-founder 

Dr. Criscione brings his immunotherapy drug delivery and materials science experience to design, 
develop, and clinically translate biomaterials for sustained, local therapeutic intervention in neurological 
indications. Winner of the “PixarBio Inventor of the Year” Dr. Criscione brings over a decade of drug delivery 
and materials science expertise to PixarBio. Dr. Criscione leads the discovery, development, GMP scale-up, 
and clinical translation of versatile drug delivery platforms designed to treat a myriad of neurological 
conditions, including acute, post-operative, and chronic pain. Dr. Criscione received his PhD in Biomedical 
Engineering from Yale University and his research lies at the interface of materials science, immunotherapy 
and medical imaging and is published in peer-reviewed, scientific journals, including, Nature Materials, 
Biomaterials, JACS and ACS Nano. He also holds a BA in Chemistry with a concentration in Neuroscience 
from Oberlin College, a MS in Physical Chemistry from Michigan State University, and a MS in Biomedical 
Engineering from Yale University. 

 
Haining Dai – Director of Preclinical Neuroscience 

Mr. Dai is an accomplished neuroscience researcher with over 30 years in industry and the Dept. of 
Neuroscience Georgetown.  He was awarded the American Spinal Injury Association’s “2011 David F. Apple 
Award for Excellence in Publishing” in spinal cord injury rehabilitation.  Having worked with Frank Reynolds 
since 2007, Mr. Dai and Mr. Reynolds formed the core team of scientist conducting non-human primate 
studies while developing the NeuroScaffold. Mr. Dai has extensive experience in small animal surgery, 
behavioral training, testing, data collection and subsequent tissue processing for light microscopy (LM) 
histological analysis and electron microscopic (EM) tissue preparation, sectioning, and stereological analysis. 
He led effort on the Capital Area Rehabilitation Research Network grant that encompasses many aspects of 
spinal cord injury and recovery of function in the animal and human models. 
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David Kaplan, Chief Commercial Officer 
At PixarBio, David will take ownership of the commercial marketing and sales strategy in successfully 

bringing NeuroRelease™ to market. He will take ownership of the customer and the customer interface with 
the company’s product and service offering, making sure that all functions of the organization are aligned to 
meet its strategic commercial objectives. 

David brings over two decades designing and running nationally recognized hospital-based sales teams 
focused in the areas of surgery, oncology and critical care. He has an extensive background bringing first-in-
class therapies from Phase III to product launch, working at such innovative companies as Corixa, PDL 
BioPharma and Pacira. David has also held significant positions in the areas of corporate training, sales 
operations and marketing. 

David received his BS in Marketing from Arizona State University in Tempe. 
 

Ken Stromsland, CIO/Investor Relations 
Ken is responsible for PixarBio Corporation’s overall strategy for enterprise information technology (IT), 

including business engagement, solution development and support, and infrastructure, while also supporting 
the company’s strategy for drug discovery and development. 

Ken’s primary focus is to maintain the data and communications systems of the corporation and to set the 
technological direction for the company while maximizing end user satisfaction. He implements and maintains 
FDA CFR21 Part11 compliant policies and best practices across the organization.  He creates and executes 
the data/com strategy to advance corporate objectives of R&D advancement for a range of neurological 
conditions including acute and chronic neurological pain, Parkinson’s disease, epilepsy, and spinal cord 
injuries. He proposes budgets for programs and projects, purchases and upgrades equipment, supervises 
computer specialists and IT workers, and sponsors all IT‐related projects. 

Ken has more than 20 years of experience as an innovative and transformative business leader in 
Financial Services, previously at the Managing Director level with TD Ameritrade, with the majority of that 
experience from multiple Senior Executive level roles at Citi, where he was recognized for several years in the 
company’s high potential talent leadership program. He began his career in the Pharmaceutical industry with 
Johnson & Johnson, where he won Achieving Excellence awards for his efficiency advancements in the 
manufacturing process. 

Ken is a proven leader who combines a Master’s level education from the Wharton Business School & 
Penn Engineering with a total commitment to excellence, resulting in significant achievements in IT, 
Operations and Marketing. He has excellent business acumen and has driven diverse project teams and direct 
reports globally to execute on plan. He has proven to be a strong delivery leader with the ability to execute in 
complex environments and effectively develops relationships with key business partners while managing 
diverse stakeholder interests. He is recognized as a key influencer up, down and across his organizations, 
gaining buy-in and sponsorship for organizational wide transformational programs 
 

Steve Chartier, VP of Regulatory Affairs 
Steve has over 20 years industry experience developing Regulatory and Clinical programs that have 

resulted in more than 25 regulatory submissions and approvals of novel technologies. He has built and 
maintained worldwide compliant Quality Systems. Over this period, he has significantly contributed to bringing 
novel drugs and devices to market in the areas of Oncology, Wound Care, Autoimmune, Anti-Infective and 
Cardiovascular diseases. 

Prior to joining PixarBio, Steve spent time managing Regulatory, Quality, Manufacturing and Clinical 
departments at Biogen IDEC, Infraredx, and Nucryst Pharmaceuticals. He also worked in Program 
Management and Laboratory Research at Beth Israel Deaconess Medical Center and Dana Farber Cancer 
Institute. 

Steve holds a BA in Psychology from Saint Anselm College, and earned his RAC certification from the 
Regulatory Affairs Professional Society. 
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Mary Phelan, CPA, Controller 
Mary Phelan, CPA, joined the Company in January 2016 as Controller, with 20+ years of progressive 

hands-on accounting and reporting experience in compliance with SEC, GAAP and SOX regulations primarily 
in the pharmaceutical and medical technology industries. 

She is an expert in the compilation of financial statements and has extensive experience in financial 
reporting, debt and equity financings as well as mergers and acquisitions.  Ms. Phelan has held key financial 
management positions throughout her career. Ms. Phelan most recently served as Controller, Principal 
Accounting Officer and acting Principal Financial Officer for Mela Sciences in Irvington, NY, a medical device 
company listed on the NASDAQ. 

Prior to that, Ms. Phelan worked as Controller and Principal Accounting Officer at Alteon Inc., a publically 
traded biotechnology company specializing in cardiovascular diseases. Ms. Phelan began her CPA career in 
1996 at KPMG LLP in Short Hills, NJ in their manufacturing, retail and distribution audit practice. 

 
 

Scientific Advisory Board 
 

Robert S. Langer, ScD 
Robert S. Langer is the David H. Koch Institute Professor at MIT and, as one of 14 Institute Professors, 

has received the highest honor that can be awarded to a faculty member. His research is at the interface of 
medicine – cancer in particular – and materials science and chemical engineering. Nanotechnology is a major 
focus area for Dr. Langer, who is developing new nanoparticles to treat cancer and other diseases. 
Specifically, he designs polymer, lipid, and polymer-lipid hybrid nanocarriers for improved drug delivery, as 
well as similar controlled delivery systems for genetically engineered therapeutic proteins, DNA and RNA. Dr. 
Langer’s work also includes the creation of novel approaches for the engineering of new tissues and organs. 

Dr. Langer has authored more than 1,200 articles, and has more than 800 issued and pending patents 
worldwide. He served as a member of the FDA’s Science Board, its highest advisory board, from 1995-2002 
and as its Chairman from 1999-2002. 

Dr. Langer is one of very few people ever elected to all three United States National Academies, and has 
received more than 220 major awards. Highlights include the U.S. National Medal of Science, the U.S. 
National Medal of Technology and Innovation, the Charles Stark Draper Prize (considered engineering’s Nobel 
Prize), the Millennium Technology Prize, the Albany Medical Center Prize, the Priestley Medal (the highest 
award of the American Chemical Society) the Wolf Prize in Chemistry, and the Gairdner Foundation 
International Award. Forbes (1999) and Bio World (1990) named him as one of the 25 most important 
individuals in biotechnology in the world. Forbes (2002) selected Dr. Langer as one of the 15 innovators 
worldwide who will reinvent the future. Both TIME and CNN (2001) named Dr. Langer as one of the 100 most 
important people in America and one of the 18 top people in science or medicine in America. Dr. Langer 
earned a BS from Cornell University and a Sc.D. from the Massachusetts Institute of Technology both in 
chemical engineering, and holds 20 honorary doctorates. 

 
Neel Mehta, MD 

Dr. Mehta leads one of the largest pain center in the United States. He is currently the Medical Director of 
Pain Medicine at the Weill-Cornell Pain Medicine Center, and New York Presbyterian Hospital, overseeing 
outpatient and inpatient services together with a large team of dedicated Pain and Regional Anesthesia 
Physicians. Dr. Mehta is both board-certified in Anesthesia, and fellowship trained, board- certified in 
Interventional Pain Medicine. Pain is one of the most common reasons people consult a physician, yet it is 
often inadequately treated. Dr. Mehta's goals are to optimize pain control, enhance functional ability as well as 
physical and psychological well-being, and quality of life. He focuses on, but is not limited to, musculoskeletal 
pain of the back, neck, and joints, neuropathic disorders, and cancer pain. His clinical interests lie in the 
minimally invasive procedures to treat musculoskeletal pain, including various types of injections, intrathecal 
pump therapy, Spinal Cord Stimulation, and the MILD(C) Procedure (Minimally Invasive Lumbar 
Decompression) for Spinal Stenosis. 
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Brian Block, MD, PhD 
Dr. Block is a Partner at Pain Medicine Specialists, PA. Dr. Block is also the President at Baltimore Spine 

Center. He is a specialist in treatment of chronic pain. Dr. Block treats chronic pain using drug therapies and 
interventional techniques such as spinal cord stimulators, intrathecal drug pumps, epidural injections, and 
facet denervations. His interests include use of spinal cord stimulation and postoperative epidural analgesia as 
well as chronic pain syndromes such as spinal stenosis, degenerative disk disease, and cancer pain. 

 
Steven Cohen, MD 

Dr. Cohen is the Professor of Anesthesiology and Physical Medicine & Rehabilitation at the Johns Hopkins 
School of Medicine and the Uniformed Services University of the Health Sciences. He also serves as the 
Director of the Blaustein Pain Treatment Center at Johns Hopkins, and as the Director of Pain Research at 
Walter Reed National Military Medical Center. Over the last five years, he has been one of the most prolific 
pain researchers, authoring over 250 peer-reviewed articles in some of the most prestigious journals such as 
Lancet, BMJ, Annals of Internal Medicine, Archives of Internal Medicine, Cecil Textbook of Medicine, and New 
England Journal of Medicine. The sacroiliac joint RF denervation he pioneered is used all over the world. Dr. 
Cohen is perhaps the most respected authority on pain management for combat injuries, having lectured all 
over the world on the topic, and briefed cabinet-level officials throughout government. 

 
Amitabh Gulati, MD 

Dr. Gulati is an anesthesiologist and pain medicine physician practicing in New York City. He is Director of 
Chronic Pain, specializing in interventional cancer pain management, at Memorial Sloan Kettering Cancer 
Center. He received his medical degree from Baylor College of Medicine, completed his anesthesiology 
residency at Emory University School of Medicine, and obtained his pain management fellowship diploma from 
Weill Cornell School of Medicine in 2007. Dr. Gulati completed his acupuncture certification at the Helms 
Medical Institute in 2007, and is licensed to practice in the state of New York. He is a faculty member of the 
Weill Cornell pain management fellowship in New York City, as the Director of the Weill Cornell Pain Medicine 
Fellowship. He regularly gives lectures and teaches at workshops on topics involving ultrasound guided pain 
procedures, sympathetic blocks in cancer pain management, and non-invasive neuromodulation techniques. 
His current research involves the use of High Intensity Focused Ultrasound (HIFU) for the treatment of 
neuropathic pain and the use of both Platelet Rich Plasma and transcutaneous electrical nerve stimulation 
(TENS) for pain management and functional improvement in the cancer pain population. 

 
Amer Khalil, MD 

Dr. Amer Khalil serves as Director of Spine Surgery and Assistant Professor of Neurological Surgery at the 
Department of Neurological Surgery at the University of California, Irvine. A Neurosurgeon with specialty in 
complex and minimally invasive spine surgery, he completed his residency in Neurosurgery at Cleveland Clinic 
Foundation in Cleveland, then he underwent combined neurosurgery-orthopedic spine surgery fellowship at 
New England Baptist hospital in Boston, and a research fellowship in Spinal Cord Injury at InVivo Therapeutics 
in collaboration with Massachusetts Institute of Technology in Boston under the mentorship of Robert S. 
Langer, Sc.D. conducting preclinical trials of neuroscaffolds implantation in injured spinal cord of rats that lead 
to first-in-human clinical trial.  

Dr. Khalil also held fellowship positions in Neurosurgery at Harvard affiliated hospitals, Boston Children’s 
Hospital and Brigham and Women’s Hospital in Boston, MA. He earned his Doctor of Medicine degree at 
University of Jordan Medical School in Amman, Jordan. Dr. Khalil is an active member of the American 
Association of Neurological Surgeons (AANS), Congress of Neurological Surgeons (CNS), AO Spine 
foundation and several other societies. Dr. Khalil has special interest in innovative therapies and technologies 
to improve the health of patients. 
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Clinical Advisory Board 
7 of the 20 knee/hip society members in USA 
Nationally Recognized Ortho Surgeons & Anesthesiologists 
 
James T. Caillouette, MD 

Dr. Caillouette is a Board Certified Orthopedic Surgeon who specializes in Adult Reconstructive Surgery. 
He performs over 500 joint replacements annually as well as approximately 120 knee arthroscopies. He is 
Chairman of Newport Orthopedic Institute; a 25-physician group based in Newport Beach, California and was 
a founder of and was elected to serve as the founding Surgeon in Chief/Chief of Staff for Hoag Orthopedic 
Institute, a joint venture orthopedic specialty hospital that opened in 2010. He has served on the Board of 
Managers of the Institute since inception. He has been a member of the Board of Directors of the American 
Association of Hip and Knee Surgeons, the Western Orthopedic Association and is past President of the 
California Orthopedic Association, the largest state specialty society in the United States. 

Dr. Caillouette has been involved in the research, design, development and commercialization of 
numerous orthopedic devices dating to 1989, including a novel ultrasonic cement removal system, two 
separate hip prostheses, software and instrumentation for Computer Assisted Knee Surgery, as well as the 
instrumentation and design for a next generation total knee system, the Attune, that was introduced and 
marketed globally by DePuy/Johnson&Johnson in 2013. He continues to work on new products for the Attune 
and is also consulting for Conformis for a new hip replacement surgical method. He holds eleven US patents 
as co-inventor for biomedical products and methods and has two patents pending. Dr. Caillouette has served 
as an instructor of orthopedic surgeons in the US and internationally and continues to teach surgical 
techniques in both hip and knee replacement regularly. 

Dr. Caillouette has been involved in multiple entrepreneurial endeavors. He founded and raised the 
venture capital for Advanced Osseous Technologies in 1989 to develop an ultrasonic PMMA removal system 
and tools for revision total joint arthroplasty. This technology has become a standard for these procedures. 
After helping to guide the R&D, FDA approval, development of a manufacturing site and sales ramp up, he 
subsequently sold the biotech company to Biomet in 1992. He remained a consultant to the company until 
1995. He has been a designer surgeon and consultant to DePuy/J&J since 1996. 

In addition to health care, Dr. Caillouette has a passion for education. A Phi Beta Kappa graduate with a 
major in economics from Trinity College in Hartford, Connecticut, he has served as a Trustee at the primary, 
high school and college levels. He was a founder of Sage Hill School, Orange County’s first independent non-
denominational high school, and served as the founding Chairman of the Board of Trustees for the first seven 
years of the institution. He has been recognized by the California Orthopedic Association with The Founder’s 
Award for innovation in healthcare delivery and was recently awarded the Alumni Achievement Award by 
Trinity College in 2014. In 2015 he was honored as the Joan and Andy Fimiano Endowed Chair in Orthopedic 
Surgery at Hoag Hospital-the institution’s first chair in Orthopedic Surgery. 

His current area of focus is health care economics and re-designing orthopedic care delivery. He was 
recently elected by the Hoag Hospital Board of Trustees to serve as a founding board member of St. Joseph 
Hoag Health- an affiliation of 7 not for profit hospitals in Orange County and the High Desert with annual 
revenues of over $3 billion dollars. He has been actively involved in health care policy nationally, with 
particular focus on bundled and global payment initiatives and has co-written a monograph for the American 
Academy of Orthopedic Surgeons on the changing care delivery and payment models in the US in an effort to 
educate surgeons on the impact of macroeconomics on patient care in the US marketplace. In late 2014, 
Harvard Business School published a case study of Hoag Orthopedic Institute. 

Dr. Caillouette’s brief overview of bundled payment was published by The Journal of Arthroplasy in 2015. 
He was a founding faculty member along with Professors Kevin Bozic, James Weinstein, Michael Porter and 
others of the annual “Volume to Value” national seminar for the American Academy of Orthopedic Surgeons. 
He is a founding member of the Executive Committee of the California Joint Replacement Registry, serves as 
an advisor to the Osteoarthritis collaborative of the International Consortium of Health Outcome Measures 
founded by Harvard Business School and The Karolinska Institute and was recently added to the founding 
board of directors of the National Orthopedic and Spine Alliance along with the leaders of The Cleveland 
Clinic, The Rothman Institute, OrthoCarolina and CORE. This combination of exposure and responsibility in 
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healthcare, as well as formal training in economics, creates a unique informed perspective on healthcare 
innovation and care delivery. 
 
Mark Pagnano, MD 

Dr. Mark Pagnano is Professor and Chair of the Orthopedic Division at Mayo Clinic in Rochester, 
Minnesota.  He has a special focus on knee and hip replacements.  He currently serves on the board of 
directors of The Knee Society and is a member of the American Academy of Orthopaedic Surgeons.  In 
addition to his clinical practice, Dr. Pagnano has conducted research on knee-related topics and has over 100 
publications in professional journals, such as the Journal of Bone & Joint Surgery.  Dr. Pagnano earned his 
medical degree at George Washington University School of Medicine in Washington, D.C., and completed his 
residency in orthopedic surgery at Mayo Clinic.  His additional training includes a fellowship in knee 
reconstruction at Insall-Scott-Kelly Institute for Orthopaedics and Sports Medicine, based in New York City. 

 
Douglas Padgett, MD 

Dr. Douglas Padgett is the Chief of the Adult Reconstruction and Joint Replacement Service at Hospital 
Special Surgery in New York City. Dr. Padgett enjoys his role as surgeon, educator and researcher, and is 
dedicated to exploring the cutting edge of medicine for his patients. While clinical outcomes and biomaterials 
research have been his main focus, two fields of current interest are robotic surgery and deep vein thrombosis 
prevention. He has authored over 90 research papers and co-authored the medical text book, “Atlas of Total 
Hip Replacement”. 

Dr Padgett has received numerous awards and accolades. Among them, he has received the Philip D 
Wilson Research award three times for innovative clinical and translational research. He is a recipient if the 
Otto Aufranc Award for Outstanding Research from the Hip Society as well as the Outstanding Research 
Poster Award from the American Association of Hip and Knee Surgeons. He has been named Educator of the 
Year given by the fellows at Hospital For Special Surgery as well as receiving designation as a Best Doctor 
and Super Doctor in New York the past 5 years. He has been the Harris Keynote speaker at Harvard Medical 
School, the Badgley Visiting Professor at the University of Michigan and was recently named the Chitranjan S. 
Ranawat Chair in Adult Reconstruction at Hospital For Special Surgery. 

Dr. Padgett was a resident in orthopedic surgery at Hospital for Special Surgery and subsequently 
performed a one-year postdoctoral fellowship at The Rush Presbyterian Medical Center in Chicago in Adult 
Reconstructive Surgery of the hip and knee. 
 
Scott M. Sporer, MD 

Dr. Sporer is an Associate professor at Rush University Medical Center and specializes in hip, knee, and 
joint replacement. He has special interests in primary and revision arthroplasty surgery, including the anterior 
approach to hip replacement, and minimally invasive techniques. 

A medical graduate from the University of Iowa College of Medicine, Iowa City, Iowa, Dr. Sporer 
completed his residencies at Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center in Lebanon, New Hampshire, and 
Connecticut Children’s Medical Center in Hartford. In addition, he served as an adult reconstruction fellow at 
Rush University Medical Center in Chicago. He is Board Certified to the American Board of Orthopedic 
Surgery. 

Dr. Sporer is currently on the board of directors for The American Joint Replacement Registry and the 
American Association of Hip and Knee Surgeons. His areas of research include long-term follow-up studies of 
the hip, complications associated with total knee replacement, and the regional variation in medicine. 
 
Bryan Springer, MD 

Dr. Bryan Springer is the Fellowship Director at OrthoCarolina Hip & Knee Center in Charlotte. His practice 
focuses on primary and revision total hip and knee replacement. 

In addition to his clinical research that has resulted in over 75 peer-reviewed publications and over 20 
book chapters, Dr. Springer has received numerous awards including recently named by Orthopedics This 
Week as one of the Top 22 North American Knee Surgeons. He is a member of the prestigious Knee Society 
and Hip Society as well as President of the Musculoskeletal Infection Society. He completed the John Insall 
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traveling fellowship in 2008. Dr. Springer is also on the Board of Directors for the American Joint Replacement 
Registry as well as the Board of Directors for the American Association of Hip and Knee Surgeons (AAHKS) 
where he serves as Education Chair. He is on the editorial boards for four scientific journals, including the 
Journal of Arthoplasty, Clinical Orthopaedics and Related Research, Journal American Academy of 
Orthopaedic Surgeons, and Journal of Knee Surgery. 

Dr. Springer completed his Orthopedic Surgery Residency at Mayo Clinic in Rochester, MN and his Adult 
Reconstruction of the Hip and Knee Fellowship at Harvard School of Medicine, Brigham & Women’s Hospital. 
 
Gregory Hickman, MD 

Dr. Hickman is an anesthesiologist and Medical Director of the Andrews Institute Ambulatory Surgery 
Center, which is affiliated with the Andrews Institute for Orthopedics & Sports Medicine in Gulf Breeze, FL.  His 
clinical interests include ultrasound guided regional anesthesia for post-operative analgesia and post-operative 
pain management.  Dr. Hickman is Board-certified in Anesthesiology and Pain Medicine.  Dr. Hickman is co-
founder of the popular ultrasound-guided regional anesthesia education website, www.blockjocks.com.  From 
his role at the Andrews Institute as well as through his nationwide speaking/consulting work, Dr. Hickman 
conveys a broad understanding of regional anesthesia issues in diverse practice settings. 

 
Brandon Winchester, MD 

Dr. Winchester is the regional anesthesia fellowship director at the Andrews Institute for Orthopedics & 
Sports Medicine.  In Dr. Winchester’s previous roles, he served as Assistant Professor of Anesthesiology at 
both Duke University Medical Center and the University of North Carolina.  Following his education he took on 
a transitional intern role at Boston University Medical Center and later finished a residency in anesthesiology 
at both Massachusetts General Hospital and Duke University Medical Center.  Dr. Winchester is co-founder of 
the popular ultrasound-guided regional anesthesia education website, www.blockjocks.com.  Through social 
media, international speaking engagements and at The USRA Skills Course, Dr. Winchester is acclaimed for 
his ability to impart his knowledge of nerve block skills. 

 
Kris J. Alden, MD  

Dr. Kris Alden is a fellowship-trained, board-certified orthopedic surgeon who specializes in hip and knee 
replacement. Dr. Alden was part of the exclusive MD/PhD program at the University of Illinois at Chicago, 
where he was awarded the Kate and Michael Barany award for research and scholarship.  

Following medical school, Dr. Alden trained in all aspects of orthopaedic surgery at the prestigious John 
Hopkins Hospital. He subspecialized in hip and knee reconstruction at the Mayo Clinic where, as a fellow-in-
training, he worked with some of the top surgeons in the country. 

Dr. Alden continues his passion for athletics. He was a member of the men’s varsity swim team at the 
University of Chicago. During his senior year he was recognized for his leadership, scholarship, and character 
with the Amos Alonzo Stagg medal. He garnered numerous accolades in swimming, including being a 4-time 
NCAA All-American inductee, NCAA National Champion, 4-time University Athletic Association Champion, and 
varsity and conference record holder. For his swimming achievements he was inducted into the University 
Athletic Hall of Fame in 2005. 

During his postgraduate work, Dr. Alden was an award-winning researcher. His academic pursuits were 
published in numerous peer-reviewed journals and he has authored multiple book chapters related to 
orthopaedic surgery. As a practicing surgeon, Dr. Alden has lectured on and trained other surgeons in novel 
and complex joint reconstruction techniques across the United States, as well as North America and Europe. 

Dr. Alden focuses his current practice on lower extremity reconstruction, including primary joint 
replacement, complex joint revision, limb salvage, and knee osteotomy procedures. He specializes in direct 
anterior hip replacement surgery, knee replacements, revision surgeries, and other lower extremity complex 
joint replacement procedures. He practices with a group of surgeons in his community, Hinsdale Orthopedic 
Associates that draws patients from all over the Chicagoland area. 
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Michael Meneghini, MD  
Michael Meneghini is an Associate Clinical Professor and Director of Adult Lower Extremity Fellowship in 

the Department of Orthopedic Surgery at Indiana University School of Medicine.  Dr. Meneghini’s orthopedic 
practice is specialized to adult hip and knee reconstruction, which includes total hip and knee replacement, 
complex revision hip and knee replacement, unicompartmental or partial knee replacement and minimally 
invasive surgical techniques.  Dr. Meneghini has a special interest in clinical and biomechanical orthopedic 
research.  He has authored over 70 research papers and is on faculty for numerous teaching courses 
nationwide on hip and knee replacement. 

In addition to being a member of the prestigious Knee and Hip Society, Dr. Meneghini is the sole recipient 
of the Indiana University School of Medicine Early Career Achievement Award presented to alumnus within 15 
years of graduation in honor of distinguished career achievement in medical profession.  He was also named 
in 2014 by Orthopedics This Week, “Top 22 Knee Surgeons in North America” and in 2013, Orthopedics 
Today awarded him, “Top 40 Leaders in Joint Replacement:  Generation Next”. 

Dr. Meneghini completed his Orthopedic Surgery Residency at Rush University Medical Center in Chicago 
and his Hip and Knee Replacement Fellowship at Mayo Clinic in Rochester, Minnesota. 
 
John Camp, MD 

Dr. John Camp is the Chairman of the Department of Anesthesiology at Carolinas Medical Center, one of 
the top five largest hospital systems in the nation.  Dr. Camp has significant experience in regional anesthesia, 
managing one of the largest regional anesthesia programs in the nation.  He has well over thirty publications 
and presentations focused in the areas of pain management and continues to be a guest lecturer at 
universities and medical centers throughout the nation.  Dr. Camp consults with numerous companies in 
advancing the field of pain management and regional anesthesia. Dr. Camp received his medical degree from 
Jefferson Medical College in Philadelphia, Pennsylvania and completed his anesthesiology residency at 
Wilford Hall Medical Center in San Antonio, Texas. 
 
Moeed Azam, MD 

Dr. Azam is a shareholder physician at US Anesthesia Partners, the nation’s leading provider of 
anesthesiology and pain management services with more than 2,000 clinicians serving healthcare facilities in 
Florida, Texas and Colorado. He serves on the national Clinical Quality Committee and IT committee. Dr. 
Azam has served on the Clinical Governance Board and the Board of Directors of JLR Medical Group, a 200 
clinician practice covering the Florida Hospital System. His responsibilities included business 
development/M&A, marketing, and an operational focus. From a clinical operations perspective he has in-
depth involvement of several strategic initiatives including: Blood Management, Regional Anesthesia, and IT. 
Dr. Azam developed corporate collaborations with several industry partners for education, training, and 
research. 

Dr. Azam joined JLR Medical Group after completing his anesthesiology residency training at The Johns 
Hopkins Hospital and a medical internship at University of Miami’s Jackson Memorial Hospital. He has served 
as the Director and Chief of Liver Transplant Anesthesiology since the program’s inception at Florida Hospital 
over a decade ago. Dr. Azam also serves as the Chief of Anesthesiology for Physicians’ Surgical Care Center 
with specialized skill in regional anesthesia procedures for ambulatory surgical patients of the Jewett 
Orthopedic Clinic. He has facilitated in program development for the fully outpatient total joint replacement 
program. 

Dr. Azam graduated from Rutgers University – New Jersey Medical School. He is board certified in 
Anesthesiology and an Assistant Professor at the University of Central Florida College of Medicine. 

 
Anthony G. Sanzone MD 

Dr. Sanzone strives to provide superior orthopaedic care in a compassionate environment and to make a 
positive, meaningful difference in the health of the individuals whom he treats. 

Dr. Sanzone is a Fellow of the American Academy of Orthopaedic Surgery and is board certified by the 
American Academy of Orthopaedic Surgeons. He received his undergraduate degree from the University of 
California San Diego and continued his orthopaedic education at Boston University where he completed his 
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residency. Dr. Sanzone specialized in orthopaedic traumatology by completing a fellowship at the University of 
Washington at Harborview Medical Center.  

Currently in private practice in San Diego and Chula Vista (Eastlake area), Dr. Sanzone maintains an 
academic relationship with UCSD Medical School and is a staff member of the Department of Orthopaedics. 
Dr. Sanzone is the co-founder of San Diego Orthopaedic Trauma Fellowship and actively instructs a fellow on 
the discipline of fracture care. He is a member of the Orthopaedic Trauma Association, California Orthopaedic 
Association and Western Orthopaedic Association. He is on staff at hospitals throughout San Diego County. 
 

James Mueller, MD 
Dr. James Mueller is a private practice anesthesiologist affiliated with Medical City Dallas Hospital in 

Dallas, TX.  He is board certified in anesthesiology with significant training and lecturing in regional anesthesia 
throughout the nation.  He received his medical degree from Medical University of South Carolina College of 
Medicine.  He completed his fellowship at Medical College of Virginia Hospital. Dr. Mueller is a national 
speaker for various companies in the areas anesthesia and postsurgical pain. 
 

Ajay Suman, MD 
Dr. Ajay Suman was born and raised in Houston, TX and currently resides in New York City. He is board-

certified by the American Board of Anesthesiology in Anesthesiology and Pain Medicine. 
Dr. Suman currently is the Medical Director of Pain Management at St. Barnabas Hospital in the Bronx, 

NY. His experience stems from his intense fellowship training at Texas Tech University’s Pain Management 
Department. 

After fellowship, Dr. Suman was then recruited to Tripler Army Medical Center, where he helped create the 
interdisciplinary pain department, working with active duty soldiers being air evacuated directly from 
Afghanistan and Iraq. He has had extensive experience treating patients ranging from chronic lower back pain 
to severe neuropathic pain syndromes from the trauma of war with Spinal Cord Stimulation. 

Dr. Suman worked in Capitol Hill on Healthcare Policy through Boston Scientific’s Healthcare Policy 
Fellowship, served as the Hawaii State President of ASIPP, as well as implemented a successful business 
plan to create a profitable department at his current hospital. He has a unique experience in the business and 
politics of medicine that he is excited to share with fellows and future Pain Physicians. 

 
* * * * * 

 
We intend to recruit additional officers, directors, consultants, advisors, and other key personnel as we 

continue to grow. Consequently, the above list is subject to change and supplementation from time to time 
without notice. 
 
 
Subsidiaries 

 
We may elect to own and operate certain assets through one or more wholly- or partially-owned LLC 

subsidiary entities in which case our Board of Directors and officers will serve as managers of the same (See 
“Description of Business”). 
 
Control of the Company 

 
Ultimate control over the business affairs, policies, and actions of the Company resides with the Common 

Shareholders (holders of Shares) who have the power to vote and appoint the Board of Directors. Each 
Common Shareholder’s vote shall be determined by the number of Shares owned at the time of the vote in 
question. 
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Management 
 
It is the duty of our officers and directors (collectively, our “management”) to carry out the expressed 

purpose and objectives of the Company, including coordination and communication with the Shareholders and 
the various tasks associated with being officers or directors of a corporation pursuant to our Bylaws and 
applicable law. 

 
Our officers and directors shall exercise their best efforts and its ordinary and customary business 

judgment and practices in managing the affairs of the Company.  Our officers and directors shall not be liable 
or obligated to the Shareholders for any mistake of fact or judgment made by them collectively or individually 
in operating the business of the Company which results in any loss to the Company or the Shareholders and 
shall be indemnified therefrom. 

 
Our officers and directors do not in any way guarantee the return of any investor’s capital or the return of a 

profit from the operations of the Company, nor shall they be responsible to any Shareholder or other person 
because of a loss of their capital contribution, a loss of their investment, or a loss in operations. 

 
Subject to the specific provisions of our Bylaws (see the Exhibit section of this Memorandum), our officers 

and directors shall have power and authority to take such actions deemed necessary, appropriate, customary 
or  convenient in regard to normal management activities and the conduct of the daily business operations and 
affairs of the Company. 

 
Books and Records 

 
We shall keep just and true books of account and all other records at the principal place of business 

location of the Company and shall make these books and records available to Shareholders during normal 
business hours or via electronic file sharing provided reasonable advance notice is given.  The books and 
records shall include, but shall not be limited to, the designation and identification of any property (real, 
personal, and mixed) in which the Company owns a legal or beneficial interest, including any property for 
which the title has been recorded or is maintained. 

Shareholders and their designated agents are authorized to visit our principal place of business, provided 
reasonable advance notice is given, to copy these records, in whole or in part, at their own expense. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, we may withhold any information we deem to be a trade secret or in which we 
reasonably believe we may suffer competitive disadvantage or economic harm or in order to ensure the 
privacy of our Shareholders. 

 
Accounting 

Upon request we will provide each Shareholder with information reasonably necessary to reflect their 
investment. 

 
Company Bank Accounts 

 
All Company funds shall be deposited in our own name or that of one of our affiliates in an account or 

accounts maintained at a national or state bank selected for convenience. 
 

Updates 
 
We will endeavor to furnish you with periodic updates as deemed appropriate but not less frequently than 

annually.  During special situations or periods of heightened activity, updates may be issued on a more 
frequent basis as appropriate. 
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Common Stock Forward Split as of August 6, 2016 
 
As of August 6, 2016, the Company effected a forward split of its authorized common stock of 

approximately 2.07:1.  All current common stock holdings and equity based awards will be multiplied by this 
factor of 2.07, and the current market value of our common stock has been reduced by this same 2.07 factor, 
from $3.00 to $1.45. Total investment value remains the same.  So, for example, if you owned 1,000 shares at 
$3.00 your current investment would be $3,000.  Now you will own 1,000 x 2.07 or 2,070 shares at a market 
value of $1.45 or that same $3,000 in total value with a minor rounding factor that will be taken into account 
(see below). 

 

 
 

Management, Director and Officer Compensation 
 
The Company may pay cash and other forms of compensation to each of our management team, officers 

and directors or their affiliates as independent contractors for executive management services, general 
business management services, administration services, investor relations services, marketing services, legal 
or accounting services, etc. (See “Compensation”). 
 
Reimbursement of Certain Expenses Incurred 

 
Our employees, advisors, consultants, officers, and directors are entitled to reimbursement for the 

reasonable, direct, out-of-pocket expenses incurred while acting for or on behalf of our Company including, but 
not limited to, all legal, accounting, travel, and other similar expenses. 

 
Company Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management 

 The Company has updated all common stock amounts and equity based awards for a forward split of 
approximately 2.07:1 pre-money. 

 The Company’s total common stock issued rose from 33,520,034 pre-split to 69,443,144 post-split. 
 The Company’s equity-based awards, which includes stock options, rose from 8,716,000 pre-split to 

18,056,856 post-split. 
 
The following table sets forth certain information with respect to beneficial ownership of our outstanding 

Shares of Common Stock as of the date of this Memorandum for (i) each director of the Company; (ii) for each 
executive officer of the Company and (iii) each person, business entity, or trust known to the Company to be 
the beneficial owner of more than five percent (5%) of the outstanding Shares of the Company. 

 
Name of Beneficial 

Owner (1)(2)(6) 
Title of Class Amount and Nature of 

Beneficial Ownership 
(1) 

Percentage of 
Ownership (1)(2)(3)(4) 

 

Frank Reynolds Common 48,533,064 55.47% 

Robert Langer Common 12,615,280 14.42% 

 

 

Market Total Market Total

Value Shares Investment Value Shares Investment

3.00$                  1,000 3,000$               1.45$                  2,069 3,000$              

Pre‐split  Post‐split
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FOOTNOTES: 

(1)  Beneficial ownership is determined in accordance with the rules of the U.S. Securities and Exchange 
Commission (the “SEC”) and generally includes voting or investment power with respect to securities. These 
amounts include the effect of equity-based awards as if they were fully vested. 

(2)  Each other beneficial owner owns less than 5% of the outstanding securities of the Company. 

(3)  Percentage based on an estimated total of 87,500,000 Common Shares outstanding (basic) as of the 
date of this Memorandum. See “Capitalization and Indebtedness”. 

(4)  Subject to dilution or change upon the issuance of new Shares or Stock Options (see “Dilution”). The 
Company has authority to issue up to a maximum of 150,000,000 Shares. 

(5)  See “Compensation”. 

(6)  The Company has issued approximately 12.8M Stock Purchase Options and 5.3M Restricted Stock 
Shares to employees and consultants out of an authorized stock-based award Pool of 25,000,000 Shares. 
Said Stock Options are subject to a 4-year vesting schedule and have strike or exercise prices ranging from 
between $.005 and $1.45 per Share.  Restricted stocks are subject to vesting based on certain Company 
milestones. 

 
 

COMPENSATION 

 
Our management and/or their affiliates will be paid in connection with their management of Company 

affairs. Such persons are also eligible for reimbursement for general and administrative costs and expenses, 
including, but not limited to, travel, legal, accounting, overhead, due diligence, market research, and pre-
acquisition research costs and other expenses in connection with the pursuit of the Company’s objectives (See 
“Estimated Use of Proceeds”). Such persons may receive salaries and equity or other forms of compensation 
out of the proceeds of this Offering or from our revenue, capital, or other Company assets for services 
performed on behalf of the Company. Such services may include, but are not limited to, legal, accounting, 
marketing, overhead, investor relations, communications, administrative support, etc. Such compensation 
terms may not have been negotiated at arms length. See “Conflicts of Interest”. 

 
As of the date of this Memorandum, we’ve negotiated the following compensation arrangements with our 

management: 
 

Name Position(s) Summary of 2016 Compensation Terms 
Frank Reynolds CEO, CFO, CSO,  

Engineer, 
Chairman of the Board 

Base Salary: $645,000 
Bonus Target Payout based on milestones: 
$400,000 
414,000 Stock Options 

Katrin Holzhaus CAO, Director Base Salary: $245,000 
Bonus: Up to 20% of base salary 
103,500 Stock Options 

Jason Criscione CTO Base Salary: $350,000 
Bonus: Up to 100% of base salary 
1,035,000 Stock Options 
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These terms are subject to substantial adjustments and material change without notice and do not purport 
to be complete. Other substantial and material compensation terms may be negotiated with management, 
other persons, advisors, consultants, new hires, etc., subsequent to the date on the cover of this Memorandum 
(See “Conflicts of Interest”).  For updated compensation terms of our management, please contact us. 

 
 

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 

 
Our management may act in a similar capacity for other unaffiliated concerns.  Our management’s 

capability to satisfy its obligations to the Company could be adversely affected by such other involvements. 
Certain services to be provided to the Company, such as legal, accounting, engineering, analysis, consulting, 
marketing, and technical services may be performed by affiliates or related parties of the Company’s 
management. While such services will be performed at rates believed to be comparable to rates charged by 
other independent non-affiliated concerns for similar services, there can be no assurance of this.  Also, there is 
the likelihood that if our anticipated activities are not ultimately profitable, that such affiliates or related parties 
may still realize profits even though you do not realize the same such profit. Conflicts of interest may arise for 
our management, consultants, affiliates, and others associated with the Company by way of contract.  Such 
individuals, either directly or indirectly, may provide like services to other concerns. In addition, certain 
consultants, advisors, and members of our key personnel, management, and their affiliates are presently 
engaged in other companies or ventures. 

 
Each of our management team may be engaged in other business endeavors, may commit themselves to 

other entities, and are not obligated to contribute any specific number of hours per week to the Company’s 
affairs. If the other business affairs of our management require them to devote more substantial amounts of 
time to such affairs, it could limit their ability to devote time to the affairs of the Company, which could have a 
negative impact on our ability to operate efficiently. 

 
In addition, our management may become affiliated with other entities engaged in pharmaceutical-related 

businesses. Additionally, our management may become aware of business opportunities which may be 
appropriate for presentation to the Company as well as the other entities with which they are or may be 
affiliated. Due to their existing affiliations, our management may have fiduciary obligations to present potential 
business opportunities to those entities before presenting them to us, which could cause additional conflicts of 
interest. We cannot assure you that these conflicts will be resolved in our favor. 

 
Also, certain personnel may have personal, family or other relationships with each other. Such non-

business relationships could give rise to issues not otherwise present. 
 
Our management will be indemnified by the Company and authorized to obtain D&O (directors and 

officers) liability insurance paid for by the Company. 
 
All of these activities and factors may result in conflicts of interest. 
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

 
Transactions between the Company and individuals or entities related to our principals can cause conflicts 

of interest to arise. Such related parties have interests that may differ in certain respects from our interests and 
those of yours. You should recognize that relationships and transactions of the kinds described below involve 
inherent conflicts between your interests and/or that of the Company and those of the parties related to our 
principals, and that the risk exists that we will not always resolve such conflicts in a manner that favors you or 
us. In addition, other transactions or dealings may arise in the future that could cause conflicts of interest. In 
our name or through our affiliated entities, and in connection with the operation of our various business 
activities, we have entered into or are otherwise party to contracts or transactions with related parties. To 
review copies of any such contracts or agreements (some or all of which may be subject to redaction to 
preserve confidential information), please contact us. 

 

BYLAWS 

 
The Company and our Shareholders are governed by our Bylaws. You are urged to read our Bylaws, a 

copy of which is attached to this Memorandum as an Exhibit in its entirety. Please consult with your own legal 
and financial advisors regarding the legal and financial effects upon you of the Bylaws which are incorporated 
herein by reference. 

 

DESCRIPTION OF SECURITIES 

 
Shares of Common Stock 

 
The Shares of Common Stock (the “Shares”) have standard voting rights and are entitled to share in 

dividends when or if declared by the board of directors subordinate to any preferred shares and provided the 
Company’s debts and other obligations have been satisfied and/or are current. 
 
Voting Rights 

 
Shares of Common Stock have voting rights (i.e., one (1) vote per Share).  For a more complete 

description of voting rights, see the Company’s Bylaws attached hereto as an Exhibit. 

DESCRIPTION OF STOCK OPTION INCENTIVE PLAN 

 
We have adopted an employee stock option incentive plan and award stock and stock options to our 

management and personnel in accordance with such plan.  Pursuant to our current incentive plan, a pool of up 
to 25,000,000 stock options may be issued to Company employees, personnel, advisors, and/or our 
management on terms to be determined by our Board of Directors (See “Dilution” and “Capitalization and 
Indebtedness”). Presently we have issued 12,765,758 Options pursuant to this plan. 
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CAPITALIZATION AND INDEBTEDNESS 

 
Capitalization of the Company 

 
The Company is authorized to issue up to 150,000,000 Shares of Common Stock (the “Shares”) without 

nominal or par value. All Shares are subject to dilution. Our Board of Directors is authorized to create and 
issue Shares in one or more series and to fix, by resolution or resolutions, the voting powers, designations, 
preferences, limitations, restrictions and relative rights of each series to be issued. 

 
The table below sets forth (i) the number of Shares outstanding both before and after the offering 

(presuming the total number of Shares offered hereunder are subscribed), and (ii) no additional Shares and/or 
stock options are issued and subsequently exercised pursuant to our stock option incentive plan. 

 
Type and 
Class of 
Security 

 

Number 
Issued Prior 
to Offering 

 

Beneficial 
Ownership 

Prior to 
Offering 

(1)(2) 

 

Number 
Issued After 

Offering 
(3)(4) 

Beneficial 
Ownership 

After 
Offering 

(1)(2)(3)(4) 

Number 
Issued Fully 

Diluted If 
Issued 
Stock 

Options are 
Exercised 

(3)(4) 

Beneficial 
Ownership 
Fully 
Diluted If 
Issued 
Stock 
Options Are 
Exercised 
(1)(2)(3)(4) 

Current 
Common 

Issued 

69,443,144 100.00% 69,443,144 87.41% 87,500,000 89.74% 

Offering New 
Common 

Shares (3) 

0 0.00% 10,000,000 12.59% 10,000,000 10.26% 

TOTALS 69,443,144 100.00% 79,443,144 100.00% 97,500,000 100.00% 

 
FOOTNOTES: 
(1) We have adopted an employee incentive plan and award stock and/or stock options to our 

management and personnel in accordance with such plan.  Pursuant to our current incentive plan, up to 
25,000,000 Shares or stock options may be issued to Company employees, personnel, advisors, and/or our 
management on terms to be determined by our Board of Directors. Presently the policy of the Board is to issue 
Shares and stock options that vest over a four (4) year period at an exercise or strike price of $1.45 per Share. 
In the event such Shares and/or options are issued and/or exercised, such will have a material dilutive effect 
upon your ownership in the Company (See “Dilution”). 

 
(2) 12,765,759 Stock Options and 5,291,099 Restricted Stocks have been issued out of the 25,000,000 

Share-Based Equity Pool, leaving 6,943,142 available. 
 
(3) Subsequent to the date of this Memorandum, we may seek capital on terms that may be different from 

the terms set forth herein. Such issuance of new equity and/or debt securities by the Company would, among 
other things, possibly have a material, dilutive effect upon your ownership in the Company (See “Dilution”). 

 
(4) Presumes placement of all Shares offered through this Memorandum and the issuance of no 

additional stock options, shares, or other incentives. In reality, we expect for our current stock option incentive 
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plan to continue. This Offering may close at any time prior to the placement of any such securities at any time 
for any or no reason. 

 
Company Indebtedness 

 
As of December 31, 2015, we had approximately $463,000 in long-term debt and other liabilities.  Please 

refer to our financial statements attached to the Exhibit section of this Memorandum. 
 

DILUTION 

 
“Dilution” represents the difference between the Offering price of an equity security and the net book value 

of such security.  “Net book value” is typically the amount that results from subtracting the total liabilities of a 
company from its total assets. As of December 31, 2015, the estimated combined net book value of the 
Company was approximately $1,982,925 or $0.11 per Share on a fully-diluted basis (See our financial 
statements attached hereto in the Exhibit section of this Memorandum). Presuming placement of all Shares 
offered hereby (which may or may not occur) (See “Capitalization and Indebtedness”), and presuming no 
material change in our net book value between December 31, 2015, and the date of this Memorandum, you’ll 
likely suffer significant and material dilution of at least $0.20 or more per Share you purchase in this Offering. 
Initial investors in the Offering will be exposed to greater risk of dilution. You may suffer significant and 
material dilution while our management, founders, and others may receive a corresponding beneficial increase 
in the value of Shares held by them. Also, we have adopted an employee stock option plan and award Shares 
options to our employees and managers in accordance with such plan.  According to the plan, up to 
25,000,000 equity-based awards can be issued to Company employees and our management on terms to be 
determined by our Board of Directors. In the event such awards are issued and exercised, such will have 
additional material dilutive effect upon your ownership in the Company. Subsequent to or concurrent with the 
closing of this Offering we may seek to raise additional capital through the issuance of additional debt or equity 
to new investors on terms that may be different from the terms set forth in this Memorandum. Such issuance of 
new equity and/or debt securities by the Company would likely have a further material dilutive effect upon your 
ownership in the Company. (See “Capitalization and Indebtedness”, “Compensation”, and “Conflicts of 
Interest”). 

 

PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION 

 
On a limited basis – and to accredited investors only – we are offering Shares of our Common Stock (the 

“Shares”) in accordance with the terms of this Offering Memorandum (this “Memorandum”). 
 
This Offering is being made only to “accredited investors” or other sophisticated investors (See “Who May 

Invest”) pursuant to Sections 4(a)(2), 4(a)(5), and/or Rule 506(b) of Regulation D promulgated under the 
Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Act”), and/or other applicable federal and state law exemptions from 
registration (this “Offering”). 
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TRANSFER RESTRICTIONS 

 
The securities described in this Memorandum are considered “restricted securities” as such term is 

defined under federal and state securities laws, and cannot be subsequently sold or transferred without 
registration or reliance, to the satisfaction of counsel for the Company, that an exemption from registration is 
available.  The Shares shall bear a restrictive legend to this effect. You should be aware that no market for the 
Company’s securities presently exist and there can be no assurance that a market will ever materialize. 

 

FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

 
Our financial statements for the Company through December 31, 2015, are included in the Exhibit section 

of this Memorandum. 
 

CERTAIN U.S. INCOME TAX CONSIDERATIONS 

 
TO ENSURE COMPLIANCE WITH TREASURY DEPARTMENT CIRCULAR 230, INVESTORS ARE 

HEREBY NOTIFIED THAT (A) ANY DISCUSSION OF FEDERAL TAX ISSUES IN THIS MEMORANDUM IS 
NOT INTENDED OR WRITTEN TO BE RELIED UPON, AND CANNOT BE RELIED UPON, BY INVESTORS 
FOR THE PURPOSE OF AVOIDING PENALTIES THAT MAY BE IMPOSED ON INVESTORS UNDER THE 
INTERNAL REVENUE CODE; (B) SUCH DISCUSSION IS INCLUDED HEREIN BY OUR COMPANY IN 
CONNECTION WITH THE PROMOTION OR MARKETING (WITHIN THE MEANING OF CIRCULAR 230) BY 
THE COMPANY OF THE TRANSACTIONS OR MATTERS ADDRESSED HEREIN; AND (C) INVESTORS 
SHOULD SEEK ADVICE BASED ON THEIR PARTICULAR CIRCUMSTANCES FROM AN INDEPENDENT 
TAX ADVISOR. 

 
IF YOU ARE CONSIDERING SUBSCRIBING FOR THIS OFFERING, WE URGE YOU TO CONSULT 

YOUR OWN TAX ADVISORS CONCERNING THE PARTICULAR U.S. FEDERAL INCOME TAX 
CONSEQUENCES TO YOU OF THE PURCHASE, OWNERSHIP, AND DISPOSITION OF OUR 
SECURITIES, AS WELL AS ANY CONSEQUENCES TO YOU ARISING UNDER STATE, LOCAL, AND NON-
U.S. TAX LAWS. 

 
PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS SHOULD ONLY CONSIDER AN INVESTMENT IN OUR COMPANY 

BASED ON REASONS INDEPENDENT OF THE TAX CONSEQUENCES OF SUCH INVESTMENT. TAX 
ADVANTAGES (I.E., DEDUCTIONS AND LOSSES) ARE NOT A SIGNIFICANT OR INTENDED FEATURE 
OF AN INVESTMENT IN OUR COMPANY. 

 
We are a “C-Corp” for tax purposes. Neither we nor our management, advisors, lawyers, accountants, or 

other representatives make any representation or otherwise provide any tax advice concerning acquiring our 
securities. By acquiring our securities, you represent and warrant that you have consulted your own tax 
advisor concerning our securities and you are not relying upon us or any of the other persons listed in this 
paragraph, above. 
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LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 

 
As of the date of this Memorandum, we are not a party to any litigation. We may become parties to 

litigation in the normal course of business or may become subject to other administrative proceedings. The 
Company and/or certain affiliates have been and/or may continue to be subject to investigation and/or 
regulation from federal and/or state government agencies at any time and from time to time. As such matters 
tend to be fluid by their very nature, details regarding any such matter may be made available upon request 
subject to the advice and consent of counsel. We do not believe that the ultimate resolution of any such matter 
will have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results of operations. However, the 
results of any such matter cannot be predicted with certainty and we cannot assure you that the ultimate 
resolution of any such legal or administrative proceeding or dispute will not have a material adverse effect on 
our business, financial condition and results of operations. We are presently unaware of any active material 
legal proceedings, regulatory or otherwise, that may have an impact on our prospective activities provided we 
are able to continue to raise capital. 

 

SELECT DEFINITIONS 

 
The following are definitions of words or terms that are used in this Memorandum whether or not such 

terms are capitalized. However, it is not a comprehensive list. If there are words or terms used in this 
Memorandum that are not understood, please contact us or seek out professional advisors or counsel. 

 
“Accredited Investor” is defined under Regulation D promulgated under the Securities Act and includes: (i) 

any person who had an individual income in excess of USD $200,000 in each of the two most recent years, or 
joint income with that person’s spouse in excess of USD $300,000 in each of those years, and has a 
reasonable expectation of reaching the same income level in the current year; (ii) any person whose individual 
net worth (not including the value of their primary residence), or joint net worth with that person’s spouse, at 
the time of his purchase exceeds USD 

$1,000,000; (iii) any organization, business trust, or partnership, not formed for the specific purpose of 
acquiring the interests offered, with total assets in excess of USD $5,000,000; and (iv) any entity in which all 
equity owners are Accredited Investors. 

 
“Act” refers, depending upon the context, to Chapter 78 of Nevada Revised Statutes, as amended, and/or 

the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. 
 
“Affiliate” means any Person that directly or indirectly controls, is controlled by, or is under common control 

with the Person in question. As used in this definition, the term “control” means the possession, directly or 
indirectly, of the power to direct or cause the direction of the management and policies of a Person, whether 
through ownership of voting securities, by contract or otherwise, or to hold or to control the Holder of 10 
percent or more of the outstanding voting securities of such Person. 

 
“Articles” or “Articles of Incorporation” mean the articles or certificate, as may be amended, restated, or 

supplemented from time to time, filed with the Nevada Secretary of State or other equivalent authority in order 
to form or continue the Company. 

 
“Board of Directors” or “Board” or “Directors” mean the directors appointed by the Common Shareholders 

to such body. Such Persons shall be vested with all rights, powers, privileges and indemnity as directors under 
the Act and are responsible for appointing other officers to serve as the Company’s management. 
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“Bylaws” means, unless the context requires otherwise, the Company’s governing bylaws as they may be 
adopted, amended, supplemented or restated from time to time. 

 
“Certificate of Determination” means a certificate authorized by the Board setting forth the voting powers, 

designations, preferences, limitations, restrictions and relative rights of a series or class of preferred or 
common stock or other Company security to be issued. 

 
“Class” refers to a type of equity security whose voting powers, designations, preferences, limitations, 

restrictions and relative rights are established by the Articles, Bylaws, and/or the Board of Directors as the 
case may be. 

 
“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as from time to time amended and in effect. 
 
“Common Stock” means one or more Shares of the capital stock of the Company as provided for in the 

Act, Articles and/or Bylaws or applicable corporate resolution. 
 
“Company” means PixarBio Corporation, a Nevada corporation, its successors and/or assigns. 
 
“Consent” means the written consent of a Person, or the affirmative vote of such Person at a meeting 

called or via written consent, as the case may be, to do the act or thing for which the consent is solicited, or 
the act of granting such consent, as the context requires. 

 
“Indemnitee” means any Person involved in the management of the Company including the Board of 

Directors, any Person who is or was an Affiliate of such Persons, any Person who is or was an officer, director, 
advisor, consultant, employee, agent, trustee, partner, member, manager, or shareholder of such persons or 
any such Affiliate, or any Person who is or was serving at the request of the Board of Directors or 
management or any such Affiliate as a director, officer, employee, partner, member, manager, agent or trustee 
of another Person; provided that a Person shall constitute an “Indemnitee” only with respect to acts, omissions 
or matters deriving from or relating to the business, operations of the Company. 

 
“Investor” means a subscriber of the Company’s Shares. 
 
“Management” means the officers appointed by the Board to run the day-to-day business of the Company, 

but also includes any director, advisor, consultant, employee, agent, trustee, partner, member, manager, etc., 
who has a role in managing the affairs of the Company. 

 
“Memorandum” means the document utilized by the Company to disclose risks, describe its proposed 

activities, and explain the terms of the Offering of Shares to prospective Investors. 
 
“Offering” refers to the offering of the Company’s securities made pursuant to applicable federal and state 

law exemptions from registration via the Memorandum. 
 
“Person” means an individual or a corporation, limited liability company, partnership, trust, estate, 

unincorporated organization, association or other business enterprise. 
 
“Public Event” means an event in which the Company enters into any merger agreement or adopts a plan 

in which the Company or its successors or assigns is to become listed or quoted on an established securities 
market or exchange or become readily tradable on a secondary market (or the substantial equivalent thereof). 

 
“Record Date” means the date established by the Board of Directors for determining the identity of 

Shareholders entitled to vote or take action or entitled to exercise rights in respect of any other lawful action of 
Shareholders. 
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“Redemption” refers to the right of the Company to buy back or redeem any of its issued securities, if 

applicable. 
 
“Regulations” means the income tax regulations promulgated under the Code, as from time to time 

amended and in effect (including corresponding provisions of succeeding regulations). 
 
“Roll-Up” means a transaction involving the acquisition, merger, conversion, or consolidation, either 

directly or indirectly, of the Company and the issuance of securities of a roll-up entity. 
 
“Roll-Up Entity” means a partnership, trust, corporation, limited liability company, or other entity that would 

be created or survive after the successful completion of a proposed roll-up transaction. 
 
“Shareholder” means an Investor that holds one or more Shares. “Share(s)” mean(s) the Common Stock 

of the Company. 
“Subscription” means the consideration that an Investor has agreed to convey to the Company in 

exchange for the Shares. 
 

“Subscription Agreement” means the agreement attached to the Memorandum by way of exhibit whereby 
Investors agree to subscribe for the Company’s Shares on terms as outlined in the Memorandum. 

 
 

WHERE TO OBTAIN MORE INFORMATION 

 
Throughout this Memorandum, reference is made to certain information either not contained in this 

document or else attached hereto by way of exhibit. This Memorandum does not purport to be complete. You 
are encouraged to meet with our management and ask questions and receive answers about our current plans 
and operations and for further information regarding matters referenced herein. 

 
If you or your advisors would like additional information regarding the Company or our objectives, please 

contact us: 
 

 
PixarBio Corporation 

200 Boston Avenue, Suite 1875  
Medford, Massachusetts 02155 USA  

Telephone: (617) 803-8838 
E-mail: info@pixarbio.com 

 
 
 

[THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 
 
 



EXHIBIT A 
 
 

COPY OF ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION AND BYLAWS 
 
 

 
PixarBio Corporation 

200 Boston Avenue, Suite 1875  
Medford, Massachusetts 02155 USA  

Telephone: (617) 803-8838 
E-mail: info@pixarbio.com 

 
This section alone does not constitute an offer by the Company or its affiliates. 

An offer may be made only by an authorized representative of the Company and the recipient must 
receive a complete Memorandum, including all Exhibits. 

  



ROSS MILLER 
Secretary of State 
204 North Carson Street, Suite 4 
Carson City, Nevada 89701-45'20 
(775) 684-5708 
Website: www .nvsos.gov 

Articles of Incorporation 
(PURSUANT TO NRS CHAPTER 78) 

USE BLACK INK ONLY - DO NOT HIGHLIGHT 

1. Name of 'PTXAR BIO CORPORATION 
Corporation: 

·- .. 

I 11111111111111111111111111111111 
"<MOIOI* 

Filed in tl1e office of Document Number 

,~AL_ 20130568146-66 
Filing Date and Time 

Ross Miller 08/29/2013 6: 18 AM 
Secretary of State Entity Number 
State ofNe\·ada E0421922013-8 

(This document wa& filed electronically.) 
ABOVE SPACE IS FOR OFFICE USE ONLY 

: 

.. .. .. .. ....... ... 

2. Registered [iJ Commercial Registered Agent: UtHTED STATES CORPORATION AGENTS, INC. 
. .. .. 

Agent for Service Name 

of Process: (check D Nonoorrmercial Registered Agent OR D Office or Position with Entity 
only one box) (name and address below) (name and address below) 

Name ot Noncommercial Registered Agent OR Narrui o1 litle o1 Office or Olher Position wilh Entity 
.. .. 

· Nevada ' 
Stree1 Address City _z.ip Code .. . .. .. 

Nevada . .. ... . . . 
Mailing Address ~1 different 1rom street address) City Zip Code 

3. Author ized Number of 

Stock: (number o1 Numberol shares 

shares corporauon is shares with Par value without . 
au·honzed to issue) par value: 3000 per share:$ 0 .01 par value: 0 ..... 

4. Names and : 
. .. 

1) FRANCI S M REYNOLDS 
Addresses of the .. ... .. .. 

Name 
Board of 

><• .. .. .. .. . . ... .. 
8 1 LAKE SHORE RD. :SALEM ml i ,03079 

Olrectors!Trus1ees: .. . ..... . .... ... .. .. .. . .. ... . ... . .... .. 
(each D1rectorffrustee S1reet Address City State Zip Code 

... .. 
mus1 be a na1ural person 2) : 

at least 18 years of age: . . . . .. .. . . .. .. 
anach addi~onal page rt Name . . . . .. 
more than two 
directors/trustees) 

.. 
Street Address C11y S1ate Zip Code 

5. Purpose: (optional: The purpose of the corporation shafl be: .. : 
see instructions) ANY LEGAL PURPOSE 

6. Name, Address x and Signature of ;FRANCIS M REYNOLDS FRANCIS M REYNOLDS 

lncorporator: (anach Name lncorporll1or Signature 
additional page rt more 

81 LAKE SHORE RD. SALEM NH 03079 than one 1ncorporator) 
Address C,ty State Zip Code 

7. Certificate of I hereby accept appointment as Registered Agent for the above named Entity. 
Acceptance of 
Appointment of x UNITED STATES CORPORATIOll AGENTS, INC. 8/29/2013 
Registered Agent: 

Authorized Signature of Registered Agen1 or On Behalf of Registered Agent Entity Dale 

This form must be accompanied by appropriate fees. 
Novada Socretary of State NRS 78 Art1clos 

Revised +10·09 



ROSS MILLER 
Secretary of State 
204 North Carson Street, Suite 1 
Carson City, Nevada 89701-4520 
(775) 684-5708 
Website: www.nvsos.gov 

Certificate of Amendment 
(PURSUANT TO NRS 78.385 AND 78.390) 

USE BLACK INK ONLY - DO NOT HIGHLIGHT 

I llllll 111111111111111111111111111111111 
•090201• 

ABOVE SPACE IS FOR OFFICE USE ONLY 

Certificate of Amendment to Articles of Incorporation 
For Nevada Profit Corporations 

(Pursuant to NRS 78.385 and 78.390 - After Issuance of Stock) 

1. Name of corporation: 

Pixar Bio Corporation 

2. The articles have been amended as follows: (provide article numbers, if available) 

1) Article 1. The name of the Corporation is changed to the following: PixarBio Corporation 

2) Article 3. The number of authorized shares specified in Section 3 is amended as set forth below: 

Number of 
shares with 
par value: 60,000,000 

Par Value 
per share: $0.01 

Number of 
shares 
without 
par value: 0 

3. The vote by which the stockholders holding shares in the corporation entitling them to exercise 
a least a majority of the voting power, or such greater proportion of the voting power as may be 
required in the case of a vote by classes or series, or as may be required by the provisions of the 
articles of incorporation* have voted in favor of the amendment is: 100% 

4. Effective date and time of filing : (optional) Date: Time: 
(must not be later than 90 days after the certificate is filed) 

5. Signature: (required) 

*If any proposed amendment would alter or change any preference or any relative or other right given to any class or series of 
outstanding shares, then the amendment must be approved by the vote, in addition to the affirmative vote otherwise required, of 
the holders of shares representing a majority of the voting power of each class or series affected by the amendment regardless to 
limitations or restrictions on the voting power thereof. 

IMPORTANT: Failure to include any of the above information and submit with the proper fees may cause this filing to be rejected. 

Tl1is form must be accompanied by appropriate fees. Nevada Secretary of State Amend Profit-After 
Revised: 8-31-11 



I llllll 111111111111111111111111111111111 

BARBARA K. CEGAVSKE 
Secretary of State 
202 North Carson Street 
Carson City, Nevada 89701-4201 
(775) 684~708 
Website: www.nvsos.gov 

Certificate of Amendment 
(PURSUANT TO NRS 78.385 AND 78.390) 

Filed in the office of 
~K~ 
Bnrbnra K. Cegavske 
Secretary of State 
State of Nevada 

Document Number 

20160162760-61 
filing Date and Time 

04/11/2016 6:06 AM 
Enllty Number 

E0421922013-8 

USE BLACK INK ONLY - DO NOT HIGHLIGHT ABOVE SPACE IS FOR OFFICE USE ONLY 

Certificate of Amendment to Articles of lncorooration 
For Nevada Profit Coroorations 

(Pursuant to NRS 78.385 and 78.390 - After Issuance of Stock) 

1. Name of corporation: 

1PixarBio Corporation 
____ _J 

2. The a~icle:~ ~~';'~ __ bee~ amended as !~llows: (provide article numbers, _if available)_~--_ 

'The number of authorized shares specified in Section 3 is amended as set forth below: 

!Number of 
shares with 
par value: 100,000,000 

Par Value 
per share: $0.01 

Number of 
shares 
without 
par value: $0 

I 

! 
I 
I 
I 
I 

I 
, __ _,_,, ___ . ,, _____ -·--·--------···· ·--·-·--·--·-------··-·---· __ _________ __] 
3. The vote by which the stockholders holding shares in the corporation entitling them to exercise 
at least a majority of the voting power, or such greater proportion of the voting power as may be 
required in the case of a vote by classes or series, or as may be required by the provisions of the 
articles of incorporation* have voted in favor of the amendment is:i ·· b.~i<l~r~ of 87.4o/~ of the sh~res l 
4. Effective date and time of filing: (optional) Date: : Time: I J 

(must not be later than 90 days after the certificate is filed) 

5. Signature: (required) 

IMPORTANT: Failure to include any of the above information and submit with the proper fees may cause this filing to be rejected. 

This form must be accompanied by appropriate fees. Nevada Secretary d State Amend Profit-After 
Revised: 1·5-15 



BYLAWS 

OF 

Pixar Bio Corporation, 

a Nevada Corporation 

ARTICLE I 

Stockholders 

Section 1.1. Annual Meetings. An annual meeting of stockholders of Pixar Bio Corporation (the 

"Corporation") shall be held for the election of directors on a date and at a time and place either within 

or without the State of Nevada fixed by resolution of the Board of Directors. Any other proper business 

may be transacted at the annual meeting. 

Section 1.2. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the stockholders may be called at any time by the 

Board of Directors, the Chairman of the Board or the holders of shares entitled to cast not less than ten 

percent of the votes at the meeting, such meeting to be held on a date and at a time and place either 

within or without the State of Nevada as may be stated in the notice of the meeting. Business transacted 

at any special meeting of the shareholders shall be limited to the purposes stated in the notice. 

Section 1.3. Notice of Meetings. Whenever stockholders are required or permitted to take any 

action at a meeting, a written notice of the meeting shall be given not less than ten nor more than sixty 

days before the date of the meeting to each stockholder entitled to vote thereat. If mailed, such notice 
shall be deemed to be given when deposited in the United States mail, postage prepaid, directed to the 

stockholder at such stockholder's address as it appears on the records of the Corporation. Such notice 

shall state the place, date and hour of the meeting, and in the case of a special meeting, the general 

purpose for which the meeting is called. 

Section 1.4. Adjournments. Any meeting of stockholders may be adjourned from time to time, to 

reconvene at the same or some other place. Notice need not be given of any such adjourned meeting if 

the time and place thereof are announced at the meeting at which the adjournment is taken. At the 

adjourned meeting the Corporation may transact any business which might have been transacted at the 

original meeting. If the adjournment is for more than 30 days or if after the adjournment a new record 

date is fixed for the adjourned meeting, a notice of the adjourned meeting shall be given to each 

stockholder of record entitled to vote at the meeting. 

Section 1.5. Quorum. At each meeting of stockholders, except where otherwise provided by law or 

the Articles of Incorporation or these bylaws, the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of 

stock entitled to vote, represented in person or by proxy, shall constitute a quorum at a meeting of the 

stockholders. In the absence of a quorum, any meeting of stockholders may be adjourned from time to 

time by the vote of a majority of the shares represented either in person or by proxy until a quorum is 

present or represented. Shares of its own capital stock belonging to the Corporation or to another 
Corporation where the majority of the voting power is held by the Corporation shall nether be entitled 

to vote nor counted for quorum purposes; provided, however, that the foregoing shall not limit the right 

Bylaws and Resolutions Pixar Bio Corporation Page 7of17 



of the Corporation to vote stock, including but not limited to its own stock, held by it in a fiduciary 

capacity. 

Section 1.6. Organization. Meetings of stockholders shall be presided over by the Chairman of the 

Board of Directors, if any, or in the absence of the Chairman of the Board by the Vice Chairman of the 

Board, if any, or in the absence of the Vice Chairman of the Board by the President, or in the absence of 

the foregoing persons by a chairman designated by the Board of Directors, or in the absence of such 

designation by a chairman chosen at the meeting. The Secretary, or in the absence of the Secretary, an 

Assistant Secretary, shall act as secretary of the meeting, or in their absence the chairman of the 

meeting may appoint any person to act as secretary of the meeting. 

Section 1.7. Voting. Unless otherwise provided in the Articles of Incorporation, each stockholder 

entitled to vote at any meeting of stockholders shall be entitled to one vote for each share held by such 

stockholder which has voting power upon the matter in questions. Directors shall be elected by a 

plurality of the votes of the shares present in person or represented by proxy at the meeting and 
entitled to vote on the election of directors. In all other matters, unless otherwise provided by law or by 

the Articles of Incorporation or these bylaws, the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the 

shares present in person or represented by proxy and entitled to vote on the subject matter at a 

meeting in which a quorum is present shall be the net of the stockholders. Where a separate vote by 
class or classes is required, the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the shares of such class or 

classes present in person or represented by proxy shall be the act of such class or classes, except as 

otherwise provided by law or by the Articles of Incorporation or these bylaws. 

Section 1.8. Stockholder's Proxies. Every person entitled to vote or to express consent or dissent to 
corporate action in writing without a meeting may authorize another person or persons lo act by proxy 

with respect to such shares. No proxy shall be valid after the expiration of three years from the date 

thereof unless otherwise provided in the proxy. Every proxy continues in full force and effect until 

revoked by the person executing it. Such revocation may be effected by a writing delivered to the 

Corporation stating that the proxy is revoked or by a subsequent proxy execute<.! by the person 

executing the prior proxy and presented to the meeting, or as to any meeting by attendance at such 

meeting and voting in person by the person executing the proxy. 

Section 1.9. Fixing Date for Determination of Stockholders of Record. In order that the Corporation 

may determine the stockholders entitled to notice of any meeting, the Board of Directors may fix a 

record date, which shall not be more than sixty nor less than ten days prior to the date of such meeting, 
nor shall the record date precede the date upon which the resolution fixing the record date is adopted 

by the Board of Directors. In order that the Corporation may determine the stockholders entitled to 

consent to corporate action without a meeting, the Board of Directors may fix a record date, which shall 

not precede, or be more than 10 days after, the date upon which the resolution fixing the record date is 

adopted by the Board of Directors. In order that the Corporation may determine the stockholders 

entitled to receive payment of any dividend or other distribution or allotment of any rights or of any 

other lawful action, the Board of Directors may fix a record date, which shall not be more than sixty days 
prior to such action. 
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If no record date is fixed: (1) the record date for determining stockholders entitled to notice of or to 

vote at a meeting of stockholders shall be at the close of business on the business day next preceding 

the day on which notice is given or, if notice is waived, at the close of business on the business day next 

preceding the day on which the meeting is held; (2) the record date for determining stockholders 

entitled to give consent to corporate action in writing without a meeting, when no prior action by the 
Board of directors has been taken, shall be the day on which the first written consent is given; if prior 

action by the Board is required, then the record date shall be the close of business on the date the 

Board of Directors adopts the resolution taking such prior action, and (3) the record date for 

determining stockholders for any other purpose shall be at the close of business on the day on which 

the Board of Directors adopts the resolution relating thereto, unless the Board of Directors sets a new 

record date. 

Section 1.10. Consent of Stockholders in Lieu of Meeting. Except as otherwise provided in the 

Articles of Incorporation, any action which may be taken at any annual or special meeting of the 

stockholders may be taken without a meeting and without prior notice, if a consent in writing, setting 

forth the action so taken, shall be signed by the holders of outstanding shares having not less than the 

minimum number of votes that would be necessary to authorize or take such action at a meeting at 

which all shares entitled to vote thereon were present and voted, and shall be delivered to the 

Corporation. Every written consent shall bear the date of signature of each stockholder who signs the 
consent, and no written consent shall be effective unless, within 60 days of the earliest consent, written 

consents signed by a sufficient number of holders have been delivered to the Corporation. 

Unless all stockholders entitled to vote consent in writing, prompt notice of any stockholder 

approval without a meeting shall be given to those stockholders who have not consented in writing and 

who, if the action had been taken at a meeting, would have been entitled to notice of the meeting if the 

record date for such meeting had been the date that sufficient consents were delivered to Corporation. 

ARTICLE II 

Board of Directors 

Section 2.1. Powers; Number. The business and affairs of the Corporation shall be managed by, and 

all corporate powers shall be exercised by or under, the direction of the Board of Directors, except as 

otherwise provided by laws or in the Articles of Incorporation. The first Board of Directors shall consist 

of the number of members set forth in the original Articles of Incorporation. Thereafter, the Board of 

Directors shall consist of one or more members, the number thereof to be determined from t ime to 

time by the Board of Directors. 

Section 2.2. Election; Term of Office; Resignation; Removal; Vacancies. Each director shall hold 
office until a successor has been elected and qualified or until his or her earlier resignation or removal. 
Any director may resign effective upon giving written notice to the Chairman of the Board, the President 

or the Secretary of the Corporation. Such resignation shall take effect at the time specified therein, and 
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unless otherwise specified therein no acceptance of such resignation shall be necessary to make it 

effective. Any or all of the directors may be removed, with or without cause if such removal is approved 

by a majority of the outstanding voting shares then entitled to vote on the election of directors. Unless 
otherwise provided in the Articles of Incorporation or in these bylaws, vacancies and newly-created 

directorships resulting from any increase in the authorized number of directors may be filled by a 

majority of the directors then in office, although less than a quorum, or by the sole remaining director. 

Section 2.3. Regular Meetings. Regular meetings of the Board of Directors may be held without 

notice at such places within or without the State of Nevada and at such times as the Board of Directors 

may from time to time determine, and if so determined notice thereof need not be given. 

Section 2.4. Special Meetings; Notice of Meetings; Waiver of Notice. Special meetings of the Board 

of Directors may be held at any time or place within or without the State of Nevada whenever called by 

the Chairman of the Board, by the Vice Chairman of the Board, if any, or by any two directors. 

Reasonable notice shall be given by the person or persons calling the meeting unless a director signs a 

waiver of notice or a consent to holding the meeting or an approval of the minutes thereof, whether 

before or after the meeting, or who attends the meeting without protesting the lack of notice prior to 

the meeting or at its commencement. 

Section 2.5. Participation in Meetings by Conference Telephone Permitted. Members of the Board 

of Directors, or any committee designated by the Board of Directors, may participate in a meeting of the 

Board of Directors or of such committee, as the case may be, through the use of conference telephone 

or similar communications equipment by means of which all members participating in such meeting can 
hear one another, and participation in a meeting pursuant to this Section shall constitute presence in 

person at such meeting. 

Section 2.6. Quorum; Adjournment; Vote Required for Action. At all meetings of the Board of 

Directors a majority of the authorized number of directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction 

of business. The vote of a majority of the directors present at a meeting at which a quorum is present 

shall be shall be the act of the Board of Directors unless the Articles of Incorporation or these by-laws 

shall require a vote of a greater number. 

Section 2.7. Organization. Meetings of the Board of Directors shall be presided over by the 

Chairman of the Board, or in the absence of the Chairman of the Board by the Vice Chairman of the 

Board, if any, or in their absence by a chairman chosen at the meeting. The Secretary, or in the absence 
of the Secretary an Assistant Secretary, shall act as secretary of the meeting, but in the absence of the 

Secretary and any Assistant Secretary the chairman of the meeting may appoint any person to act as 

secretary of the meeting. 

Section 2.8. Action by Directors Without a Meeting. Any action required or permitted to be taken 

by the Board of Directors, or any committee thereof, may be taken without a meeting if all members of 

the Board of Directors or of such committee, as the case may be, consent in writing to such action and 

such consent is filed with the minutes of the proceedings of the Board of Directors. 
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Section 2.9. Compensation of Directors. The Board of Directors shall have the authority to fix the 

compensation of directors for services in any capacity. 

ARTICLE Ill 

Committees 

Section 3.1. Committees of Directors. The Board of Directors may designate one or more 

committees, each consisting of one or more directors. Any committee, to the extent provided in the 

resolution of the Board of Directors, shall have and may exercise all the powers and authority of the 

Board of Directors, except that no such committee shall have power or authority with respect to the 

following matters: 

a) Approving or adopting, or recommend ing to the stockholders, any action or matter expressly 

required by Nevada General Corporation Law to be submitted to the stockholders for approval; or 

b) The amendment or repeal of the by-laws, or the adoption of new by-laws. 

Section 3.2. Committee Rules. Unless the Board of Directors otherwise provides, each committee 
designated by the Board of Directors may adopt, amend and repeal rules for the conduct of its business. 

In the absence of a provision by the Board of Directors or a provision in the rules of such committee to 

the contrary, each committee shall conduct its business in the same manner as the Board of Directors 

conducts its business pursuant to Article II of these by-laws. 

ARTICLE IV 

Officers 

Section 4.1. Officers; Election. As soon as practicable after the arulual meeting of stockholders in 

each year, the Board of Directors shall elect a President and a Secretary, and if it so determines, elect 

from among its members a Chairman of the Board and a Vice Chairman of the Board. The Board of 

Directors may also elect one or more Vice Presidents, one or more Assistant Secretaries, and such other 

officers as the Board of Directors may deem desirable or appropriate and may give any of them such 

further designations or alternate titles as it considers desirable. Any number of offices may be held by 
the same person. 

Section 4.2. Term of Office; Resignation; Removal; Vacancies. Except as otherwise provided in the 

resolution of the Board of Directors electing any officer, each officer shall hold office until his or her 

successor is elected and qualified or until his or her earlier resignation or removal. Any officer may 
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resign at any time upon written notice to the Board of Directors or to the Chairman of the Board or t he 

Secretary of the Corporation. Such resignation shall take effect at the time specified therein, and unless 

otherwise specified therein no acceptance of such resignation shall be necessary to make it effective. 
The Board of Directors may remove any officer with or without cause at any time. Any such removal 

shall be without prejudice to the contractual rights of such officer, if any, with the Corporation, but the 

election of an officer shall not of itself create contractual rights. Any vacancy occurring in any office of 

the Corporation by death, resignation, removal or otherwise may be filled by the Board of Directors at 

any regular or special meeting. 

Section 4.3. Powers and Duties. The officers of the Corporation shall have such powers and duties in 

the management of the Corporation as shall be stated in these by-laws or in a resolution of the Board of 

Directors which is not inconsistent with these by-laws and, to the extent not so stated, as generally 

pertain to their respective offices, subject to the control of the Board of Directors. The Secretary shall 

have the duty to record the proceedings of the meetings of the stockholders, the Board of Directors and 

any committees in a book to be kept for that purpose. The Board of Directors may require any officer, 
agent or employee to give security for the faithful performance of his or her duties. 

ARTICLE V 

Forms of Certificates; Loss and Transfer of Shares 

Section 5.1. Forms of Certificates. Every holder of shares in the Corporation shall be entitled to have 

a certificate signed in the name of the Corporation by (1) the President, any Vice President, Chairman of 

the Board or Vice Chairman, and (2) by the Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer, Assistant Treasurer, 

Secretary or Assistant Secretary. Each certificate shall state the number of shares and the class or series 

of shares owned by such stockholder. If such certificate is manually signed by one officer or manually 

countersigned by a transfer agent or by a registrar, any other signature on the certificate may be a 

facsimile. In case any officer, transfer agent or registrar who has signed or whose facsimile signature has 

been placed upon a certificate shall have ceased to be such officer, transfer agent or registrar before 

such certificate is issued, it may be issued by the Corporation with the same effect as if such person 

were such officer, transfer agent or registrar at the date of issue. 

If the Corporation is authorized to issue more than one class of stock or more than one series of any 
class, the powers, designations, preferences, relative or other special rights, qualifications, restrictions 

and limitations of each class or series shall be set forth in full or summarized on the face or back of the 

certificate representing such class or series of stock, provided that in lieu of the foregoing, t here may be 
set forth on the back or face of the certificate a statement that the Corporation will furnish without 

charge to each stockholder who requests the powers, designations, preferences, relative or other 

special rights, qualifications, restrictions and limitations of such class or series. 
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Sect ion 5.2. Lost, Stolen or Destroyed Stock Certificates; Issuance of New Certificates. The 

Corporation may issue a new share certificate or a new certificate for any other security in the place of 

any certificate theretofore issued by it, alleged to have been lost, stolen or destroyed, and the 

Corporation may require the owner of the lost, stolen or destroyed certificate, or such owner's legal 

representative, to give the Corporation a bond sufficient to indemnify it against any claim that may be 

made against it (including any expense or liability) on account of the alleged loss, theft or destruction of 

any such certificate or the issuance of such new certificate . 

ARTICLE VI 

Records 

Section 6.1. Records. The Corporation shall keep a stock ledger, a list of stockholders and other 

books and records as may be required to run the Corporation. The Secretary shall have the duty to 

record the proceedings of the meetings of the stockholders, the Board of Directors and any committees 

in a book to be kept for that purpose. 

Section 6.2. Form of Records. Any records maintained by the Corporation in the regular course of its 

business, including its stock ledger, books of account and minute books, may be kept on, or be in the 

form of, computer discs, magnetic tape, photographs, or any other information storage device, provided 
that the records so kept can be converted into clearly legible form within a reasonable time. The 

Corporation shall so convert any records so kept upon the request of any person entitled to inspect the 

same. 

ARTICLE VII 

Miscellaneous 

Section 7.1. Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the Corporation shall be determined by the Board of 

Directors. 

Sect ion 7.2. Seal. The Corporation may have a corporate seal which shall have the name of the 

Corporation inscribed thereon and shall be in such form as may be approved from time to time by the 

Board of Directors. The corporate seal may be used by causing it or a facsimile thereof to be impressed 

or affixed or in any other manner reproduced. 

Section 7 .3. Waiver of Notice of Meetings of Stockholders, Directors and Committees. Whenever 

notice is required to be given by law or under any provision of the Articles of Incorporation or these 
bylaws, a written waiver thereof, signed by the person entitled to notice, whether before or after the 

time stated therein, shall be deemed equivalent of notice. Attendance of a person at a meeting shall 
constitute a waiver of notice of such meeting, except when the person attends a meeting for the express 
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purpose of objecting, at the beginning of the meeting, to the transaction of any business because the 

meeting is not lawfully called or convened. Neither the business to be transacted at, nor the purpose of, 

any regular or special meeting of the stockholders, directors or members of a committee of directors 

need be specified in any written waiver of notice unless required in the Articles of Incorporation or 

these bylaws. 

Section 7.4. Interested Directors; Quorum. No contract or transaction between the Corporation and 

one or more of its directors or between the Corporation and any other Corporation, firm or association 

in which one or more of its directors are directors, or have a financial interest, shall be void or voidable 
solely for this reason, or solely because such director or directors are present at the meeting of the 

Board of Directors or committee thereof which authorizes, approves or ratifies the contract or 

transaction, or solely because his or her or their votes are counted for such purpose, if: (1) the material 

facts as to his or her relationship or interest and as to the contract or transaction are fully disclosed or 

are known to the Board of Directors or the committee, and the Board of Directors or committee 

authorizes, approves or ratifies the contract or transaction in good faith authorizes the contract or 
transaction by the affirmative votes of a majority of the disinterested directors, even though the 

disinterested directors be less than a quorum; or (2) the material facts as to his or her relationship or 

interest and as to the contract or transaction are fully disclosed or are known to the stockholders and 

such contract or transaction is specifically approved by the stockholders in good faith by vote of the 

stockholders; or (3) the contract or transaction is fair as to the Corporation as of the time it is 

authorized, approved or ratified, by the Board of Directors, a committee thereof or the stockholders. 

Common or interested directors may be counted in determining the presence of a quorum at a meeting 

of the Board of Directors or of a committee which authorizes the contract or transaction. 

Section 7.5. Indemnification. The Corporation shall have the power to indemnify to the full extent 

permitted by law any person made or threatened to be made a party to any action, suit or proceeding, 

whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative, by reason of the fact that such person or such 

person's testator or instate is or was a director, officer or employee of the Corporation or serves or 

served at the request of the Corporation as a director, officer, employee or agent of another enterprise. 

Expenses, including attorneys' fees, incurred by any such person in defending against such action, suit or 

proceeding may be paid in advance of the final disposition of such action, suit or proceeding by the 
Corporation upon receipt by it of an undertaking of such person to repay such expenses if it shall be 

ultimately determined that such person is not entitled to be indemnified by the Corporation. For 

purposes of this Section, the term "Corporation" shall include any predecessor of the Corporation and 

any constituent corporation absorbed by the Corporation in consolidation or merger; the term "other 
enterprise" shall include any corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or employee benefit plan; 

service "at the request of the Corporation" shall include services as a director, officer or employee of the 

Corporation which imposes duties on, or involves services by, such director, officer or employee with 

respect to an employee benefit plan, its participants or beneficiaries; any excise taxes assessed on a 

person with respect to an employee benefit plan shall be deemed to be indemnifiable expenses; and 

action by a person with respect to an employee benefit plan which such person reasonable believes to 

be in the interest of the participants and beneficiaries of such plan shall be deemed to be action not 
opposed to the best interests of the Corporation. 
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Section 7.6. Amendment of By-Laws. These bylaws may be amended or repea led, and new bylaws 

adopted, by the Board of Directors. The stockholders entitled to vote, however, retain the right to adopt 

additional by-laws and may amend or repeal any by-law whether or not adopted by them. 

[Remainder Intentionally Left Blank.} 
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CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY OF 

Pixar Bio Corporation 

The undersigned, Katrin Holzhaus, as Secretary of Pixar Bio Corporation, a Nevada corporation (the 
"Corporation"), hereby certifies the attached document is a true and complete copy of the bylaws of the 

Corporation and that such bylaws were duly adopted by the Board of Directors of the Corporation on 

the date set forth below. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has 7"uted this cerr icat) as of~ 20} 3 

()a . 

Bylaws and Resolutions 

Katrin Holzhaus 
Secretary 
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 

To the Board of Directors of PixarBio Corporation: 

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of PixarBio Corporation (the “Company”) as of December 31, 
2015, 2014 and 2013 and the related statements of operations, changes in stockholders’ equity (deficit) and cash 
flows for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 and for the period from August 29, 2013 (inception) to 
December 31, 2013.  These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management.  Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board 
(United States).  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.  The Company is not required to have, nor 
were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting.  Our audit included 
consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Company’s internal control over financial reporting.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing 
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the Company as of December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, and the results of its operations and its cash 
flows for the periods then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America. 

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going 
concern. As discussed in Note 2 to the financial statements, the Company has suffered recurring losses from 
operations and has a significant accumulated deficit. This raises substantial doubt about the Company's ability to 
continue as a going concern. Management's plans in regard to these matters also are described in Note 2. The 
financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty. 

Boston, Massachusetts 
June 29, 2016 
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2015 2014 2013

Current assets:

Cash 2,378,297$                   72,500$                        123,146$                      

Prepaid expenses 38,660                          2,400                            7,400                            

Total current assets 2,416,957                     74,900                          130,546                        

Property and equipment, net 815,845                        837,772                        114,264                        

Intangible assets, net 192,583                        95,605                          19,009                          

Deposits 80,414                          101,200                        91,200                          

TOTAL ASSETS 3,505,799$                   1,109,477$                   355,019$                      

Current liabilities:

Account payable and accrued expenses 910,204$                      441,501$                      22,579$                        

Convertible notes payable -                                3,080,000                     -                               

Accrued interest on convertible debt -                                302,196                        -                               

Capital leases - current portion 149,632                        75,774                          -                               

Total current liabilities 1,059,836                     3,899,471                     22,579                          

Convertible notes payable -                                -                               600,000                        

Accrued interest on convertible debt -                                -                               24,407                          

Common stock subscription deposits, 101,000 shares 303,000                        -                               -                               

Capital leases, net of current portion 160,038                        127,363                        -                               

TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,522,874                     4,026,834                     646,986                        

COMMITMENTS

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT)

Common stock, $0.01 par value; authorized 60,000,000 shares;

issued and outstanding 32,612,806, 16,000,000 and 17,000,000

shares at December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively 326,128                        160,000                        170,000                        

Additional paid-in captial 10,793,498                   1,922                            -                               

Common stock subscription receivables, 34,333 shares (102,999)                       -                               -                               

Accumulated deficit (9,033,702)                    (3,079,279)                   (461,967)                      

TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT) 1,982,925                     (2,917,357)                   (291,967)                      

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT) 3,505,799$                   1,109,477$                   355,019$                      

As of December 31,

PIXARBIO CORPORATION

BALANCE SHEETS

See report of independent registered public accounting firm and accompanying notes to financial statements

ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT)
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Period from
August 29, 2013

(inception) to
December 31, 

2015 2014 2013
OPERATING EXPENSES:

Research and development 3,471,991$    1,686,651$    131,970$        
General and administrative 1,399,885       645,554          135,590          

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 4,871,876       2,332,205       267,560          

OPERATING LOSS (4,871,876)     (2,332,205)     (267,560)        

INTEREST EXPENSE 1,082,547       295,107          24,407            

NET LOSS (5,954,423)$   (2,627,312)$   (291,967)$      

NET LOSS PER SHARE, BASIC AND DILUTED (0.33)$             (0.16)$             (0.02)$             

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding, 
basic and diluted 17,974,122    16,572,603    17,000,000    

See report of independent registered public accounting firm and accompanying notes to financial statements

Years Ended
December 31,

PIXARBIO CORPORATION
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
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Common Stock Total

Additional Subscription Accumulated Stockholders'

Shares Amount Paid-in Capital Receivables Deficit Equity (Deficit)

Balance on inception date, August 29, 2013 -                  -$               -$                     -$                  -$                 -$                     

Issuance of founders restricted stock 17,000,000      170,000         -                       -                    (170,000)          -                       

Share-based compensation -                  -                 -                       -                    -                   -                       

Net loss -                  -                 -                       -                    (291,967)          (291,967)              

Balance at December 31, 2013 17,000,000      170,000         -                       -                    (461,967)          (291,967)              

Forfeiture of founders restricted stock (1,000,000)      (10,000)          -                       -                    10,000             -                       

Share-based compensation expense -                  -                 1,922                   -                    -                   1,922                   

Net loss -                  -                 -                       -                    (2,627,312)       (2,627,312)           

Balance at December 31, 2014 16,000,000      160,000         1,922                   -                    (3,079,279)       (2,917,357)           

Issuance of common stock in private placements 1,428,257        14,283           3,381,025            (102,999)           -                   3,292,309            

Conversion of convertible notes payable and accrued interest 15,109,549      151,095         7,396,952            -                    -                   7,548,047            

Exercise of stock options 75,000             750                -                       -                    -                   750                      

Share-based compensation expense -                  -                 13,599                 -                    -                   13,599                 

Net loss -                  -                 -                       -                    (5,954,423)       (5,954,423)           

Balance at December 31, 2015 32,612,806      326,128$       10,793,498$        (102,999)$         (9,033,702)$     1,982,925$          

Common Stock

PIXARBIO CORPORATION

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT)

See report of independent registered public accounting firm and accompanying notes to financial statements  
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Period from
August 29, 2013

(inception) to
December 31, 

2015 2014 2013

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net loss (5,954,423)$  (2,627,312)$  (291,967)$       
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash

used in operating activities:
Depreciation expense 331,914         226,127         559                  
Amortization expense 7,102             2,580             -                   
Share-based compensation expense 13,599           1,922             -                   
Non-cash interest expense 1,045,851     277,789         24,407             
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Prepaid expenses (36,260)         5,000             (7,400)             
Deposits 20,786           (10,000)         (91,200)           
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 468,703         418,922         22,579             

NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES (4,102,728)    (1,704,972)    (343,022)         

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of equipment (99,681)         (607,446)       (114,823)         
Investment in intangible assets (104,080)       (79,176)         (19,009)           

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (203,761)       (686,622)       (133,832)         

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from issuance of convertible notes payable 3,120,000     2,480,000     600,000          
Principal payments on capital leases (103,773)       (139,052)       -                   
Proceeds from private placements, net of subscriptions receivable 3,292,309     -                 -                   
Proceeds from common stock subscriptions 303,000         -                 -                   
Proceeds from the exercise of stock options 750                -                 -                   

NET CASH PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES 6,612,286     2,340,948     600,000          

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH 2,305,797     (50,646)         123,146          
CASH AT BEGINNING OF PERIOD 72,500           123,146         -                   
CASH AT END OF PERIOD 2,378,297$   72,500$         123,146$        

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
AND NON-CASH FINANCING TRANSACTIONS:

Cash paid for interest 36,705$         17,319$         -$                 

Conversion of convertible notes payable and 

 accrued interest into common stock 7,548,047$   -$               -$                 

Assets acquired under capital leases 221,824$      342,189$      -$                 

PIXARBIO CORPORATION
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

See report of independent registered public accounting firm and accompanying notes to financial statements

Years Ended December 31,
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NOTE 1 – NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 
POLICIES  

 Nature of Operations 

 PixarBio Corporation (the “Company”) was incorporated on August 29, 2013 in the state of 
Nevada and in 2014 registered as a foreign corporation in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. The 
Company is a specialty biotechnology company focused on pre-clinical and commercial development of 
new products that meet the needs of neurological clinicians and their patients. The Company has offices 
in Salem, New Hampshire and in Medford, Massachusetts.  

 Going concern 

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming the Company will continue 
as a going concern and that contemplates the continuity of operations, realization of assets and the 
satisfaction of liabilities and commitments in the normal course of business. The Company has incurred 
losses since inception, is devoting substantially all of its efforts toward research and development and has 
an accumulated deficit of $9,033,702 at December 31, 2015. These factors raise substantial doubt about 
the ability of the Company to continue as a going concern. The Company’s success is dependent on the 
successful execution of management’s strategy, its ability to generate profits in future years and sufficient 
cash flows to fund its operations.  The Company's ability to execute its operating plan depends on its 
ability to obtain additional funding via the sale of equity and/or debt securities, a strategic transaction or 
otherwise. The Company plans to continue to actively pursue financing alternatives, but there can be no 
assurance that it will obtain the necessary funding. The accompanying financial statements do not include 
any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty.  

Basis of Accounting 

The accompanying financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles in the United States of America (“GAAP”). 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of the accompanying financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities 
and disclosure of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of 
revenues and expenses during the reporting periods. Actual results could differ from those estimates and 
changes in estimates may occur.  

Cash  

Cash consists of cash on hand and monies held in checking and savings accounts.  

Property and equipment 

Property and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation expense is 
computed using straight-line method over the assets’ estimated useful lives. Additions and improvements 
are capitalized while repairs and maintenance are charged to expense as incurred. A summary of the 
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estimated useful lives is as follows: 

 

Classification     Estimated Useful Life 
Furniture and fixtures     7 years 
Office equipment     5 years 
Medical equipment     5 years 
Computers      3 years 
Leasehold improvements        Shorter of useful life and term lease 

Intangible Assets and Other Long-Lived Assets 

Intangible assets consist of patents and trademarks and are recorded at cost.  The Company 
amortizes intangible assets using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives, up to twenty 
years. 

The Company evaluates its intangible assets and other long-lived assets whenever an event or a 
change in circumstances has occurred that would indicate impairment of any long-lived assets. If the 
carrying value of the asset exceeds its future undiscounted cash flows, the Company writes down the 
carrying value of the intangible asset to its fair value in the period identified. 

The Company generally calculates fair value as the present value of estimated future cash flows it 
expects to generate from the asset using a risk-adjusted discount rate. If the estimate of an intangible 
asset’s remaining useful life is changed, the Company amortizes the remaining carrying value of the 
intangible asset prospectively over the revised remaining useful life. 

The Company performs a regular review of the underlying assumptions, circumstances, time 
projections and revenue and expense estimates to decide if there is a possible impairment. No impairment 
losses were recorded for the periods ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013. 

Share-Based Compensation 

The Company recognizes compensation expense resulting from issuance of share-based awards to 
employees, officers and consultants in the statement of operations over the requisite service period based 
on the fair value of each share-based award, which is determined using the Black Scholes option pricing 
model.  

Net Loss per Share 

Net loss per share is computed by dividing net loss attributable to common stockholders by the 
weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding.  Outstanding stock options, warrants 
and convertible notes payable have not been included in the calculation of diluted net loss per share 
because to do so would be anti-dilutive. Accordingly, the numerator and the denominator used in 
computing both basic and diluted net loss per share for each period are the same. 

Fair value of financial instruments 

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, accounts payable, accrued expenses and 
convertible notes payable approximate their fair value because of their generally short term maturities. 



PIXARBIO CORPORATION 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Years Ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the Period from 
August 29, 2013 (Inception) to December 31, 2013 

 
 

See report of independent registered public accounting firm 
 F-9 
 

 

Income Taxes 

The Company is primarily subject to U.S. federal and New Hampshire and Massachusetts state 
income tax.  The Company is subject to federal and state tax examinations by tax authorities for all years 
since inception.  

The Company follows the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes, which 
requires the recognition of deferred income taxes for temporary differences between the basis of assets 
and liabilities for financial statement and income tax purposes. Deferred tax assets and liabilities represent 
the future tax consequence for those differences, which will either be taxable or deductible when the 
assets and liabilities are recovered or settled. The effect on deferred income tax assets and liabilities of a 
change in tax rates is included in income in the period in which the change occurs. A valuation allowance 
is established when it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be 
realized.  Accordingly, the Company provides a valuation allowance, if necessary, to reduce deferred tax 
assets to amounts that are realizable. 

Tax positions taken or expected to be taken in the course of preparing the Company tax returns 
are required to be evaluated to determine whether the tax positions are “more-likely-than-not” of being 
sustained by the applicable tax authority.  Tax positions not deemed to meet a more-likely-than-not 
threshold would be recorded as a tax expense in the current year.  There were no uncertain tax positions 
that require accrual or disclosure in the financial statements as of December 31, 2015. The Company’s 
policy is to recognize interest and penalties related to income tax, if any, in income tax expense.  As of 
December 31, 2015, the Company has no accruals for interest or penalties related to income tax matters. 

Advertising 

The Company expenses advertising costs as they are incurred to general and administrative 
expense. The advertising expenses are $48,820, $10,869 and $6,997 for the periods ended December 31, 
2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively.  

Research and Development Costs    

Research and development costs consist of consultants, material costs, salaries and other 
personnel related expenses primarily engaged in research and development activities and certain other 
overhead and facility expenses incurred. All research and development costs are expensed as incurred. 

Recent Accounting Pronouncements 

In August 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting 
Standards Update (“ASU”) No. 2014-15, Presentation of Financial Statements – Going Concern 
(Subtopic 205-40) – Disclosure of Uncertainties about an Entity’s Ability to Continue as a Going 
Concern, which provides guidance regarding management’s responsibility to assess whether substantial 
doubt exists regarding the ability to continue as a going concern and to provide related footnote 
disclosures. In connection with preparing financial statements for each annual and interim reporting 
period, management should evaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, 
that raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern within one year 
after the date that the financial statements are issued (or within one year after the date that the financial 
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statements are available to be issued when applicable). This ASU is effective for the annual period ending 
after December 15, 2016, and for annual periods and interim periods thereafter. Management is currently 
evaluating the new guidance and has not determined the impact this standard may have on the Company’s 
financial statements. 

In April 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-03, Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance 
Costs, which requires debt issuance costs to be presented in the balance sheet as a direct deduction from 
the carrying value of the associated debt liability, consistent with the presentation of a debt discount. ASU 
No. 2015-03 is effective for the interim and annual periods ending after December 15, 2015 with early 
adoption permitted. The Company has adopted this guidance and adoption did not have a material impact 
on the Financial Statements. 

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842).  Under the new 
guidance, lessees will be required to recognize all leases (with the exception of short-term leases) on the 
balance sheet as a lease liability, which is a lessee’s obligation to make lease payments arising from a 
lease, measured on a discounted basis and a right-of-use asset, which is an asset that represents the 
lessee’s right to use, or control the use of, a specified asset for the lease term.  The new standard is 
effective for fiscal year beginning after December 15, 2018, including interim periods within those fiscal 
years.  The Company is currently evaluating the effect the guidance will have on its Financial Statements. 

Concentrations of Credit Risk  

The Company has no significant off-balance-sheet risk. Financial instruments, which subject the 
Company to credit risk, principally consist of cash. The Company mitigates its risk by maintaining its 
cash and equivalents with high-quality financial institutions.  
 
NOTE 2 – PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 

Property and equipment consist of the following as of the balance sheet dates: 

2015 2014 2013

Furniture and fixtures 84,705$         52,961$        -$               

Office Equipment 32,055           53,820          -                 

Medical Equipment 901,306         626,973        -                 

Leasehold improvements 270,674         261,549        108,333         

Computers 85,705           69,155          6,490             

1,374,445      1,064,458     114,823         

Less: Accumulated Depreciation (558,600)       (226,686)      (559)               

815,845$       837,772$      114,264$       

 
 Depreciation expense totaled $331,914, $226,127 and $559 for the periods ended December 31, 

2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively. 
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NOTE 3 – INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

 Intangible assets consists of the following as of the balance sheet dates: 

2015 2014 2013

Patent Costs 202,265$         98,185$         19,009$   
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (9,682)            (2,580)         -           
Intangible assets, net 192,583$        95,605$        19,009$   

 
Amortization expense totaled $7,102, $2,580 and $0 for the periods ended December 31, 2015, 

2014 and 2013, respectively. 
 
NOTE 4 – ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED EXPENSES 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses consist of the following as of the balance sheet dates: 
  

  

2015 2014 2013

Trade accounts payable 146,438$         306,928$         19,569$    

Credit card liability 18,554             -                   -            

Accrued officer's salary and bonus 568,767           43,125             2,500        

Accrued wages 45,836             -                   -            

Accrued vacation 34,081             -                   -            

Other accrued expenses 96,528             91,448             510           

Total 910,204$         441,501$         22,579$    

 
 
NOTE 5 – CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS 

 During 2015 and 2014, the Company entered into numerous capital lease arrangements for 
equipment. The terms of the leases are for periods from 31 months to 47 months and monthly payments 
ranging from $1,045 to $3,483. There were no capital lease obligations as of December 31, 2013. 

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, assets acquired under the capital lease obligations included in 
property and equipment amounted to $608,912 and $387,089, respectively, and related accumulated 
depreciation amounted to $314,829 and $127,075, respectively. The outstanding capital lease obligations 
as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 are as follows: 

 

2015 2014

Total Capital Lease Obligation 309,670$        203,137$      

Less: Current Portion of Lease Obligation (149,632)        (75,774)        

Capital Leases, net of current portion 160,038$        127,363$      
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Future capital lease obligation payments, including interest, are as follows: 
 

2016 181,198$         

2017 126,970           

2018 47,382             

Total 355,550$         

Imputed interest (45,880)           

Total Capital Lease Obligation 309,670$          
 

The total interest expense for capital leases is $36,706 and $17,319 for years ended December 31, 
2015, and 2014, respectively.   
 
NOTE 6 – CONVERTIBLE NOTES PAYABLE 

Since inception, the Company issued convertible notes payable (the “Notes”) for total proceeds of 
$6,200,000.  Substantially all of the Notes were issued to the founder and Chief Executive Officer and 
other related parties.  The Notes accrued interest at 12% per annum.  The Notes were convertible only in 
the event of a Qualified Equity Financing, as defined, or at maturity if no Qualified Equity Financing 
occurs at a price equal to 110% of the issue price.  In conjunction with the Notes, the Company 
committed to issue warrants in the event of a Qualified Equity Financing, as defined, at an exercise price 
equal to the lowest issue price.  The number of shares issuable under the warrants would be determined 
based on 5% of the principal of the Notes dividend by the exercise price as determined above. 

On November 15, 2015, all Notes and accrued interest totaling $7,548,047, including a 10% 
premium, were converted into 15,109,549 shares of common stock.  No warrants were issued upon 
conversion.  Of this amount, 12,662,058 shares were issued to the Company’s founder and Chief 
Executive Officer.  In accordance with ASC 470-10 and since all Notes were issued to related parties, the 
conversion of the Notes to common stock was recorded as a capital transaction with no gain or loss 
recorded. 

The Company recorded $491,047, $217,898 and $19,101 of non-cash interest expense accrued on 
the convertible notes payable on the statements of operations for the periods ended December 31, 2015, 
2014 and 2013, respectively.  

The 10% conversion premium on the Notes was accreted as interest expense in the statements of 
operations and amounted to $554,804, $59,891 and $5,306 for periods ended December 31, 2015, 2014 
and 2013, respectively, with the remaining premium amortization being accelerated on the conversion 
date of November 15, 2015. 
 
NOTE 7 – COMMON STOCK 

The Company has authorized 60,000,000 shares of common stock, $0.01 par value. At inception 
in 2013, the Company issued its founders 17,000,000 restricted shares of common stock with a par value 
of $170,000 for no consideration, which vest over three years as follows: 
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 1/3 of the shares vest 12 months after issuance 
 1/3 of the shares vest 24 months after issuance 
 1/36 of the shares vest monthly after issuance until all the shares have vested. 

In July 2014, one of the founders was terminated and as a result 1,000,000 unvested shares were 
forfeited and returned to treasury.  At December 31, 2015, 4,888,887 founders’ shares were subject to 
vesting. 

From November 5, 2015 through December 4, 2015, the Company raised $718,000 from the sales 
of 535,822 shares of common stock at $1.34 per share, sold primarily to the Company’s founder and 
Chief Executive Officer. 

In December 2015, the Company’s Board of Directors approved a private offering (the “Private 
Offering”) of common stock at $3.00 per share, sold only to accredited investors.  As of December 31, 
2015, the Company had raised $2,677,307 and issued 892,435 shares of common stock related to this 
round and had stock subscriptions receivable of $102,999 for 34,333 shares and stock subscription 
deposits of $303,000 for 101,000 shares, based on when the subscription agreement was accepted by the 
Company and the timing of when the related cash was received.  The Private Offering continued into 
2016 and raised gross proceeds of approximately $5.4 million. 

The funds raised through financings noted above were used to fund ongoing operations of the 
Company. 
 
NOTE 8 – STOCK OPTIONS 
 

In 2014, the Company adopted a stock option plan, the 2014 Employee, Director and Consultant 
Equity Incentive Plan, (the "2014 Plan"), to grant stock options, restricted stock, and stock-based awards 
to directors, officers, employees and consultants.  The number of shares authorized for issuance under the 
2014 Plan, as amended, was 6,000,000 shares as of December 31, 2015. Options granted under the 2014 
Plan include terms and vesting provisions as determined at the discretion of the Board of Directors, and 
an exercise price typically not less than the Company's fair market value per share.  

For employees, the compensation expense is amortized over the requisite service period which 
approximates the vesting period. Compensation expense for stock options granted to non-employees is 
recognized over the contract services period or, if none exists, from the date of grant until the options 
vest. Compensation associated with unvested options granted to non-employees is re-measured on each 
balance sheet date. 

The fair value of each option award is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes 
option pricing model that uses the assumptions noted in the following table. The risk-free interest rate is 
based on the yield of a U.S. Treasury instrument whose term is consistent with the expected term of the 
stock options. The Company has not paid and does not anticipate paying dividends on its common stock; 
therefore, the expected dividend yield is assumed to be zero. Due to its limited operating history and 
limited trading of its common stock, the Company estimates its volatility in consideration of a number of 
factors including the volatility of comparable public companies.  

The weighted average fair value of stock options granted for the years ended December 31, 2015 
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and 2014 was $0.04 and $0.01, respectively. 

The assumptions used principally in determining the fair values of stock options granted were as 
follows: 

A summary of stock option activity under the Company’s 2014 Plan is presented below: 

Weighted 

Average

Weighted Remaining Aggeregate

Number of Average Contractual Intrinsic 

Stock Options Exercise Price term (years) Value

Outstanding at December 31, 2013 - -$  ‐               -$                 

Granted 1,700,000               0.01 - 

Forfeited (350,000) 0.01 - 

Outstanding at December 31, 2014 1,350,000               0.01$                9.73              -$                 

Granted 3,400,000               0.02 - 

Exercised (75,000) 0.01 99,750             

Forfeited (400,000) 0.01 - 

Outstanding at December 31, 2015 4,275,000               0.02$                9.32              11,551,200$    

Exercisable at December 31, 2015 394,786 0.01$                8.73              1,180,410$      

Vested and expected to vest at December 31, 2015 4,275,000               0.02$                9.32              11,551,200$    

The total number of in-the-money options vested and exercisable as of December 31, 2015 was 
394,786 and had an intrinsic value of $1,180,410. The total intrinsic value of options exercised during the 
year ended December 31, 2015 was $99,750. The total intrinsic value of options outstanding and expected 
to vest as of December 31, 2015 was $11,551,200. 

Share-based compensation recognized during the periods ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 
2013 was $13,599, $1,922 and $0, respectively, and have been recorded in the statements of operations.  
As of December 31, 2015, there is $1,094,788 of unrecognized stock compensation expense to be 
recognized over the next four years. 

NOTE 9 – INCOME TAXES 

Following is a reconciliation of income taxes attributable to operations computed at the statutory 
tax rates to income tax recovery. 

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
Risk-free interest rate 1.50% 1.63%
Expected life of options 10 years 10 years
Annualized volatility 100% 100%
Dividend rate 0% 0%
Forfeiture rate 0% 0%
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December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013

Loss for the period (5,954,423)$                   (2,627,312)$                   (291,967)$                      

Expected income tax benefit at statuatory rate (2,338,897)$                   (1,032,009)$                   (114,684)$                      

Non-deductible items 150,401                         72,392                           37,428                           

Research and development credits earned (273,737)                        (173,982)                        (13,197)                          

Change in the valuation allowance  2,462,233                      1,133,599                      90,453                           

Total income taxes -$                               -$                               -$                                
  
The significant components of the Company’s deferred tax assets are as follows: 

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013

Net operating losses carryforwards 3,211,000$                    1,018,000$                    77,000$                         

Property and equipment 14,000                           19,000                           -                                 

Research and development credit 461,000                         187,000                         13,000                           

Total 3,686,000$                    1,224,000$                    90,000$                         

Valuation allowance (3,686,000)                     (1,224,000)                     (90,000)                          

Net deferred tax assets -$                               -$                               -$                                

The Company has net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $8,176,000. These losses 
expire as follows: 

    

2033 197,000$                       

2034 2,395,000                      

2035 5,584,000                      

8,176,000$                     

Utilization of net operating losses may be subject to substantial annual limitations due to the 
“change in ownership” provisions of the Internal Revenue Code, and similar state provisions. The annual 
limitations may result in the expiration of net operating losses before utilization.  
 
NOTE 10 – COMMITMENTS 

The Company leases its facilities in Medford, Massachusetts pursuant to a 2014 lease agreement 
expiring on March 30, 2019. The base rent was $22,811 per month for calendar year 2014 and was 
increased to $23,146 starting January 1, 2015. The rent amount is subject to an increase based on the cost 
of living per the Consumer Price Index of the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics.  

The Company also leases space in Avastus Preclinical Services LLC, a vivarium facility located 
in Cambridge, Massachusetts.  This lease commenced in September of 2014 and is on a year to year lease 
term.  The base rent was $19,042 per month beginning in September 2014 and upon renewal in 
September of 2015 increased to $24,500 per month. 
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 For the years subsequent to December 31, 2015 future minimum lease payments required under 
this lease agreement are as follows: 

2016      $     500,600 
2017     280,100 
2018     280,100 
2019  70,000 
Total       $   1,130,800 

Rent expense was approximately $517,000, $286,000 and $0 for the periods ended December 31, 
2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively, and was allocated two thirds to research and development expense and 
one third to general and administrative expense in the accompanying Statements of Operations. 

NOTE 11 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

As of December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, $568,767, $43,125 and $2,500, respectively, were 
owed to the founder and Chief Executive Officer of the Company for deferred salary, and is included in 
accounts payable and accrued expenses in the balance sheets.  The amount as of December 31, 2015 
includes a bonus of $360,000.   Upon conversion of all of the Company’s Notes, premium and accrued 
interest, one of the founders and Chief Executive Officer was issued 12,662,058 shares of common stock 
(see Note 6).  Also, the founder and Chief Executive Officer and other related parties invested an 
additional $718,000 by purchasing 535,822 shares of common stock at $1.34 per share in November 
2015. 

NOTE 12 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

Management has evaluated subsequent events through June 29, 2016, which is the date the 
financial statements were available to be issued.  Other than as discussed below there were no subsequent 
events that require adjustment to or disclosure in the financial statements.  

The Company increased its authorized common stock to 100,000,000 shares and the shares 
issuable under the 2014 Plan to 10,000,000 shares. 

The Company raised $2,700,000 from January to May 2016 in the Private Offering priced at 
$3.00 per share.  The Company also increased the total maximum amount to be raised under the Private 
Offering from $4,000,000 to $10,000,000. 

Commencing on March 1, 2016, the Company leased a new facility in Salem, NH.  The lease will 
continue through March 31, 2019 and the base rent for the original term of this lease is $3,003 per month.   

In June 2016, the Company leased a new facility in Fort Lee, NJ.  The term is for seven years and 
five months with an average monthly base rent of $12,813. 



 

 
 

EXHIBIT C 
 

SUBSCRIPTION INFORMATION & INSTRUCTIONS 
 
 

 
PixarBio Corporation 

200 Boston Avenue, Suite 1875  
Medford, Massachusetts 02155 USA  

Telephone: (617) 803-8838 
E-mail: info@pixarbio.com 

 
 
 

This section alone does not constitute an offer by the Company or its affiliates. 
An offer may be made only by an authorized representative of the Company and the recipient must 

receive a complete Memorandum, including all Exhibits. 
 



 

 
HOW TO SUBSCRIBE 

 
 
To subscribe, you must: 
 

1. Read the Memorandum in its entirety; 
 

2. Complete, date and sign the following documents: 
 

(a) Suitability Questionnaire; and 
 

(b) Subscription Agreement. 
 

3. Deliver the above documents together with a check or bank wire payable to “PixarBio Corporation” 
to the following address: 

 
PixarBio Corporation 
200 Boston Avenue, Suite 1875  
Medford, Massachusetts 02155 USA  
Telephone: (617) 803-8838 
E-mail: info@pixarbio.com 

 
 

BANK WIRE COORDINATES: 
 
Bank of America 
220 N. Broadway, Salem, NH 03079 
ABA Routing No. 026009593 
International SWIFT Code: BOFAUS3N 
Account Name: PixarBio Corporation 
Account No.  388002783898 
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SUITABLITY QUESTIONNAIRE 

IMPORTANT NOTICE TO ALL SUBSCRIBERS: The securities of PixarBio Corporation, a Nevada corporation (“we”, “our”, “us”,    
“PixarBio”, or the “Company”), will not be registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, nor under the laws of any 
state or foreign jurisdiction. Accordingly, in order to ensure that the offer and sale of our securities are exempt from registration 
and in order to determine your suitability for this investment, we must be reasonably satisfied that you, or your 
representative(s), if used, have such knowledge and experience in investing and/or financial and business matters that you are 
(or together with your representative(s) are) capable of evaluating the merits and risks of investing in the Company. Also, we 
need adequate assurance that you are able to bear the economic risk of participating and that you meet the financial 
requirements to be one of our investors. This confidential Suitability Questionnaire is designed to provide us with the 
information necessary to make a determination of whether you satisfy these suitability requirements. The information supplied 
in this confidential Suitability Questionnaire will be disclosed to no one without your consent   other than to (i) the Company’s 
employees, officers, directors, agents, accountants and counsel, (ii) securities authorities or other regulatory organizations, if 
deemed necessary to use such information to support an exemption from registration under the Securities Act of 1933 and state 
law or the applicable law of other non-U.S. jurisdictions, or (iii) other Shareholders only to the extent it is necessary to vote or 
conduct Company business. BECAUSE WE WILL RELY ON YOUR ANSWERS IN ORDER TO COMPLY WITH SECURITIES LAWS, 
IT IS IMPORTANT FOR YOU TO CAREFULLY ANSWER EACH OF THE FOLLOWING QUESTIONS. 

PLEASE TYPE OR PRINT THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION BELOW: 

1. Subscriber Information:

Full legal name(s) of Subscriber(s):  

Address:

City:   State / Province:   Zip or Postal Code:   

Current Country of Citizenship:  

E-mail (mandatory)*:
*(NOTICE: By providing this e-mail address, you authorize us to transmit notices, reports, updates and otherwise communicate with you 
exclusively using this e-mail address instead of sending paper copies to your physical or mailing address. If this e-mail address does not 
function or if it changes, you must provide us with an alternate e-mail address. We are not responsible for returned, bounced or otherwise 
undelivered communications.) 

Telephone:         Facsimile:   

U.S. Taxpayer Identification Number(s) or Social Security Number(s):

Please check this box  if you either are or have been a party to any present or past litigation or similar proceedings involving securities

or financial matters. If not, then leave blank. If checked, please attach a brief written description of such proceeding(s) to this 
Questionnaire. 

2. Subscriber Suitability: (If applicable to you, please initial as appropriate)

INDIVIDUAL INVESTORS: 

  I am a natural person whose individual net worth (not including the value of my primary residence), or joint net worth with my 
spouse, presently exceeds $1,000,000. 

  I am a natural person who had an individual income in excess of $200,000 in each of the two most recent years or joint 
income with my spouse in excess of $300,000 in each of those years and I reasonably expect reaching the same income 
level in the current year. 

CORPORATIONS, PARTNERSHIPS, LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANIES, BUSINESS TRUSTS OR OTHER ENTITIES*: 

  I am a corporation, partnership, limited liability company, or other entity in which all of the equity owners are “accredited 
investors” (meeting at least one of the suitability requirements for individual investors, above). 

  I am a corporation, partnership, limited liability company, or a “Massachusetts” or similar business trust with total assets in 
excess of $5,000,000 and was not formed for the specific purpose of acquiring the Company’s securities, the executive 
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officer, manager or trustee of which has such knowledge and experience in import business development investing and/or 
financial and business matters that it is capable of evaluating the merits and risks of investing in the Company’s securities. 

*(NOTE: If initialing one of the above two options, please state the JURISDICTION AND TYPE OF ENTITY here (for 
example, “California corporation”, or “Texas LLC”, etc.):  . 

GRANTOR OR FAMILY TRUSTS (NOTE: Please enclose a copy of the trust agreement): 

  I am a revocable or family trust the settlor(s) or grantor(s) of which (i) may revoke the trust at any time and regain title to the 
trust assets; and (ii) meet(s) at least one of the suitability requirements for individual investors, above. 

INDIVIDUAL RETIREMENT ACCOUNTS (NOTE: To be initialed by participant, not the IRA custodian): 

  I am an individual retirement account administered in accordance with the U.S. Tax Code the participant of which meets at 
least one of the suitability requirements for individual investors, above. 

OTHER: 

  I am a director, executive officer or beneficial owner of the Company. 

3. Subscriber Representation:

In order to further induce the Company to accept this subscription, I represent and warrant the following to be true: (i) I QUALIFY AS AN 
“ACCREDITED INVESTOR” UNDER RULE 501(a) OF THE ACT; AND/OR (ii) I HAVE SUFFICIENT KNOWLEDGE AND EXPERIENCE 
IN BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL MATTERS THAT I AM CAPABLE (EITHER MYSELF OR TOGETHER WITH MY REPRESENTATIVES) 
TO EVALUATE THE RISKS OF INVESTING IN THE SHARES AND I AM NOT DEPENDENT UPON THE FUNDS I AM INVESTING. I 
further represent that I satisfy any other minimum income and/or net worth standards imposed by the jurisdiction in which I reside, if 
different from any standards set forth by the Company. I was not solicited by public means (e.g., cold-calling, e-mail, Internet, etc.) to 
subscribe for the Company’s securities and I have a pre-existing relationship with the Company’s management. If I am acting in a 
representative capacity for a corporation, partnership, LLC, trust or other entity, or as agent for any person or entity, I hereby represent 
and warrant that I have full authority to subscribe for the Company’s securities in such capacity. If I am subscribing for the Company’s 
securities in a fiduciary capacity, the representations and warranties herein shall be deemed to have been made on behalf of the person 
or persons for whom I am subscribing. Under penalties of perjury, I certify that (1) the number provided herein is my correct U.S. Taxpayer 
Identification Number or Social Security Number; and (2) I am not subject to backup withholding either because I have not been notified 
that I am subject to backup withholding as a result of a failure to report all interest or dividends, or the Internal Revenue Service has 
notified me that I am no longer subject to backup withholding. BY EXECUTING BELOW, I REPRESENT AND WARRANT THAT THE 
INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS QUESTIONNAIRE IS TRUE, ACCURATE AND COMPLETE. 

X  X
Authorized Signature_   Second Authorized Signature (if applicable) 

Print Name   Print Name 

Date Date

Title (if applicable)   Title (if applicable) 

Name of Entity (if applicable)   Name of Entity (if applicable) 
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SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT 

TO: PixarBio Corporation 

FROM:
Full legal name(s) of Subscriber(s) 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

The undersigned hereby subscribes for   Shares of Common Stock in PixarBio Corporation, a Nevada corporation 
(the “Company”), in accordance with the terms of the Company’s Confidential Private Placement Memorandum dated [insert date] 
__________________ 2016, as may be amended and supplemented from time to time (the “Memorandum”), which Memorandum 
is incorporated into this Subscription Agreement by reference as if fully set forth. 

I understand the Company is offering its securities only to Persons who qualify as “accredited investors” in accordance 
with Regulation D Rule 506(b) and/or Rules 4(a)(2) or 4(a)(5) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Act”) and 
applicable state law. 

To induce your acceptance of my subscription for the Company’s securities, I hereby make the following 
representations: 

I am an “accredited investor” as defined by Rule 501(a) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and/or I have 
sufficient knowledge and experience in business and financial matters (or am represented by such persons) that I am 
capable of evaluating the merits and risks of investing in the Company’s securities as evidenced by my representations 
on my attached Suitability Questionnaire which is incorporated herein by reference. 

I have received the Memorandum and have had ample time and opportunity to review any documents and information 
incorporated by reference therein as well as the opportunity to ask questions of, and receive answers from, the 
Company, its authorized representatives, and management. 

I am aware of the high degree of risk of investing in the Company both generally and as more particularly described in 
the “Risk Factors” portion of the Memorandum. I understand that I may lose my entire investment. 

I understand that I will not have the opportunity to independently evaluate investments selected by the Company for 
acquisition or investment. I am financially capable of bearing the possible loss of my entire investment and do not have 
a foreseeable need for the funds I am using. I (or my representatives) have such knowledge and experience regarding 
investing and/or financial and business matters sufficient to evaluate the merits and risks of this investment. 

I understand that the Company’s securities have not been registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or 
any applicable securities laws of applicable jurisdictions, and that no market exists for the Company’s securities. I 
understand that, if my subscription for the Company’s securities is accepted by the Company and the Company’s 
securities are sold to me, I cannot sell or otherwise dispose of the Company’s securities unless they are registered or 
exempt under the Securities Act of 1933 and applicable securities laws of applicable jurisdictions. Consequently, I 
understand that I must bear the economic risk of the investment for an indefinite period of time. 

I understand that the Company has no obligation to register the Company’s securities and there is no assurance that 
the Company’s securities will be registered. I understand that the Company will restrict the transfer of Company’s 
securities in accordance with the foregoing representations. I understand that these securities are being bought 
through a non- registered, exempt offering. 

All the information I have provided to the Company, either in questionnaires or otherwise, is truthful and complete to the 
best of my knowledge and should any of the information materially change I will immediately provide the Company with 
updated information. I also hereby consent to exclusively receive information or other communications from the 
Company at my e-mail address as set forth in my Suitability Questionnaire and to promptly notify the Company if it 
changes. 

If my subscription is accepted, I understand that Company’s securities will be issued to me and the Company will be 
able to immediately utilize my funds as described in the Memorandum. I understand that since my funds will not be 
escrowed and since there is no minimum escrow threshold requirement, if I am one of the initial investors in the 
Company that I will bear a disproportionate share of the risks described in the “Risk Factors” section of the 
Memorandum which Memorandum is incorporated herein by reference. 

I understand that this Subscription Agreement shall become binding upon the Company only when or if accepted, in 
writing, by the Company. If my subscription is rejected, I understand that the funds I have submitted will be returned to 

Initials of 
Subscriber
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me without interest or deduction. I also understand that the Company may reject my subscription for any or no reason 
or may compulsorily redeem Company’s securities at any time for any reason. 

I am the only party in interest with respect to this Subscription Agreement and am acquiring the Company’s securities 
for investment for my own account for long-term investment only, and not with the intent to resell, fractionalize, divide or 
redistribute all or any part of the Company’s securities to any other person. If an individual, I am at least 21 years of 
age. 

I further understand that the Company may enter into one or more transactions that may be deemed a “public event” 
(as defined in the Memorandum, which is incorporated herein by reference). In order to facilitate the occurrence of a 
public event, I hereby irrevocably constitute and appoint, with full power of substitution, the Company’s management, 
Board of Directors, and/or its duly commissioned officers as my agents, with full power and authority in my name, place 
and stead to make, execute, swear to, acknowledge, deliver, file and record all certificates, instruments, documents 
and other papers and amendments thereto which may from time to time be required under any applicable laws or rules 
which the Company deems appropriate or necessary, to enable the Company to become listed or quoted on an 
established securities market or exchange or become readily tradable on a secondary market (or the substantial 
equivalent thereof). The agency granted hereby shall be deemed to be a power coupled with an interest, shall survive 
my death or legal incapacity, and shall survive the delivery of an assignment by me of all or any portion of my interest 
in the Company’s securities. 

By signing below, I shall be deemed to have executed this Subscription Agreement and accept all the terms and risks as set forth in the 
Memorandum, which is incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein, and to have subscribed to and affirmed the veracity of the 
foregoing statements. 

 XX
Authorized Signature   Second Authorized Signature (if applicable) 

Print Name   Print Name 

Date Date

Title (if applicable)   Title (if applicable) 

Name of Entity (if applicable)   Name of Entity (if applicable) 

SUBSCRIPTION   ACCEPTANCE: 

PixarBio Corporation  
a Nevada corporation 

By:    Effective Date of Acceptance:   
Frank Reynolds 
CEO

Initials of 
Subscriber
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WARRANT TO PURCHASE COMMON STOCK 
 
 

 
PixarBio Corporation 

200 Boston Avenue, Suite 1875  
Medford, Massachusetts 02155 USA  

Telephone: (617) 803-8838 
E-mail: info@pixarbio.com 

 
 
 

This section alone does not constitute an offer by the Company or its affiliates. 
An offer may be made only by an authorized representative of the Company and the recipient must 

receive a complete Memorandum, including all Exhibits. 



EXHIBIT D 

WARRANT 

Warrant Certificate No.    
 

NEITHER THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE NOR THE SECURITIES ISSUABLE UPON THE EXERCISE 
OF THIS WARRANT HAVE BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE “ACT”), OR ANY 
STATE SECURITIES LAWS, AND NEITHER SUCH SECURITIES NOR ANY INTEREST THEREIN MAY BE OFFERED, SOLD, 
ASSIGNED OR OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED UNLESS (1) A REGISTRATION STATEMENT WITH RESPECT THERETO IS 
EFFECTIVE UNDER THE ACT AND ANY APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS, OR (2) AN EXEMPTION FROM SUCH 
REGISTRATION EXISTS AND THE COMPANY RECEIVES AN OPINION OF COUNSEL TO THE HOLDER OF SUCH SECURITIES, 
WHICH COUNSEL AND OPINION ARE SATISFACTORY TO THE COMPANY, THAT SUCH SECURITIES MAY BE OFFERED, 
SOLD, PLEDGED, ASSIGNED OR TRANSFERRED IN THE MANNER CONTEMPLATED WITHOUT AN EFFECTIVE 
REGISTRATION STATEMENT UNDER THE ACT OR APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS. 

 
Effective Date: [                                    ], 2016 Void After: [                                    ], 2023 

 

PIXARBIO CORPORATION  

WARRANT TO PURCHASE COMMON STOCK 

PixarBio Corporation, a Nevada corporation (the “Company”), for value received on [                             ], 2016 (the “Effective 
Date”), hereby issues to [                                                 ] (the “Holder”) this Warrant (the “Warrant”) to purchase, [  ] 
shares (each such share as from time to time adjusted as hereinafter provided being a “Warrant Share” and all such shares being the 
“Warrant Shares”) of the Company’s Common Stock (as defined below), at the Exercise Price (as defined below), as adjusted from 
time to time as provided herein, on or before [                              ], 2023 (the “Expiration Date”), all subject to the 
following terms and conditions. Unless otherwise defined in this Warrant, terms appearing in initial capitalized form shall have the 
meaning ascribed to them in that certain Securities Purchase Agreement between the Company and the purchaser signatory thereto 
pursuant to which this Warrant was issued (the “Securities Purchase Agreement”). 

 

As used in this Warrant, (i) “Business Day” means any day other than Saturday, Sunday or any other day on which commercial 
banks in the City of New York, New York, are authorized or required by law or executive order to close; (ii) “Common Stock” means 
the common stock of the Company, par value $0.001 per share, including any securities issued or issuable with respect thereto or into 
which or for which such shares may be exchanged for, or converted into, pursuant to any stock dividend, stock split, stock 
combination, recapitalization, reclassification, reorganization or other similar event; (iii) “Exercise Price” means $4.50 per share 
of Common Stock, subject to adjustment as provided herein; (iv) “Trading Day” means any day on which the Common Stock is 
traded on the primary national or regional stock exchange on which the Common Stock is listed, or if not so listed, the OTC Bulletin 
Board, if quoted thereon, is open for the transaction of business; and (v) “Affiliate” means any person that, directly or indirectly, 
through one or more intermediaries, controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with, a person, as such terms are used and 
construed in Rule 144 promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”). 

 
 

DURATION AND EXERCISE OF WARRANTS 

(a) Exercise Period. The Holder may exercise this Warrant in whole or in part on any Business Day on or before 5:00 P.M., 
Eastern Time, on the Expiration Date, at which time this Warrant shall become void and of no value. 

 
(b) Exercise Procedures. 

(i) While this Warrant remains outstanding and exercisable in accordance with Section 1(a), in addition to the manner set 
forth in Section 1(b)(ii) below, the Holder may exercise this Warrant in whole or in part at any time and from time to time by: 

 

(A) delivery to the Company of a duly executed copy of the Notice of Exercise attached as Exhibit A; 
 

(B) surrender of this Warrant to the Secretary of the Company at its principal offices or at such other office or agency 
as the Company may specify in writing to the Holder; and 

 

(C) payment of the then-applicable Exercise Price per share multiplied by the number of Warrant Shares being 
purchased upon exercise of the Warrant (such amount, the “Aggregate Exercise Price”) made in the form of cash, or by certified 
check, bank draft or money order payable in lawful money of the United States of America or in the form of a Cashless Exercise to the 
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extent permitted in Section 1(b)(ii) below. 
 

(ii) At any time when a registration statement covering the resale of the Warrant Shares by the Holder is not available after 
the first anniversary of the Effective Date, the Holder may, in its sole discretion, exercise all or any part of the Warrant in a “cashless” 
or “net-issue” exercise (a “Cashless Exercise”) by delivering to the Company (1) the Notice of Exercise and (2) the original Warrant, 
pursuant to which the Holder shall surrender the right to receive upon exercise of this Warrant, a number of Warrant Shares having a 
value (as determined below) equal to the Aggregate Exercise Price, in which case, the number of Warrant Shares to be issued to the 
Holder upon such exercise shall be calculated using the following formula: 

X = Y * (A - B) 
A 

 
with: X = the number of Warrant Shares to be issued to the Holder 

Y = the number of Warrant Shares with respect to which the Warrant is being exercised 

A = the fair value per share of Common Stock on the date of exercise of this Warrant 

B = the then-current Exercise Price of the Warrant 
 

Solely for the purposes of this paragraph, “fair value” per share of Common Stock shall mean (A) the average of the closing sales 
prices, as quoted on the primary national or regional stock exchange on which the Common Stock is listed, or, if not listed, the OTC 
Bulletin Board if quoted thereon, on the twenty (20) trading days immediately preceding the date on which the Notice of Exercise is 
deemed to have been sent to the Company, or (B) if the Common Stock is not publicly traded as set forth above, as reasonably and in 
good faith determined by the Board of Directors of the Company as of the date which the Notice of Exercise is deemed to have been 
sent to the Company. 

 

Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Section 1(b)(ii), the Holder may not make a Cashless Exercise if and to the 
extent that such exercise would require the Company to issue a number of shares of Common Stock in excess of its authorized but 
unissued shares of Common Stock, less all amounts of Common Stock that have been reserved for issue upon the conversion of all 
outstanding securities convertible into shares of Common Stock and the exercise of all outstanding options, warrants and other rights 
exercisable for shares of Common Stock. If the Company does not have the requisite number of authorized but unissued shares of 
Common Stock to permit the Holder to make a Cashless Exercise, the Company shall use commercially reasonable efforts to obtain 
the necessary stockholder consent to increase the authorized number of shares of Common Stock to permit such Holder to make a 
Cashless Exercise pursuant to this Section 1(b)(ii). 

 
(iii) Upon the exercise of this Warrant in compliance with the provisions of this Section 1(b), and except as limited pursuant 

to the last paragraph of Section 1(b)(ii), the Company shall promptly issue and cause to be delivered to the Holder a certificate for the 
Warrant Shares purchased by the Holder. Each exercise of this Warrant shall be effective immediately prior to the close of business on 
the date (the “Date of Exercise”) that the conditions set forth in Section 1(b) have been satisfied, as the case may be. On the first 
Business Day following the date on which the Company has received each of the Notice of Exercise and the Aggregate Exercise Price 
(or notice of a Cashless Exercise in accordance with Section 1(b)(ii)) (the “Exercise Delivery Documents”), the Company shall 
transmit an acknowledgment of receipt of the Exercise Delivery Documents to the Company’s transfer agent (the “Transfer Agent”). 
On or before the third Business Day following the date on which the Company has received all of the Exercise Delivery Documents 
(the “Share Delivery Date”), the Company shall (X) provided that the Transfer Agent is participating in The Depository Trust 
Company (“DTC”) Fast Automated Securities Transfer Program, upon the request of the Holder, credit such aggregate number of 
shares of Common Stock to which the Holder is entitled pursuant to such exercise to the Holder’s or its designee’s balance account 
with DTC through its Deposit Withdrawal Agent Commission system, or (Y) if the Transfer Agent is not participating in the DTC Fast 
Automated Securities Transfer Program, issue and dispatch by overnight courier to the address as specified in the Notice of Exercise, 
a certificate, registered in the Company’s share register in the name of the Holder or its designee, for the number of shares of Common 
Stock to which the Holder is entitled pursuant to such exercise. Upon delivery of the Exercise Delivery Documents, the Holder shall 
be deemed for all corporate purposes to have become the holder of record of the Warrant Shares with respect to which this Warrant 
has been exercised, irrespective of the date of delivery of the certificates evidencing such Warrant Shares. If this Warrant is submitted 
in connection with any exercise pursuant to Section 1(a) and the number of Warrant Shares represented by this Warrant submitted for 
exercise is greater than the actual number of Warrant Shares being acquired upon such an exercise, then the Company shall as soon 
as practicable and in no event later than three (3) Business Days after any exercise and at its own expense, issue a new Warrant of like 
tenor representing the right to purchase the number of Warrant Shares purchasable immediately prior to such exercise under this 
Warrant, less the number of Warrant Shares with respect to which this Warrant is exercised. 

 

(iv) If the Company shall fail for any reason or for no reason to issue to the Holder, within three (3) Business Days of receipt 
of the Exercise Delivery Documents, a certificate for the number of shares of Common Stock to which the Holder is entitled and  
register such shares of Common Stock on the Company’s share register or to credit the Holder’s balance account with DTC for such 
number of shares of Common Stock to which the Holder is entitled upon the Holder’s exercise of this Warrant, and if on or after such 



3  

Business Day the Holder purchases (in an open market transaction or otherwise) shares of Common Stock to deliver in satisfaction of a 
sale by the Holder of shares of Common Stock issuable upon such exercise that the Holder anticipated receiving from the Company (a 
“Buy-In”), then the Company shall, within three (3) Business Days after the Holder’s request and in the Holder’s discretion, either 
(i) pay cash to the Holder in an amount equal to the Holder’s total purchase price (including brokerage commissions, if any) for the 
shares of Common Stock so purchased (the “Buy-In Price”), at which point the Company’s obligation to deliver such certificate (and 
to issue such shares of Common Stock) shall terminate, or (ii) promptly honor its obligation to deliver to the Holder a certificate or 
certificates representing such shares of Common Stock and pay cash to the Holder in an amount equal to the excess (if any) of the 
Buy-In Price over the product of (A) such number of shares of Common Stock, times (B) the closing bid price on the date of exercise. 

 

(c) Partial Exercise. This Warrant shall be exercisable, either in its entirety or, from time to time, for part only of the number of 
Warrant Shares referenced by this Warrant. If this Warrant is exercised in part, the Company shall issue, at its expense, a new Warrant, 
in substantially the form of this Warrant, referencing such reduced number of Warrant Shares that remain subject to this Warrant. 

(d) Disputes. In the case of a dispute as to the determination of the Exercise Price or the arithmetic calculation of the Warrant 
Shares, the Company shall promptly issue to the Holder the number of Warrant Shares that are not disputed and resolve such dispute 
in accordance with Section 15. 

 
2. ISSUANCE OF WARRANT SHARES 

(a) The Company covenants that all Warrant Shares will, upon issuance in accordance with the terms of this Warrant, be (i) duly 
authorized, fully paid and non-assessable, and (ii) free from all liens, charges and security interests, with the exception of claims 
arising through the acts or omissions of any Holder and except as arising from applicable Federal and state securities laws. 

 

(b) The Company shall register this Warrant upon records to be maintained by the Company for that purpose in the name of the 
record holder of such Warrant from time to time. The Company may deem and treat the registered Holder of this Warrant as the 
absolute owner thereof for the purpose of any exercise thereof, any distribution to the Holder thereof and for all other purposes. 

 

(c) The Company will not, by amendment of its certificate of formation, by-laws or through any reorganization, transfer of assets, 
consolidation, merger, dissolution, issue or sale of securities or any other voluntary action, avoid or seek to avoid the observance or 
performance of any of the terms to be observed or performed hereunder by the Company, but will at all times in good faith assist in the 
carrying out of all the provisions of this Warrant and in the taking of all action necessary or appropriate in order to protect the rights 
of the Holder to exercise this Warrant, or against impairment of such rights. 

 
3. ADJUSTMENTS OF EXERCISE PRICE, NUMBER AND TYPE OF WARRANT SHARES 

(a) The Exercise Price and the number of shares purchasable upon the exercise of this Warrant shall be subject to adjustment from 
time to time upon the occurrence of certain events described in this Section 3(a); provided, that notwithstanding the provisions of this 
Section 3, the Company shall not be required to make any adjustment if and to the extent that such adjustment would require the 
Company to issue a number of shares of Common Stock in excess of its authorized but unissued shares of Common Stock, less all 
amounts of Common Stock that have been reserved for issue upon the conversion of all outstanding securities convertible into shares 
of Common Stock and the exercise of all outstanding options, warrants and other rights exercisable for shares of Common Stock. If the 
Company does not have the requisite number of authorized but unissued shares of Common Stock to make any adjustment, the 
Company shall use its commercially best efforts to obtain the necessary stockholder consent to increase the authorized number of 
shares of Common Stock to make such an adjustment pursuant to this Section 3(a). 

(i) Subdivision or Combination of Stock. In case the Company shall at any time subdivide (whether by way of stock 
dividend, stock split or otherwise) its outstanding shares of Common Stock into a greater number of shares, the Exercise Price in effect 
immediately prior to such subdivision shall be proportionately reduced and the number of Warrant Shares shall be proportionately 
increased, and conversely, in case the outstanding shares of Common Stock of the Company shall be combined (whether by way of 
stock combination, reverse stock split or otherwise) into a smaller number of shares, the Exercise Price in effect immediately prior to 
such combination shall be proportionately increased and the number of Warrant Shares shall be proportionately decreased. The 
Exercise Price and the Warrant Shares, as so adjusted, shall be readjusted in the same manner upon the happening of any successive 
event or events described in this Section 3(a)(i). 

 

(ii) Dividends in Stock, Property, Reclassification. If at any time, or from time to time, all of the holders of Common Stock 
(or any shares of stock or other securities at the time receivable upon the exercise of this Warrant) shall have received or become 
entitled to receive, without payment therefore: 

 

(A) any shares of stock or other securities that are at any time directly or indirectly convertible into or exchangeable 
for Common Stock, or any rights or options to subscribe for, purchase or otherwise acquire any of the foregoing by way of dividend or 
other distribution, or 

 

(B) additional stock or other securities or property (including cash) by way of spin-off, split-up, reclassification, 
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combination of shares or similar corporate rearrangement (other than shares of Common Stock issued as a stock split or adjustments in 
respect of which shall be covered by the terms of Section 3(a)(i) above), 

 

then and in each such case, the Exercise Price and the number of Warrant Shares to be obtained upon exercise of this Warrant shall be 
adjusted proportionately, and the Holder hereof shall, upon the exercise of this Warrant, be entitled to receive, in addition to the 
number of shares of Common Stock receivable thereupon, and without payment of any additional consideration therefor, the amount 
of stock and other securities and property (including cash in the cases referred to above) that such Holder would hold on the date of 
such exercise had such Holder been the holder of record of such Common Stock as of the date on which holders of Common Stock 
received or became entitled to receive such shares or all other additional stock and other securities and property. The Exercise Price 
and the Warrant Shares, as so adjusted, shall be readjusted in the same manner upon the happening of any successive event or events 
described in this Section 3(a)(ii). 
 

(iii) Reorganization, Reclassification, Consolidation, Merger or Sale. If any recapitalization, reclassification or 
reorganization of the capital stock of the Company, or any consolidation or merger of the Company with another corporation, or the 
sale of all or substantially all of its assets or other transaction shall be effected in such a way that holders of Common Stock shall be 
entitled to receive stock, securities, or other assets or property (an “Organic Change”), then, as a condition of such Organic Change, 
lawful and adequate provisions shall be made by the Company whereby the Holder hereof shall thereafter have the right to purchase 
and receive (in lieu of the shares of the Common Stock of the Company immediately theretofore purchasable and receivable upon the 
exercise of the rights represented by this Warrant) such shares of stock, securities or other assets or property as may be issued or 
payable with respect to or in exchange for a number of outstanding shares of such Common Stock equal to the number of shares of 
such stock immediately theretofore purchasable and receivable assuming the full exercise of the rights represented by this Warrant. In 
the event of any Organic Change, appropriate provision shall be made by the Company with respect to the rights and interests of the 
Holder of this Warrant to the end that the provisions hereof (including, without limitation, provisions for adjustments of the Exercise 
Price and of the number of shares purchasable and receivable upon the exercise of this Warrant and registration rights) shall thereafter 
be applicable, in relation to any shares of stock, securities or assets thereafter deliverable upon the exercise hereof. The Company will 
not effect any such consolidation, merger or sale unless, prior to the consummation thereof, the successor corporation (if other than the 
Company) resulting from such consolidation or merger or the corporation purchasing such assets shall assume by written instrument 
reasonably satisfactory in form and substance to the Holder executed and mailed or delivered to the registered Holder hereof at the 
last address of such Holder appearing on the books of the Company, the obligation to deliver to such Holder such shares of stock, 
securities or assets as, in accordance with the foregoing provisions, such Holder may be entitled to purchase. If there is an Organic 
Change, then the Company shall cause to be mailed to the Holder at its last address as it shall appear on the books and records of the 
Company, at least 10 calendar days before the effective date of the Organic Change, a notice stating the date on which such Organic 
Change is expected to become effective or close, and the date as of which it is expected that holders of the Common Stock of record 
shall be entitled to exchange their shares for securities, cash, or other property delivered upon such Organic Change; provided, that 
the failure to mail such notice or any defect therein or in the mailing thereof shall not affect the validity of the corporate action 
required to be specified in such notice. The Holder is entitled to exercise this Warrant during the 10-day period commencing on the 
date of such notice to the effective date of the event triggering such notice. In any event, the successor corporation (if other than the 
Company) resulting from such consolidation or merger or the corporation purchasing such assets shall be deemed to assume such 
obligation to deliver to such Holder such shares of stock, securities or assets even in the absence of a written instrument assuming 
such obligation to the extent such assumption occurs by operation of law. 

 

(b) Certificate as to Adjustments. Upon the occurrence of each adjustment or readjustment pursuant to this Section 3, the 
Company at its expense shall promptly compute such adjustment or readjustment in accordance with the terms hereof and furnish to 
each Holder of this Warrant a certificate setting forth such adjustment or readjustment and showing in detail the facts upon which such 
adjustment or readjustment is based. The Company shall promptly furnish or cause to be furnished to such Holder a like certificate 
setting forth: (i) such adjustments and readjustments; and (ii) the number of shares and the amount, if any, of other property which at  
the time would be received upon the exercise of the Warrant. 

 

(c) Certain Events. If any event occurs as to which the other provisions of this Section 3 are not strictly applicable but the lack of 
any adjustment would not fairly protect the purchase rights of the Holder under this Warrant in accordance with the basic intent and 
principles of such provisions, or if strictly applicable would not fairly protect the purchase rights of the Holder under this Warrant in 
accordance with the basic intent and principles of such provisions, then the Company’s Board of Directors will, in good faith, make 
an appropriate adjustment to protect the rights of the Holder; provided, that no such adjustment pursuant to this Section 3(c) will 
increase the Exercise Price or decrease the number of Warrant Shares as otherwise determined pursuant to this Section 3. 

 
4. TRANSFERS AND EXCHANGES OF WARRANT AND WARRANT SHARES 

(a) Registration of Transfers and Exchanges. Subject to Section 4(c), upon the Holder’s surrender of this Warrant, with a duly 
executed copy of the Form of Assignment attached as Exhibit F, to the Secretary of the Company at its principal offices or at such 
other office or agency as the Company may specify in writing to the Holder, the Company shall register the transfer of all or any 
portion of this Warrant. Upon such registration of transfer, the Company shall issue a new Warrant, in substantially the form of this 
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Warrant, evidencing the acquisition rights transferred to the transferee and a new Warrant, in similar form, evidencing the remaining 
acquisition rights not transferred, to the Holder requesting the transfer. 

 

(b) Warrant Exchangeable for Different Denominations. The Holder may exchange this Warrant for a new Warrant or Warrants, in 
substantially the form of this Warrant, evidencing in the aggregate the right to purchase the number of Warrant Shares which may then 
be purchased hereunder, each of such new Warrants to be dated the date of such exchange and to represent the right to purchase such 
number of Warrant Shares as shall be designated by the Holder. The Holder shall surrender this Warrant with duly executed instructions 
regarding such re-certification of this Warrant to the Secretary of the Company at its principal offices or at such other office or agency 
as the Company may specify in writing to the Holder. 

 

(ii) Restrictions on Transfers. This Warrant may not be transferred at any time without (i) registration under the Securities Act or 
an exemption from such registration and a written opinion of legal counsel addressed to the Company that the proposed transfer of 
the Warrant may be effected without registration under the Securities Act, which opinion will be in form and from counsel reasonably 
satisfactory to the Company. 

 

(c) Permitted Transfers and Assignments. Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary in this Section 4, the Holder may 
transfer, with or without consideration, this Warrant or any of the Warrant Shares (or a portion thereof) to the Holder’s Affiliates (as 
such term is defined under Rule 144 of the Securities Act) without obtaining the opinion from counsel that may be required by  
Section 4(c)(ii), provided, that the Holder delivers to the Company and its counsel certification, documentation, and other assurances 
reasonably required by the Company’s counsel to enable the Company’s counsel to render an opinion to the Company’s Transfer 
Agent that such transfer does not violate applicable securities laws. 
 

5. MUTILATED OR MISSING WARRANT CERTIFICATE 

If this Warrant is mutilated, lost, stolen or destroyed, upon request by the Holder, the Company will, at its expense, issue, in exchange 
for and upon cancellation of the mutilated Warrant, or in substitution for the lost, stolen or destroyed Warrant, a new Warrant, in 
substantially the form of this Warrant, representing the right to acquire the equivalent number of Warrant Shares; provided, that, as a 
prerequisite to the issuance of a substitute Warrant, the Company may require satisfactory evidence of loss, theft or destruction as well 
as an indemnity from the Holder of a lost, stolen or destroyed Warrant. 

 
6. PAYMENT OF TAXES 

The Company will pay all transfer and stock issuance taxes attributable to the preparation, issuance and delivery of this Warrant 
and the Warrant Shares (and replacement Warrants) including, without limitation, all documentary and stamp taxes; provided, 
however, that the Company shall not be required to pay any tax in respect of the transfer of this Warrant, or the issuance or delivery of 
certificates for Warrant Shares or other securities in respect of the Warrant Shares to any person or entity other than to the Holder. 

 
7. FRACTIONAL WARRANT SHARES 

No fractional Warrant Shares shall be issued upon exercise of this Warrant. The Company, in lieu of issuing any fractional 
Warrant Share, shall round up the number of Warrant Shares issuable to nearest whole share. 

 
8. NO STOCK RIGHTS AND LEGEND 

No holder of this Warrant, as such, shall be entitled to vote or be deemed the holder of any other securities of the Company that 
may at any time be issuable on the exercise hereof, nor shall anything contained herein be construed to confer upon the holder of this 
Warrant, as such, the rights of a stockholder of the Company or the right to vote for the election of directors or upon any matter 
submitted to stockholders at any meeting thereof, or give or withhold consent to any corporate action or to receive notice of meetings 
or other actions affecting stockholders (except as provided herein), or to receive dividends or subscription rights or otherwise (except 
as provide herein). 

 

Each certificate for Warrant Shares initially issued upon the exercise of this Warrant, and each certificate for Warrant Shares issued to 
any subsequent transferee of any such certificate, shall be stamped or otherwise imprinted with a legend in substantially the following 
form: 

“THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 
1933, AS AMENDED (THE “ACT”), OR ANY STATE SECURITIES LAWS, AND NEITHER SUCH SECURITIES NOR ANY 
INTEREST THEREIN MAY BE OFFERED, SOLD, PLEDGED, ASSIGNED OR OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED UNLESS (1) A 
REGISTRATION STATEMENT WITH RESPECT THERETO IS EFFECTIVE UNDER THE ACT AND ANY APPLICABLE STATE 
SECURITIES LAWS, OR (2) AN EXEMPTION FROM SUCH REGISTRATION EXISTS AND THE COMPANY RECEIVES AN 
OPINION OF COUNSEL TO THE HOLDER OF SUCH SECURITIES, WHICH COUNSEL AND OPINION ARE REASONABLY 
SATISFACTORY TO THE COMPANY, THAT SUCH SECURITIES MAY BE OFFERED, SOLD, PLEDGED, ASSIGNED OR 
TRANSFERRED IN THE MANNER CONTEMPLATED WITHOUT AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT UNDER THE 
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ACT OR APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS.” 

 
9. REGISTRATION UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933 

In connection with any Organic Change in which the Company is not the surviving corporation, the Company shall cause the 
surviving corporation to provide registration rights with respect to the resale of the Warrant Shares (or the warrant shares issuable  
upon the exercise of the warrant that is exchanged for this Warrant at the time of the closing of such Organic Change) under the 
Securities Act which are equal to any registration rights that are afforded to any purchasers of securities that are sold at the time of the 
Organic Change. 

 
10. NOTICES 

All notices, consents, waivers, and other communications under this Warrant must be in writing and will be deemed given to a party 
when (a) delivered to the appropriate address by hand or by nationally recognized overnight courier service (costs prepaid); (b) sent 
by facsimile or e-mail with confirmation of transmission by the transmitting equipment; (c) received or rejected by the addressee, if 
sent by certified mail, return receipt requested, if to the registered Holder hereof; or (d) seven days after the placement of the notice 
into the mails (first class postage prepaid), to the Holder at the address, facsimile number, or e-mail address furnished by the registered 
Holder to the Company in accordance with the Securities Purchase Agreement by and between the Company and the Holder, or if to 
the Company, to it at 200 Boston Ave Suite  1875 Medford,  MA 02155, Attention: Frank Reynolds, Chief Executive Officer 
(or to such other address, facsimile number, or e-mail address as the Holder or the Company as a party may designate by notice the 
other party) with a copy to Carroll  & Vounessa LLP, Three Essex Green Drive Suite 5 Peabody, MA 01960, Attention: 
D a n  C a r r o l l  

 
11. SEVERABILITY 

If a court of competent jurisdiction holds any provision of this Warrant invalid or unenforceable, the other provisions of this 
Warrant will remain in full force and effect. Any provision of this Warrant held invalid or unenforceable only in part or degree will 
remain in full force and effect to the extent not held invalid or unenforceable. 

 
12. BINDING EFFECT 

This Warrant shall be binding upon and inure to the sole and exclusive benefit of the Company, its successors and assigns, the 
registered Holder or Holders from time to time of this Warrant and the Warrant Shares. 

13. SURVIVAL OF RIGHTS AND DUTIES 

This Warrant shall terminate and be of no further force and effect on the earlier of 5:00 P.M., Eastern Time, on the Expiration 
Date or the date on which this Warrant has been exercised in full. 

 
14. GOVERNING LAW 

This Warrant will be governed by and construed under the laws of the State of New York without regard to conflicts of laws 
principles that would require the application of any other law. 

 
15. DISPUTE RESOLUTION 

In the case of a dispute as to the determination of the Exercise Price or the arithmetic calculation of the Warrant Shares, the 
Company shall submit the disputed determinations or arithmetic calculations via facsimile within two Business Days of receipt of the 
Notice of Exercise giving rise to such dispute, as the case may be, to the Holder. If the Holder and the Company are unable to agree 
upon such determination or calculation of the Exercise Price or the Warrant Shares within three Business Days of such disputed 
determination or arithmetic calculation being submitted to the Holder, then the Company shall, within two Business Days, submit via 
facsimile (a) the disputed determination of the Exercise Price to an independent, reputable investment bank selected by the Company 
and approved by the Holder or (b) the disputed arithmetic calculation of the Warrant Shares to the Company’s independent, outside 
accountant. The Company shall cause at its expense the investment bank or the accountant, as the case may be, to perform the 
determinations or calculations and notify the Company and the Holder of the results no later than ten (10) Business Days from the 
time it receives the disputed determinations or calculations. Such investment bank’s or accountant’s determination or calculation, as 
the case may be, shall be binding upon all parties absent demonstrable error. 

 
16. NOTICES OF RECORD DATE 

Upon (a) any establishment by the Company of a record date of the holders of any class of securities for the purpose of 
determining the holders thereof who are entitled to receive any dividend or other distribution, or right or option to acquire securities   
of the Company, or any other right, or (b) any capital reorganization, reclassification, recapitalization, merger or consolidation of the 
Company with or into any other corporation, any transfer of all or substantially all the assets of the Company, or any voluntary or 
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involuntary dissolution, liquidation or winding up of the Company, or the sale, in a single transaction, of a majority of the Company’s 
voting stock (whether newly issued, or from treasury, or previously issued and then outstanding, or any combination thereof), the 
Company shall mail to the Holder at least ten (10) Business Days, or such longer period as may be required by law, prior to the 
record date specified therein, a notice specifying (i) the date established as the record date for the purpose of such dividend, 
distribution, option or right and a description of such dividend, option or right, (ii) the date on which any such reorganization, 
reclassification, transfer, consolidation, merger, dissolution, liquidation or winding up, or sale is expected to become effective and 
(iii) the date, if any, fixed as to when the holders of record of Common Stock shall be entitled to exchange their shares of Common 
Stock for securities or other property deliverable upon such reorganization, reclassification, transfer, consolation, merger, dissolution, 
liquidation or winding up. 

17. RESERVATION OF SHARES 

The Company shall reserve and keep available out of its authorized but unissued shares of Common Stock for issuance upon the 
exercise of this Warrant, free from pre-emptive rights, such number of shares of Common Stock for which this Warrant shall from time 
to time be exercisable. The Company will take all such reasonable action as may be necessary to assure that such Warrant Shares may 
be issued as provided herein without violation of any applicable law or regulation. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, 
the Company covenants that it will use commercially reasonable efforts to take all such action as may be necessary or appropriate in 
order that the Company may validly and legally issue fully paid and nonassessable Warrant Shares upon the exercise of this Warrant 
and use commercially reasonable efforts to obtain all such authorizations, exemptions or consents, including but not limited to 
consents from the Company’s stockholders or Board of Directors or any public regulatory body, as may be necessary to enable the 
Company to perform its obligations under this Warrant. 

 

 
18. NO THIRD PARTY RIGHTS 

This Warrant is not intended, and will not be construed, to create any rights in any parties other than the Company and the 
Holder, and no person or entity may assert any rights as third-party beneficiary hereunder. 

 

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]  
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this Warrant to be duly executed as of the date first set forth above. 
 

PIXARBIO CORPORATION 
 

By: 
 

 

Name: Frank Reynolds 
Title:   Chief Executive Officer 

 
   



EXHIBIT E 
NOTICE OF EXERCISE 

PixarBio Corporation 
200 Boston Avenue, Suite 1875  

Medford, Massachusetts 02155 USA  
Telephone: (617) 803-8838 
E-mail: info@pixarbio.com 

This section alone does not constitute an offer by the Company or its affiliates. 
An offer may be made only by an authorized representative of the Company and the recipient must 

receive a complete Memorandum, including all Exhibits. 
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EXHIBIT E 

NOTICE OF EXERCISE 

(To be executed by the Holder of Warrant if such Holder desires to exercise Warrant) 
 

To PixarBio Corporation: 

The undersigned hereby irrevocably elects to exercise this Warrant and to purchase thereunder, full shares of 
PixarBio Corporation common stock issuable upon exercise of the Warrant and delivery of: 

 

(1) $ (in cash as provided for in the foregoing Warrant) and any applicable taxes payable by the undersigned pursuant to 
such Warrant; and 

 

(2)   shares of Common Stock (pursuant to a Cashless Exercise in accordance with Section 1(b)(ii) of the Warrant) (check 
here if the undersigned desires to deliver an unspecified number of shares equal the number sufficient to effect a Cashless Exercise 
[   ]). 

 
The undersigned requests that certificates for such shares be issued in the name of: 

 

___________________________________________ 
(Please print name, address and social security or federal employer identification number (if applicable)) 

 

___________________________________________ 
 

___________________________________________ 
 

If the shares issuable upon this exercise of the Warrant are not all of the Warrant Shares which the Holder is entitled to acquire upon 
the exercise of the Warrant, the undersigned requests that a new Warrant evidencing the rights not so exercised be issued in the name 
of and delivered to: 

 

___________________________________________ 
(Please print name, address and social security or federal employer identification number (if applicable)) 

 

___________________________________________ 
 

___________________________________________ 
 

Name of Holder (print): 

(Signature): 

 
(By:) 

 
 

(Title:) 
 

 

 
Dated: 

 

 



 

 
 

EXHIBIT F 
 

FORM OF ASSIGNMENT 
 
 

 
PixarBio Corporation 

200 Boston Avenue, Suite 1875  
Medford, Massachusetts 02155 USA  

Telephone: (617) 803-8838 
E-mail: info@pixarbio.com 

 
 
 

This section alone does not constitute an offer by the Company or its affiliates. 
An offer may be made only by an authorized representative of the Company and the recipient must 

receive a complete Memorandum, including all Exhibits. 
 

 



 

EXHIBIT F 

 
FORM OF ASSIGNMENT 

 
FOR VALUE RECEIVED, hereby sells, assigns and transfers to each assignee set forth below all of the rights 

of the undersigned under the Warrant (as defined in and evidenced by the attached Warrant) to acquire the number of Warrant Shares 
set opposite the name of such assignee below and in and to the foregoing Warrant with respect to said acquisition rights and the shares 
issuable upon exercise of the Warrant: 

 
Name of Assignee Address Number of Shares 

   

 
 
 
 

If the total of the Warrant Shares are not all of the Warrant Shares evidenced by the foregoing Warrant, the undersigned requests 
that a new Warrant evidencing the right to acquire the Warrant Shares not so assigned be issued in the name of and delivered to the 
undersigned. 

 
Name of Holder (print): 

(Signature): 

 
(By:) 

 
 

(Title:) 

Dated: 



 

 

 

 

 

 

PixarBio Business Plan 

   



Morphine Strength, Non-Opiate/Non-Opioid 
Non Addictive Pain Treatment 

Pain Portfolio: 4-8 hrs., 3-Days, 7-Days, 14-Days, 90-Days 

Novel Neurological Drug Delivery Systems

Medford, MA 
August 2016 
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1    PixarBio Background 
 
Pain is the largest medical application in the market.  Over 100,000,000 surgical and pain 
treatments are performed annually in the US, making the annual pain market exceed $30B in the 
USA. Globally surgical procedures exceed 1,000,000,000 
 
Morphine Strength, Non-addictive Non Opioid/Opiate Pain Treatment 
 
We use carbamazepine, a drug in pill form that is FDA approved for trigeminal neuralgia 
pain and we deliver it in a new way using PLGA or poly (lactic-co-glycolic acid) 
microparticles drug delivery system, in a powder form to be sprinkled on wounds for 
incision pain treatment or injected as a nerve block along nerve fibers (cables). 
 
Optimized R&D Model: Reynolds School of Business (RSB)—ALL 505(b)(2) Pathways 

 
 Targeted Drug Delivery, Tissue Engineering, and Regeneration 
 All pain products follow the US FDA 505 (b)(2) approval Pathway with our 

14-day treatment expected FDA approval in 2018 
 505 (b)(2) new post-op pain drugs benefit from a speedy less than 5 

year FDA process as opposed to up to a 10 year FDA pathway for 
Non 505(b)(2) new drugs 

 Just-in-time delivery of Science, Engineering, Funding and R&D Mgmt.  
 
PixarBio co-founder Frank Reynolds founded InVivo Therapeutics in November 2005 to develop 
the first NeuroScaffolds to treat acute traumatic spinal cord injury.  As the only employee of 
InVivo Therapeutics until 2008 Mr. Reynolds invented the first NeuroScaffolds ever conceived to 
treat or neuro-protect an acute spinal cord injury.  Frank built InVivo’s Therapeutics Chem/Bio 
labs in Medford, MA while expanding to build cGMP clean rooms in Cambridge, MA.  In addition, 
Mr. Reynolds led 100% of invention the many iterations of Neuroscaffolds in addition to a 
significant portfolio of injectable non-opiate pain treatments for acute and chronic pain based on 
his hydrogel drug delivery system.   
 
In 2012, Mr. Reynolds selected one of his NeuroScaffold devices to seek FDA approval to treat 
acute spinal cord injury.  In the spring of 2013, while leading clinical studies and regulatory 
affairs, Mr. Reynolds received the first FDA approval to begin human studies on his 
NeuroScaffold.  Due to a fractured foot that took 30 months to heal, Mr. Reynolds retired from 
InVivo Therapeutics in August 2013.   
 
In 2014, Neuroscaffold human studies resulted in the first humans to ever regain the ability to 
walk in pools and on land in braces after the most severe spinal cord injuries known as ASIA A 
spinal cord injuries.  Lastly, the patients to receive the Neuroscaffolds report improved bowel, 
bladder and sexual function.  In 2015, Mr. Reynolds received a life-time achievement award from 
the National Spinal Injury Association for invention of the NeuroScaffold.  Mr. Reynolds has won 
global science and business award for his neurological inventions. 
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Frank’s competencies in neuroscience, spinal-cord neurosurgery, drug discovery, drug delivery, 
US FDA Regulatory Affairs, Clinical Studies, cGMP Manufacturing, Patents, Intellectual Property, 
GAAP, SEC, Financial Analysis, MIS, Serialization, HR, Process Engineering, Legal, 
commercialization have all combined to lead to miraculous breakthroughs for acute/chronic pain, 
epilepsy and of course for paralyzing spinal cord injury, the NeuroScaffold™. 
 
As an inventor of Pharma, Biotech, and Medical Device inventions Mr. Reynolds leads the 
invention, R&D, regulatory, manufacturing, financing, and commercialization of all projects as the 
CEO/CFO/CSO of his companies.  Since 2010, Mr. Reynolds has raised over $100,000,000 and 
he has created over $675,000,000 in market cap valuation for his investors. 
 
Mr. Reynolds has hired leading science advisors and consultants to assist in the R&D of his 
Neurological portfolio including the areas of spinal cord injury, acute and chronic pain, epilepsy 
and Parkinson’s disease.   
 
Since Q4 2006, Dr. Robert S. Langer has been a key advisor to Mr. Reynolds, as “Bob Langer” 
is widely regarded as the co-founder of the fields of tissue engineering, drug Delivery, 
regeneration and angiogenesis inhibitors.  Bob holds more science and medical patents than any 
person in history including over 50 patents applications filed along with PixarBio co-founder 
Frank Reynolds. Everyone in our field owes their careers to Bob Langer. 
 
The Drive for Optimized Neurological Treatments 
 
On August 29, 2013, Frank Reynolds, Katrin Holzhaus, and Dr. Robert S Langer co-founded 
PixarBio to develop novel drug delivery systems for Neurological disease (PD). Dr. Jason 
Criscione was recruited to cofound PixarBio as Chief Technology Officer to co-invent 
NeuroRelease. As the founding team grew, additional co-founders Dr. Amer Khalil, Xi Chen, and 
Haining Dai joined the PixarBio co-founders team.   
 
NeuroRelease is a 505 (b)(2) pathway through the FDA which is the FDA fastest approval 
pathway for new drugs.  To quality for 505 (b) (2) pathway all components of the treatment must 
already be FDA approved and they are simply being used in a new way.  We use 
carbamazepine a drug in pill form approved for pain, and we deliver it in a new way as a powder 
so it can be sprinkled on an open wound in battle, or injected along nerve cables as nerve 
blocks. 
 
 
NeuroRelease is made of FDA approved Carbamazepine and FDA approved PLGA or poly 
(lactic-co-glycolic acid) 
 
Frank Reynolds time-tested R&D Model known as “The RSB” has produced a powerful new 
patent portfolio for PixarBio Stakeholders.  For hundreds of years, the medical community has 
demanded a morphine strength, non-addictive post-op pain that can replace morphine in the 
clinic.  As the PixarBio product portfolio evolved in his labs Mr. Reynolds again added leading 
advisors to his patent portfolio like Drs. Amer Khalil, Jason Criscione, and Bob Langer   
 
Over 70,000,000 surgeries per year in the USA require a replacement for addictive Morphine 
and opioid/opiate based pain treatments that are the current standard of care for post-op pain 
treatment in the clinic.   
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Pacira Pharmaceuticals launched Exparel in 2013 after 19 years of R&D. Exparel received FDA 
approval for single dose infiltration into the surgical site to produce post-surgical analgesia.   
 
In its phase III hemorrhoidectomy trial, 72% of patients had rebounded to opioids at 72 hours 
post-surgery. 
Exparel does not solve “Rebound pain” often cited as the cause of “Clinic-Based Addiction”.   
 
In March 2015, the US FDA rejected Exparel as Nerve Block and in June 2016 a LAST or Local 
Anesthetic Systemic Toxicity report was filed regarding adverse events during March 2016. 
 
PixarBio Maintains Industry Leading Core Competencies in Targeted Drug Delivery  
  
With core competencies in neuroscience, tissue engineering, drug delivery, regeneration, and 
optimized R&D management, and cGMP manufacturing, PixarBio made the strategic decision to 
optimize next generation micro and nanotechnology drug delivery platforms and apply them to a 
range of neurological conditions and diseases.  
  
As our research platform advanced, we explored a range of chronic neurological conditions 
currently treated in pill form, where local targeted drug delivery with long-term drug release 
profiles emerged to be logical next steps for paradigm shifting treatment options in pain, 
epilepsy, spinal cord injury, and Parkinson’s disease.  
  
As of July 2016, PixarBio Corp has evolved into a neurological innovation engine and we will be 
an important pharma leader 2016-2039, with 10+ products in our R&D portfolio.  Our primary 
focus is driving commercial development of novel neurological drug delivery systems for post-op 
pain through the FDA process.  
   
Market Demand for NeuroRelease Exceeds $30B or 100,000,000 units per year in the USA 

 
Morphine Strength Non-Opiate and Non-Addictive Pain Treatment for Post-Op Pain, Pre-clinical 
data leads us to believe that we will replace morphine in many clinical settings and patients will 
have effective pain treatment without risks of opiate addiction and without the loss of motor 
function.   Our lead product platform NeuroRelease has achieved sustained therapeutic release 
of non-opiate drugs in preclinical models and it is intended to be used for post-operative, acute 
and chronic pain.   

 
o As a 505 (b) (2) product NeuroRelease has a speedy FDA approval pathway. 
o One label for small nerve block and one label for large nerve block.   
o We’ll conduct large nerve block on total knee replacement (TKA) surgeries for 

large nerve approval 
o We’ll perform a small nerve block human study of the brachial plexus nerve 

during shoulder surgery.    
o We expect that two clinical studies in 2017 will lead to US FDA approval in 2018 

for use as a Nerve block anywhere in the body.    
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2    Executive Summary  
  
Market Desperation For Non-Opiate, Non Addictive Pain Treatment Options  
  
In Q2 2016, the FDA assigned “Black Labels” to all opioids and opiates marketed in the USA.  
In addition the Center for Disease Control (CDC) updated guidelines to say Opiates/Opioids 
should not be used in people who are in pain more than 7 days 
 
Pacira’s Exparel is the only non-opioid/non-opiate FDA approved treatment for 3-days of post-
surgical pain.  However, with 72% of Exparel patients on opiate rescue within 25 hours of 
surgery, Exparel is not therapeutically effective for much longer than one day.  Exparel is US 
FDA approved for hemorrhoidectomy and bunionectomy.  Exparel is time-release Bupivacaine 
and cost $316.50 per treatment.   
 
Exparel Reported in published Research Weak Human Study Results But still Received 
FDA approval for 3 days 
 

  Over 50% of Exparel patients can’t make it one day without opiates 
 72% of Exparel users take opiate rescue by 25 hours post-surgery 
 The average of median time to opioid rescue is 15 hours post-surgery 
 99% of Exparel Patients leave the hospital with an Opiate Prescription 

 
NeuroRelease: ONLY Post-Op Pain Treatment at The FDA 2016-2021 to not effect 
locomotion so patients can enter Physical Therapy quickly  
 

Supplier 
Product 
Name 

Active 
Ingredient 

Product 
Develop Status 

Duration of 
Treatment 

Expected FDA 
Approval 

Generic  Marcaine  Bupivacaine  Approved/Marketed
Up to 8‐24 
hours  On The Market 

Generic  Bupivacaine  Bupivacaine/Ropivacaine Approved/Marketed
Up to 8‐18 
hours  On The Market 

Pacira  Exparel  Bupivacaine  Approved/Marketed Up to 1‐3 days  2018 

Heron  HTX‐011  Bupivacaine/Meloxicam  Phase III  Up to 4 days  2018 

Durect  Posimir  Bupivacaine  Phase I  Up to 2‐3 days  2018 

PixarBio  NeuroRelease  Carbamazepine 
Pre‐Clinical 
505(b)(2) 

14 Days 
7‐Day 
3‐Day 
90‐Days 

 2018 
2018 
2020 
2020 

 
 
NeuroRelease is the only non-addictive pain treatment that will ever treat 
pain for more than 4 days and NeuroRelease is the only non-toxic 
treatment under review at the FDA and is reviewed under the 505 (b)(2) 
pathway 
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3    Market Opportunity 
 
PixarBio Targeted Market Opportunity- Product Launch 
PixarBio Price Point control- We believe that with market economies of scale we can sell 
NeuroRelease pain between $150.00 and $316.50 per treatment.  The current cost of Exparel is 
$316.50 per injection 

 
Potential Market: Achieve 57% market adoption for Top 15 Surgeries in the USA 
Represents $2.179Billion Annual Sales 
 
PixarBio’s Targeted Annual Nerve Block Surgical Procedures: 5.3 million  
 
Revenues:  $1.7B @ $316.5 and $928MM @ $175 
 

• Hernias:  1,000,000                Breast Augmentation:  280,000  
• Total Knee Arthroplasty: 929,000    Bariatric:  200,000 
• Reduction of Fracture: 995,000    Mastectomies:  180,000 
• Rotator Cuff:  660,000   Tummy Tuck:  130,000 
• Colorectal:  600,000     Breast Reconstruction: 100,000 
• Spine (TLIF/PLIF): 1,189,624    ACL Repair:  250,000  
• Total Hip: 332,000      Total Shoulder Arthroplasty:  708,000  
• Foot & Ankle:  300,000   

 
Market Opportunity: Top 15 Surgeries in the USA Represents $2.179B Annual Sales 
 

 
 
 
 
 

TOP 15 NON‐OPIOID, NON‐ADDICTIVE POST‐OP 

OPPORTUNITIES ‐ PROCEDURES/SURGERIES

% Responders want 

a Non‐Opioid 3‐day 14‐day  Total Procedures   Total Dollarized  14‐Day Dollarized

A B C  D   E  F

Anesthesia‐nerve blocks/injections (Knee) 95% 30% 35% 4,502,370                   1,425,000,105$       473,812,535$         

Anesthesia‐nerve blocks/injections (Shoulder) 95% 33% 33% 2,251,185                   712,500,053$          225,625,017$         

Spine Surgery  81% 0% 100% 1,189,624                   376,515,996$          304,977,957$         

Fracture Repair  80% 0% 82% 995,000                      314,917,500$          207,475,059$         

Anesthesia‐nerve blocks/injections (Hip) 85% 40% 33% 2,251,185                   712,500,053$          201,875,015$         

Knee Replacement 90% 0% 73% 929,000                      294,028,500$          194,058,810$         

C‐Section Delivery 90% 20% 40% 1,300,000                   411,450,000$          148,122,000$         

Injection‐paravertebral facet joint‐w/wo ultrasound   60% 27% 40% 1,026,856                   324,999,924$          77,999,982$           

Shoulder Arthroscopy 65% 7% 53% 708,000                      224,082,000$          77,681,760$           

Hip Replacement, Total 80% 0% 71% 332,000                      105,078,000$          60,044,571$           

Hysterectomy 90% 11% 44% 400,000                      126,600,000$          50,640,000$           

Rotator Cuff Tear Repair 75% 0% 69% 272,148                      86,134,842$            44,413,278$           

Amputation 100% 15% 50% 247,000                      78,175,500$            39,087,750$           

Hip Nailing for Hip Fracture 55% 0% 69% 307,100                      97,197,150$            37,009,684$           

Ligament Reconstruction – ACL, MCL, PCL 70% 0% 67% 250,000                      79,125,000$            36,925,000$           

Averages/Total Dollars 81% 12% 57% 16,961,468                 5,368,304,622$       2,179,748,417$     
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3A    Competitive Market Analysis- The Bupivacaine/Opioid Issue 
 
 In Q2 2016, the FDA gave “Black Box” label to all Opioids/Opiates which mean every dose 

has the potential to do harm to the body and may lead to death 
 In Q2 2016, the US Center for Disease Control (USCDC) issued Opioid/Opiates Use 

guidelines in which they recommended that opiates for acute pain beyond 7 days will rarely 
be needed. 

 Our non-addictive competitors are Bupivacaine-based pain treatments. Bupivacaine is a local 
anesthetic with low potency that blocks sensory and is associated with concentration 
dependent motor blockade. 

 Bupivacaine has associated concentration and time dependent risks of neurotoxicity, so 
prolonged exposure is ill-advised.   

 Bupivacaine products struggle to treat pain longer than 5 days due to small body cavity 
space and inherent low potency.  ON-Q pumps (catheterized delivery of bupivacaine) are 
FDA approved for up to 5 days but a one-time injection of NeuroRelease is preferred to a 
catheter pump by patients and clinicians. 

 Purdue Pharma: In Sept 2015, two FDA advisory committees voted 23 to 1 not to 
recommend approval of Avridi, abuse deterrent OxyContin in September 2015.  Avridi is 
physically addictive.  Collegium was recently approved for an abuse deterrant opioid but it is 
addictive like OxyContin  

 All abuse deterrant Opioids/Opiates may be physically addictive, they simply cannot be 
smoked, crushed, or injected by drug addicts 

 Our bupivacaine competitors have risks of neuro-toxic, myotoxic and cardio-toxic events 
 

3B    NeuroRelease vs. Competition  
  
Exparel- The only FDA approved extended-delivery post-surgical pain drug   
  
Exparel has been FDA approved for single-dose infiltration into the surgical site to produce post-
surgical analgesia. However, in its phase III hemorrhoidectomy trial, 72% of patients had 
rebounded to opioids at 72 hours post-surgery. 
 
PixarBio founder, Frank Reynolds has been in chronic pain since December 1992 when he was 
paralyzed during a spine implant surgery, and the spine implant was rejected by the FDA for use 
in the spine in 1991. 
 
NOTHING motivates us MORE to invent, than to out-invent poorly market FDA approved 
products. 
 
Liposomal system inherent challenges limits to short-term or acute pain release profile  
 Exparel storage as an aqueous suspension induces release of bupivacaine into the 

suspension media as the diffusion gradients approach equilibrium, thus, Exparel is a cold 
chain product.   

 This causes fluctuations in duration of efficacy observed in the clinical administration of 
Exparel, as the half-life of bupivacaine is short-lived.   
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3C    Is Exparel experiencing an “End of Product Lifecycle” trajectory? 
 
Exparel has achieved high brand awareness but market penetration has not followed at 
about 3 percent. Q2 earnings report showed a 15% growth rate, year over year (Jan-June 
2015 v 2016). 
 
After 20+ years of R&D Exparel manufacturing is constrained to 1,000,000 units/year 
 
Exparel has struggled with unrestricted use in major hospitals throughout the nation due 
to concerns over cost and efficacy. 
 Inconsistencies among surgeons due to variability on infiltration technique with regards to a 

product that is heavily dependent on technique and volume expansion has been an ongoing 
issue. 

 Knee surgery requires multiple injection with a delayed onset. 
 FDA LAST filing-neurotoxic adverse events report in June 2016 
 
On March 2, 2015, the USFDA rejected Exparel for nerve blocks.  
 Exparel’s liposomal drug delivery system is not biodegradable. 
 Key Pacira patents protecting DepoFoam, Exparel’s liposomal delivery system, expired in 

2013 
 Exparel blocks both motor and sensory fibers compared to NeuroRelease that impacts just 

sensory fibers, so there is no impact on walking or moving around 
 
 
3D    NeuroRelease Invented 2014 vs. DepoFoam Patent Invented 1993 
 
The Exparel liposomal drug delivery system (DepoFoam) which was selected in 1993, has 
the following biomaterials limitations:  
  
• Cannot achieve long-term, sustained delivery of bupivacaine so we believe that it will 

NEVER treat chronic pain  
• Liposomal membrane instability, that translates to inconsistent release profiles because 

of the liposomal “popping mechanism” thus no control of release  
• Not bioresorbable, so the residual material must be cleared either by the reticulo-

endothelial system (RES) or by membrane fusion and lipid bilayer reorganization  
• Average particle size is ~32 microns which restricts the selection of needle gauge for 

administration  
• The fabrication technique necessitates storage as an aqueous suspension which causes 

great product stability and quality variations, since diffusion gradients approach equilibrium 
causing drug release, thus, Exparel is a cold chain product to minimize this issue.  

• Is delivered by an infiltration technique that requires hours of training and education, 
and changes the standard of care.  Results vary from injection to injection  and of course 
results vary from physician to physician  
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 Bupivacaine has the following limitations:  

• Bupivacaine has low potency so you need A LOT to be effective, Body cavities all 
over the body have physical constraints/limits and injection volumes are limited by 
the anatomical space around the injection site 

• Common sense tells you there are limits of Bupivacaine dosage 
• The small body cavities and low potency limit the potential therapeutic effects of Exparel 

to about 4 days following administration. 
• Primary Exparel mechanism of action is the blockade of the “open” state of voltage-gated 

sodium channels so its administration affects both sensory and motor function. 
• Both motor and sensory tracts are affected and there have been reports of falls in knee 

surgery patients during human studies with Exparel. 
• Effect on motor function is concentration dependent which restricts Exparel dosing, so 

you can’t just inject more, as you’ll likely lose more ability to function.   
• In June 2016, Pacira reported a LAST filing or “Local Anesthetic Systemic Toxicity” 

filing to the US FDA related to toxicity events with Exparel 
 
 
 
 

 
NeuroRelease vs. Exparel:  Only FDA Approved Real World Competitor  
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NeuroRelease vs. Bupivacaine:  FDA Clinical Study Face-Off  
 
 How could Bupivacaine, an 8-hour pain drug, treat pain better than 14-Day NeuroRelease? 

  
 

4   PixarBio Product Development: New Drug NeuroRelease 

 
NeuroRelease provides nerve block but has no impact on motor function 
 

-Morphine Strength Non-Opiate and Non-Addictive Pain Treatment for Post-Op Pain 
 
Nerve Block Defined  
 
Nerve block is a general term used to refer to the injection of local anesthetic onto or near nerves 
for control of pain. Nerve blocks can be single injections but have limited duration of action. 
When extended pain management is required, a catheter is used to deliver bupivacaine 
continuously using an external pump.   
  
According to Thomson Data in 2013, over 9,000,000 nerve blocks were performed in the 
USA.   
 
PixarBio surveys show the top 15 surgeries in a hospital system today, will utilize approximately 
5,368,304 nerve block procedures annually in the USA. 

 
In June 2016, PixarBio signed 7 of top 20 Knee and Hip Society Surgeons in the 
USA to the PixarBio Clinical Advisory Board to advise on market adoption and 
clinical trial management 
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• NeuroRelease comprises FDA approved drug Carbamazepine and FDA 
Approved polymer drug delivery system PLGA 

• PixarBio NeuroRelease is biodegradable, and selectively blocks sensory 
fibers without creating motor blockade and negatively impacting locomotion.  
It’s Non-Addictive. 

• NeuroRelease is patent pending with expiration date set to begin expiring 
between 11/18/2034 and June 2036.  

• We expect NeuroRelease to reduce morphine intake, expedite the start of 
physical therapy, reduce costs of hospital stays, and treat severe pain without 
addictive side-effects.  

  
PixarBio’s pending pain patents will protect PixarBio’s novel NeuroRelease drug delivery system 
for delivering a range of FDA approved neurological medicines to treat post-op pain, acute and 
chronic pain.  
 
The Preclinical behavioral data below is 99.99999 (5- 9’s) of reliability and easily Replicatable.   
 
 
 

4A    PixarBio’s NeuroRelease: Drug Delivery Platform- 505 (b)(2) Path 
at the FDA 
  
PixarBio’s NeuroRelease combines FDA-approved PLGA polymer and FDA approved 
Carbamazepine to treat trigeminal neuralgia pain 

 Carbamazepine is FDA to treat Trigeminal Neuralgia Pain in pill form, but we locally 
inject the drug and release it over time reducing side-effects and maximizing pain 
treatment effect 

 PixarBio’s NeuroRelease PLGA microparticles shares the same proven delivery 
system utilized in several FDA-approved and marketed injectable suspension 
products 

o Risperdal Consta, Vivitrol, Lupron Depot    
 NeuroRelease is a biodegradable, polymeric microparticle platform designed to sustain 

and control release of anticonvulsants for durations of hours to days to weeks to months.  
o Ability to control the size, drug loading, release and degradation rates to sustain 

multiple desired durations of therapeutic efficacy   
o Ability to reinject after treatment effect wares off  
o Ability to be handled and stored as a stable, dry powder at room temperature 
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4B    PixarBio’s NeuroRelease Drug Selection: Carbamazepine is 
Optimal for Post-Op Pain 
  
PixarBio’s NeuroRelease incorporates carbamazepine, a non-addictive, anti-epileptic drug 
(AED) approved by the FDA in the late 1960’s and indicated to treat both epilepsy and for 
trigeminal neuralgia or chronic pain  
 

 The selectivity of carbamazepine enables this AED to block sensory signals without  
effecting motor function or fine, 2-point discriminative touch NeuroRelease enables 
controlled and sustained, local delivery of carbamazepine to achieve therapeutic efficacy 
with no undesired systemic side effects  

 After 50 years of published research carbamazepine has no known nerve toxicity  
 Key PixarBio patents will begin to expire in 2034, please see section 7 on 

intellectual property.   
 

 
4C    PixarBio Preclinical Data Overview  
  
In order to maximize R&D output, PixarBio maintains a rodent vivarium located in Cambridge, 
MA.   We have Achieved 99.99999 reliability in the data across pain treatment timelines 
 
NeuroRelease Biomaterials Data  
  

• Reproducibly fabricate the microparticles using a simple and scalable emulsification 
method.  

• Reproducibly control the loading of carbamazepine across the range of 0.5-20 
weight percent.  

• Reproducibly control the particle size and surface characteristics to yield 
reconstitutable microparticles. 

o Microparticle size was selected to ensure that NeuroRelease would be easily 
injected without changing the standard of care for peripheral nerve blocks 

o Microparticle polydispersity was specifically engineered to achieve rapid onset of 
therapeutic efficacy.  

• Reproducibly control the release rate of carbamazepine and microparticle 
degradation rate by controlling the biomaterial science properties and microparticle size 

o In vitro release kinetics have been evaluated for all materials fabricated to show 
a range of release rates spanning durations of days, to weeks, to months. 

• Suitability of terminal sterilization with e-beam has been demonstrated. 
 
Regarding the polymer biomaterial selected for the single dose peripheral nerve block preclinical 
studies, carbamazepine is released at therapeutically efficacious levels for 14 days and the 
material degrades within 6 weeks post-injection.  
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4D    NeuroRelease Safety and Toxicology Data (comparable to Human 
Phase I)  
 
Carbamazepine has been researched for 50 years and it has never been toxic  

 PixarBio has performed safety and toxicology preclinical studies in rodents and is 
currently performing safety and toxicology preclinical studies in pigs to enable IND 
submission.  

 Histopathological analysis of the perineural depot injection site in rodents shows no 
neurotoxicity, no myotoxicity, and no evidence of foreign body response 

 Pharmacokinetics analysis in rodents showed orders of magnitude lower systemic 
concentrations of carbamazepine compared to orally administered carbamazepine  

o 200 to 1000-fold lower blood plasma levels than oral dosage 
 

4E   NeuroRelease Preclinical Efficacy Studies Data (comparable 
Human Phase II) 
 

 Replicatable efficacy data 99.99999 has been obtained showing sustained 
peripheral nerve block for 14 days in the “gold standard” rodent (rat) model of 
sciatica 

 Evaluated by von Frey anesthesiometry and thermal plantar analysis 
 No motor deficit confirmed with gate analysis 
 Compared efficacy with bupivacaine and Exparel and found that sciatic nerve block with 

either bupivacaine or Exparel only provides therapeutic efficacy for 4 hours, consistent 
with published literature from Boston Children’s Hospital – Dr. Daniel Kohane’s group.  

  
The chart below shows that when combined, PLGA microparticles and Carbamazepine 
provide therapeutics pain effect not achieved by Exparel 
 
NeuroRelease has achieved effectiveness across timelines 
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The data shows that when PLGA (NR-vehicle control) is combined with CBZ, the results is the 
light green NR(CBZ) 14-day treatment profile, that provides therapeutics pain effect not 
achieved by Exparel 

 
 
 
5    Regulatory Affairs, Clinical Studies, and Manufacturing 
 
Our human studies will be performed at the Hospital for Special Surgery NYC, The Hoag Los 
Angeles, Mayo Clinic, OrthoCarolina, and the Cleveland Clinic.  These centers average a 
combined 1500+ surgeries per week and we only need 260 subjects for the first FDA approval. 
 
Clinical studies are 30 days, and submitted to the FDA within 90 days of first 
patient enrollment 
 
Phase I & II Combined= 160 or 8-arms in the study with 20 subjects per arm   
Phase III study= 100 subjects or 5-arms in the study with 20 subjects per arm 
 
All three clinical study phases for small nerve or large nerve approval is just 260 subjects for 
small OR large Nerve block approval.   
 

 The PixarBio executive team has experience doing the required tasks for FDA approval 
 Short human studies take just 30 days, lead to FDA approval in 2018 
 260 total patients required for FDA Approval for “small nerve, Nerve Blocks” 
 260 total patients are required for FDA approval for “large nerve, Nerve Block” 
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 Nerve Block Approval for the entire Body requires about 520 subjects 
 Our first clinical trial site conducts over 500 surgeries per week 
 We’ll capture our patients quickly and submit results to the FDA within 90 days of starting 

the human study 
 
 

 
 
5A    NeuroRelease US FDA Regulatory Path: 505 (b)(2)   
  

 
• The Drug Carbamazepine and the Polymer PLGA were FDA approved in the 1960’s so 

PixarBio has a 505 (b)(2) pathway through the US FDA.  The safety profiles for both 
PLGA and Carbamazepine are well known.  
 

• Live US FDA PIND meeting on September 30, 2015 confirmed our IND package and 
discuss our pathway to clinical studies in late 2017 and FDA approvals expected in 2018  

  
• NeuroRelease comprises PLGA, a FDA approved biomaterial in combination with 

Carbamazepine an FDA approved drug so safety profiles of our treatments are very well 
known and both suppliers have US FDA DMF’s Drug Master Files  

  
• Combined Phase I & II Clinical studies includes six arms with 20 patients in each arm, 

totaling 160 patients per study and the clinical face-off is NeuroRelease vs. Bupivacaine. 
 

• Phase III clinical study include 8 arms with 20 patients in each arm totaling 160 patients 
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• The obvious benefit of using FDA approved components for a drug delivery system is 
our safety profile and safety data is excellent.  

  
• Rapid Clinical study turnaround:  clinical post-op pain studies have low enrollment 

numbers of 20 subjects in a study arm and the studies will complete in 30 days.  
PixarBio will complete multiple clinical studies for multiple products every year   

  
• Our cGMP facility and it will be online in Q1:2017 to support 2017 and 2018 clinical 

studies.  
 
 
Forecasted US FDA 505 (b)(2) Regulatory Path For NeuroRelease Pain absent 
expedited review, which we expect to be approved in 2017  
 
2016-2017      Build out cGMP Facility, Submit & Receive IND approval, initiate clinical studies   
2018               Submit NDA to FDA for 14 Day, expect FDA approval for 14 Days 
2019  Submit IND for 3-Day “sprinkle 0n”; submit IND for 90- Day NeuroRelease 
2020  Receive FDA approval for 3-Day “sprinkle On”, 90 day pain product 
 
 

 
5B    PixarBio Clinical Study Requirements 
 

 PixarBio expects two product labels from the FDA 
o Small Nerve Label-one is for small nerve, nerve blocks 
o Large Nerve Label- two is for large nerve, nerve blocks 
 

 Led by PixarBio founder Frank Reynolds, a Harvard trained in the management of 
clinical studies researcher, Mr. Reynolds has been involved with clinical studies 
for over 25 years and led Clinical Affairs at InVivo Therapeutics Corp for almost 8 
years 

 The two labels will allow PixarBio to market NeuroRelease for nerve blocks 
around the entire body 

 505(b)(2) pathway allows the small nerve and the large nerve clinical studies have 
the same exact clinical study trial design 

 PixarBio Discussed clinical study design with the FDA at Sept 2015 PIND Meeting  
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Shoulder/Knee Surgery--Small Nerve/Large Nerve Clinical Phases I & II Combined 
 

 
 
 
The 505(b)(2) pathway permits PixarBio to combine phases I & II because 
our components of the NeuroRelease system have been found to be non-
toxic for over 50 years 
 
 
 

Shoulder/Knee Surgery--Small Nerve/Large Nerve Phase III Study 

 
 
 
We are frequently asked about why the Phase III study at 100 subjects is small 
compared to other phase III human studies that investors typically evaluate.   
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The answer is quite simple our components have 50 years of safety data so large 
sample size numbers aren’t required to get statistical significance on the data.  In 
addition, PixarBio pre-clinical data is binary at 99.99999 reliability has been so powerful 
that large numbers of human subjects in each arm are NOT required. 
 
Pacira’s Exparel also had 20 patients in each arms of the studies.  
 
 
 
5C    PixarBio cGMP Manufacturing 
 
PixarBio expects to manufacture 10,000,000 units per year for each 
facility.  Pacira Exparel manufacturing has been limited to under 
1,000,000 units per year 
 
PixarBio CEO Frank Reynolds has patented and led cGMP manufacturing for over a decade.  At 
InVivo Therapeutics Frank led pre-clinical and clinical cGMP manufacturing from the founding of 
InVivo until his retirement in August 2013.   
 
It’s rare that a Pharma CEO also has cGMP manufacturing experience but that’s the benefit of 
20 years of relevant university study at some globally renowned institutions, such as Penn 
Engineering, MIT, Harvard, Wharton, St Joseph’s, Temple University, Rider University, and 
Chestnut Hill College, THEN integrating formal education with a great mix of small and large 
company career experiences involving pharma in order to gain a complete range of skillsets to 
invent new medical treatments from concept to revenue generation. 
 
Frank Reynolds has designed and/or built cGMP clean rooms for combination drug/polymer 
products.  There isn’t a manufacturing process at PixarBio that Frank hasn’t patented and 
experience doing during his career.  The Process flow is comprised of Pharma industry 
manufacturing equipment so the skill sets we need are available in the marketplace.  We’ve 
scaled our process from 365,000 units per year to 10,000,000 units per year, for each 100,000 
square foot cGMP manufacturing facility 
 
PixarBio Corporation will bring a cGMP pilot production facility online in 2017 to support 
IND/NDA enabling studies for NeuroRelease (14 day), including the production of clinical lots to 
support clinical trials.  Toward these ends, pilot production scale-up will occur over three phases, 
resulting in a projected maximum capacity of 365,000 units/year.   
 
Further, the pilot facility will be utilized to demonstrate the capability of manufacturing 10 times 
the initial batch size produced during the first scale-up phase.  This pilot production facility will be 
utilized to support the launch of NeuroRelease (14 day).  Additionally, this pilot production facility 
will subsequently be similarly utilized for initial scale-up and pilot production of other 
NeuroRelease pipeline products (e.g. 3 day and 7 day). 
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Commercial production will be performed in a 100,000 ft2 facility equipped to manufacture the 
largest batch size demonstrated within the pilot production facility.  Based on the design of the 
commercial facility and 3 shifts of operation, the projected maximum capacity of this facility is 
10,000,000 units/year.  Bringing four of these commercial production facilities online will 
yield a projected capacity of 40,000,000 units/year to meet market demand.       
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Annual Manufacturing Production Capacity:  10,000,000 units per year 
from each 100,000 sq. foot manufacturing facility 
 
The final product is shipped to the end user after final product release from our sterilization 
partner, who also supports the processing of returned products. 
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6    Sales and Marketing 
 

Solving the problem of “rebound pain” beyond 48 hours post-surgery 
 
 
Chief Commercial Officer David Kaplan 
 
David Kaplan PixarBio Chief Commercial Officer will roll out NeuroRelease to leading hospitals 
around the United States and beyond to all tiers of hospitals.   
 
From 2014 - May 2016, David was VP Global Sales at Pacira Pharmaceuticals responsible for 
hiring over 90% of Exparel sales people and all the sales managers at Pacira during his tenure.  
David owned top-line sales results for Exparel from 2014-2016.  After reviewing publically 
released post-product launch data, stating that 72% of Exparel patients required opiate rescue 
by 25 hours post-surgery, (including David’s own father’s knee implant) David left Pacira for 
PixarBio in May 2016. 
 
Exparel has 90% brand awareness, yet only 3% market penetration  
 
David perspective on the post-op pain market is unique.  PixarBio will launch NeuroRelease into 
a desperate market for a true pain treatment that removes opiates and addiction and the results 
will be HUGE! As we mitigate rebound pain and reduce clinic based addiction. 
 
We will be able to use common sense and logic to avoid major mistakes made by Pacira’s 
market launch before David Kaplan was brought in to lead the Exparel product launch.   Initially, 
Pacira had hired Taunia Markvicka, to launch Exparel but after a failed launch Pacira hired David 
Kaplan to replace Ms. Markvicka 
 
David has extensive in-operating room selling experience that’s relevant to launching a product 
that will be key to success of the entire surgical experience for the patient and the healthcare 
system. 
 
Formula to Staff Field Sales Team 
 

1. 1 Regional Director per 6-10 Postsurgical Pain Specialist (PPS) 
2. 1 PPS per major market (est. 57 in the USA at NeuroRelease launch) 
3. 10-20 major accounts per PPS (not including ASCs) 

 
 
Total Staff at Launch 

• 1 National Sales Director (NSD) 
• 9 Regional Directors (RD) 
• 57 PPSs 

 
 
 



  22 

 
 
PixarBio CEO has over 400 industry sales resumes ready to join PixarBio’s product launch.   
 
We will choose the cream of the crop to join our PixarBio launch team 
 
 
PixarBio has an extensive list of sales candidates for NeuroRelease and we see no problem in 
filing the salesforce positions before initial launch 
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7    PixarBio Intellectual Property: PixarBio’s Patent Picket Fence  

The patent picket fence:  our patents focus on protecting composition, methods of use, kinetics, 
and duration of efficacy.   
  
Bob Langer is #1 in the history of US Life science patents, trailing only Thomas Edison for #1 in 
US history of patents.  We predict Bob Langer will pass Thomas Edison to be #1 and we will 
help him achieve that milestone by co-inventing for a range of neurological conditions.  
  
Our founding team has been co-inventing together for over a decade on over 50+ neurological 
patent applications.  The patents have been based on the RSB picket fence approach to patent 
protection.  
  
During 2013-2015, PixarBio filed more than 15 provisional and final patents for Parkinson’s 
disease, epilepsy, spinal cord injury and pain.  We selectively chose to continue to file our pain, 
epilepsy, and spinal cord injury patents while creating trade secrets for our Parkinson’s disease 
treatments.  Frank Reynolds and Jason Criscione are the holders of the trade secrets regarding 
Parkinson’s disease and epilepsy.  
 
 
Our patents focus on protecting composition, methods of use, kinetics, and duration of 
efficacy.   
  
 Description of the patent disclosure for acute, post-operative, or chronic pain  

Type of claim  Description of Claims  

Composition  Fabrication methods   

Composition  Biodegradable polymer or copolymer selection  

Composition  Anticonvulsant selection  

Composition  Control over particle size distribution  

Composition  Control over anticonvulsant loading  

Kinetics  Ability to release less than 60% of the anticonvulsant for times spanning 
3 hours to 12 months  

Duration of 
efficacy  

Ability to maintain delivery of a therapeutically effective dose of the 
anticonvulsant for durations spanning 3 hours to 12 months  

Methods of use  Utility in the treatment of a multitude of pain indications where peripheral nerve 
blocks are possible  
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PixarBio’s Patent Applications 
  
7A     PixarBio Pain Portfolio 
 
For “COMPOSITIONS FOR TREATING ACUTE, POST-OPERATIVE, OR CHRONIC PAIN 
AND METHODS OF USING THE SAME”  
  

 Provisional Patent Application No. 62/081,162 filed on November 18, 2014  
 U.S. Non-Provisional Patent Application No. 14/628,563 filed on February 23, 2015  
 International Patent Application No. PCT/US2015/017112 filed on February 23, 2015  
 U.S. Non-Provisional CIP Application No. 14/938,274 filed on November 11, 2015   
 International Patent Application No.  PCT/US2015/060093 filed on November 11, 2015  

 
  
NeuroRelease “Sprinkle On” Pain Powder For “METHODS FOR TREATING 
INCISIONAL PAIN” 

 Provisional Patent Application No. 62/337,033 filed on May 16, 2016 
 
 
For “COMPOSITIONS COMPRISING NAV1.7 SELECTIVE INHIBITORS FOR TREATING 
ACUTE, POST-OPERATIVE, OR CHRONIC PAIN AND METHODS OF USING THE SAME” 
 

 Provisional Patent Application No. 62/298,729 filed on February 23, 2016 
 
 
7B    Spinal Cord Injury Portfolio 

 
For “COMPOSITIONS FOR INHIBITING INFLAMMATION IN A SUBJECT WITH A SPINAL 
CORD INJURY AND METHODS OF USING THE SAME”  

  
 Provisional Patent Application No. 62/037,628 filed on August 15, 2014  
 U.S. Non-Provisional Patent Application No. 14/826,541 filed on August 14, 2015  
 International Patent Application No. PCT/US2015/045199 filed on August 14, 2015  

  
For “COMPOSITIONS FOR AN INJECTABLE, IN SITU FORMING NEUROSCAFFOLD AND 
METHODS OF USING THE SAME”  
  

 Provisional Application No. 62/236,309 filed on October 2, 2015   
  

7C    Epilepsy Patent Portfolio 
 
For “METHODS OF TREATING EPILEPSY OR SEIZURE DISORDERS”  

  
 U.S. Non-Provisional CIP Application No. 14/943,846 filed on November 17, 2015  
 International Patent Application No.  PCT/US2015/061066 filed on November 17, 2015  
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8    PixarBio Financial Forecast 
 
Since 2008, PixarBio CEO/CFO Frank Reynolds has out-performed hedge funds 
every year, creating over $800M in Market Cap, as investors continue to invest in 
Frank’s inventions. 
 
The typical CFO in Pharma has less than 1% of the company shares so investors and 
management are rarely aligned.     
 
Frank Reynolds owns almost 70% of PixarBio and at almost 70% ownership investors and 
management goals are aligned.  
 
PIxarBio has been well funded since our inception.  As an entrepreneur funded investment we 
have been able to minimize cost of capital while maximizing the options for financing.   
 
In August 2016, PixarBio is pricing our offering at $175,000,000 pre-money. 
 

o We believe that as we continue to invest in R&D our valuation will be impacted 
and as we approach FDA approval we will experience a series of value creating 
events for shareholders. 

o We expect that our 7-day NeuroRelease pain product will follow our 
NeuroRelease 14 day pain treatment approximately in 2019 about six months 
after we launch the 14-day product. 

o Economies of scale result in lower cost of goods sold and will enable PixarBio 
price flexibility to enter the marketplace.    

 
A morphine strength non-addictive pain treatment has been sought for centuries, when 
combining all annual costs of healthcare for acute and chronic pain in the USA, it exceeds 
$30,000,000,000 therefore, the financial reward for new pain treatments is HUGE. 
 
Financial Assumptions: 
 

 Sales Forecast only include NeuroRelease 14 day treatment revenue begins in 2019  
 No revenue is forecasted for spinal cord injury or epilepsy products 

 
 Price Point:  PixarBio current reimbursement rate of Exparel which is $316.50/vial 
 Forecasted units sold is conservative, based on the only market comparable, Exparel, 

which was slowly adopted due to a wide range of issues that PixarBio expects to avoid 
 PixarBio expects Gross Margin to exceed 80% 
 PixarBio expects Net Profit margin to exceed 40% 
 First sales revenue are forecasted for early 2019, with a logical market adoption rate  
 PixarBio will employ over 500 people by the end of 2019 
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PixarBio Projected Income Statement 
 

 
 
 
PixarBio Cap Table as of June 30, 2016 
 

Name Ownership % 

Frank Reynolds 66.58% 

Bob Langer 16.72% 

Other Investors 16.70% 

Total  100.0% 

 
 
 
 
 

 

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026

Sales - -                -   80,000 180,000 400,000 600,000 900,000 1,232,500 1,688,000 2,311,000

Net Revenue -                -   80,000 180,000 400,000 600,000 900,000 1,232,500 1,688,000 2,311,000

COGS - -                -   12,800 28,800 64,000 96,000 144,000 197,200 270,000 370,000

Gross Profit             -               -                  -   67,200 151,200 336,000 504,000 756,000 1,035,300 1,418,000 1,941,000

Gross Profit Margin 84.0% 84.0% 84.0% 84.0% 84.0% 84.0% 84.0% 84.0%

Operating Expenses

R&D Facilities 5,638 12,356 19,433 14,527 13,588 9,533 13,595 13,604 13,608 13,612 17,674

R&D 4,788 12,944 14,468 24,269 29,678 33,733 36,819 39,573 42,125 44,501 49,243

Total R&D 10,426 25,300 33,901 38,796 43,266 43,266 50,414 53,177 55,733 58,113 66,917

Professional Fees        1,525        1,184           1,544        1,699        1,784        1,834         1,934 1,934 1,934 1,934 1,934

G&A 6,013 10,117 15,282 34,905 45,278 54,674 64,162 76,168 88,970 105,246 129,385

Total Operating Expenses 17,964 36,601 50,727 75,400 90,328 99,774 116,510 131,279 146,637 165,293 198,236

Operating Profit (EBIT) (17,964) (36,601) (50,727) (8,200) 60,872 236,226 387,490 624,721 888,663 1,252,707 1,742,764 

Operating Profit Margin -10.3% 33.8% 59.1% 64.6% 69.4% 72.1% 74.2% 75.4%

.

Non-Operating Expenses

Interest Expense             -   - - - -             -    -             -               -                -                - 

Earning Before Taxes (17,964) (36,601) (50,727) (8,200) 60,872 236,226 387,490 624,721 888,663 1,252,707 1,742,764 

Provision for Taxes             -               -                  -               -   21,305 82,679 135,622 218,652 311,032 438,447 609,967 

Tax Rate 35% 35% 35% 35% 35% 35% 35%

Net Income (17,964) (36,601) (50,727) (8,200) 39,567 153,547 251,869 406,069 577,631 814,260 1,132,797

Net Profit Margin -10.3% 22.0% 38.4% 42.0% 45.1% 46.9% 48.2% 49.0%

PixarBio Corporation

Projected Income Statement FYE Dec 31

(In $ Thousands Except Percentages)
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9    Work Plan for funds 
 
Bring on-line and staff our cGMP manufacturing facility 
Conduct clinical studies in 2017-2018 and submit FDA application in 2018 
  
• Pilot cGMP facility expected early 2017 facility to include 50,000 sq. feet of lab/office space 

in addition to the 20,000 Sq. ft. we have in Medford, MA, Cambridge, MA, Salem and Fort 
Lee NJ.  

• cGMP facility will house our cleanroom, equipped to produce products for clinical study 
treatment, R&D labs, and new global HQ  

• Fine tuning of the facility will require cGMP calibration and validation processes, to bring the 
cGMP facility online in 2017.    

• Complete the scale-up process from the bench to the pilot manufacturing line, to the 
production facility, we’ll need 3 process development engineers that will work with the R&D 
team to produce the product and generate SOPs.  

  
In Q1, 2017, the cGMP facility will hire:  
  

 VP of cGMP Manufacturing and Process Development  
 Four Manufacturing Engineers 
 20 technicians for fabrication  
 Four QA specialists  
 One QA Director - package the product for terminal sterilization of the product.    
 Sr. Analytical Chemist  
 Three analytical chemists for the QC team to support release of raw materials into the 

cGMP process, perform in process materials analysis, and perform lot testing for product 
release.  

 Facilities Manager to maintain labs, raw materials and supplies.  
 Shipping/receiving manager for finished product.  

 

 Q4'16‐Q4'17 

HR & Payroll  $12,568,352 

Professional Fees  $1,558,000 

Plant & Facilities  $13,916,879 

R&D Supplies  $719,400 

Lab Operations  $2,520,999 

G&A  $2,862,615 

Total  $34,146,244 
 
Total Investment to Date: $12.3M 
2015 monthly burn: $411,000 
Current monthly burn: $850,000 
2017 Forecasted monthly burn: $3,050,000 
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10    PixarBio Leadership Team 
 
Please visit www.pixarbio.com for complete Bio’s 
 
10A    PXRB Operations team 

 Frank Reynolds, CEO/CFO/CSO 
 Dr. Jason Criscione, Chief Technology Officer 
 David Kaplan, Chief Commercial Officer 
 Steve Chartier, VP Regulatory Affairs, Clinical, and CMC 
 Katrin Holzhaus, Chief Administration Officer 
 Kenneth Stromsland, CIO/Investor Relations 
 Dr. Amer Khalil, Medical Director 
 Dr. Michael Lovett, Director R&D 
 Dr. Dana Tilley, Neuroscience Lead 
 Mary Phelan, Controller 

 
10B    PXRB Independent Science Advisory Board 

 Dr. Robert S Langer, MIT 
 Dr Neel Mehta, NY Presbyterian, NYC 
 Dr. Amitabh Gulati, Sloan Kettering NYC 
 Dr Steve Cohen, Pentagon and Walter Reed 
 Dr Brian Block, Maryland Spine Institute 

 
10C    PixarBio Clinical Advisory Board 
               : 7 of the 20 knee/hip society members in USA 
 
Nationally Recognized Ortho Surgeons & Anesthesiologists 

 Hoag Orthopedic Institute:  James Caillouette, MD 
 Mayo:  Mark Pagnano, MD 
 HSS:  Douglas Padgett, MD 
 Rush:  Scott Sporer, MD  
 Ortho Carolina:  Bryan Springer, MD 
 Andrews Institute:  Gregory Hickman, MD & Brandon Winchester, MD 
 Mayo:  via Kris Alden, MD 
 Univ of Indiana:   Michael Meneghini, MD 
 Carolina Med Ctr:  John Camp, MD 
 Florida Hospital:  Moeed Azam, MD 
 Trauma Orthopedic Surgeon, Chula Vista & San Diego: Anthony Sanzone, MD 
 Medical City Dallas Hospital: James Mueller, MD 
 St. Barnabas Hospital, Bronx, NY: Ajay Suman 

 
 



  29 

 
11    PixarBio NeuroRelease TM Conclusion 

 
PixarBio investment is in the CEO who invents, invests and commercializes better 
than anyone in his generation 
 
Since 2008, PixarBio CEO/CFO Frank Reynolds has out-performed hedge funds 
every year, creating over $800M in Market Cap, as investors continue to invest in 
Frank’s inventions. 
 
The typical CEO & CFO in Pharma owns less than 1% of the company shares so investors and 
management interests are rarely aligned.     
 
Frank Reynolds owns almost 70% of PixarBio and at almost 70% ownership investors and 
management goals are aligned.  
 
PIxarBio has been well funded since our inception.  As an entrepreneur funded investment we 
have been able to minimize cost of capital while maximizing the options for financing.   
 

 PAIN---The largest medical application in history 
 Since 1994,Frank Reynolds is the most inventive and time-tested CEO in Neuroscience 
 In 2008, Frank Reynolds first cured paralysis in non-human primates 
 In 2014, Frank Reynolds NeuroScaffold cured paralysis in humans 
 As a chronic pain patient Frank has been patenting pain treatments since 2007 

 
 
Frank Reynolds won “2013 & 2016 Boston Business Journal: Best Place to work”  
  
• Frank Reynolds has closed over $100mm since 2010  
• Less than $50mm to submit Two NDAs in 2018   
• Funds continue to flow into PixarBio with happy stakeholders  

o Reynolds R&D model (RSB) has produced PixarBio’s multiple optimized treatments 
ready for the clinic in less than 3 years  

• New Non-opiate platforms are a “societal mandate” of White House and The FDA  
o PixarBio’s R&D  has created and PixarBio Legal team has captured the potential to 

dominate non-opiate treatment options for decades  
o We’re the first platform in decades or centuries with the potential to replace morphine 

in the clinic and Novocain in the dental chair 
o Frank Reynolds created $520mm in Market cap at InVivo Therapeutics (NASD: NVIV) 

from founding until his retirement, leaving with $420mm mkt. cap  
• Frank achieved NASDAQ up-listing approval for NVIV in July 2013 

o Based on investment banker meetings, PixarBio expects to be a publicly traded 
company in Q3 2016.  
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11A   SOCIETY’S OPIOID/OPIATE NIGHTMARE PERFECT STORM & PERFECT 
OPPORTUNITY 
 
10% Of Opioid /Opiate users are predisposed to addiction so 7,000,000 surgeries per year 
increase the risk of addiction to society 
 
 
With 70,000,000 surgeries per year in the USA, and another 40,000,000 seeking pain treatment, 
black label from the FDA, CDC Opiate warnings, and the USA suffering a Opioid/Opiate 
addiction crisis the timing in the market could not be better for PixarBio to launch a new drug that 
is morphine strength, Non addictive for pain that eliminates rebound pain from the clinic 
 
 
Pacira cannot manufacturing more than 1,000,000 units per year. 
 

 Pacira’s Revenue for Exparel has plateaued in Q2 2016, and we believe that the low 3% 
market penetration achieved after 4 years in a market with zero competitors reflects 
Exparel’s poor product performance. 

 

 PixarBio has short human studies taking just 30 days, we expect for FDA approval in 
2018.  505(b)(2) FDA a pathway combines Phases I & II 

 
 We’ve observed Pacira achieve a $2.5B market cap on just $200mm in revenue so we 

expect, based on market comparable, that we will exceed the success of Pacira through 
superior product development and PixarBio’s more sophisticated executive suite. 

 

 Our first production facility will manufacture 10,000,000 per year, where Pacira has 
manufacturing limitations and they can only manufacturing 1,000,000 units per year 

 

 PixarBio will meet the market demand during product roll out and we expect 90%+ brand 
awareness by 2019, with market adoption rate above 30% 

 
  



 

 

 

 

 

 

PixarBio Deck 
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Morphine Strength, Non-Opiate/Non-Opioid
Non Addictive Pain Treatment

Pain Treatment Portfolio:  4-8 Hours, 3-Days, 7-Days, 14-Days, 90-Days
August 2016

www.pixarbio.com
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Forward Looking Statement

This presentation includes "forward-looking statements" within the meaning of the safe harbor 
provisions of the United States Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These statements are 
based upon the current beliefs and expectations of PixarBio’s management and are subject to 
significant risks and uncertainties. If underlying assumptions prove inaccurate or risks or uncertainties 
materialize, actual results may differ materially from those set forth in the forward-looking statements. 

Risks and uncertainties include but are not limited to, general industry conditions and competition; 
general economic factors, including interest rate and currency exchange rate fluctuations; the impact of 
Biotech and medical device industry regulation and health care legislation in the United States and 
internationally; global trends on cost containment; technological advances, new products and patents 
attained by competitors; challenges inherent in new product development, including obtaining regulatory 
approval; PixarBio’s ability to accurately predict future market conditions; manufacturing difficulties or 
delays; financial instability of international economies and sovereign risk; dependence on the 
effectiveness of PixarBio’s patents and other protections for innovative products; and the exposure to 
litigation, including patent litigation, and/or regulatory actions. 

PixarBio Corp undertakes no obligation to publicly update any forward-looking statement, whether as a 
result of new information, future events or otherwise. Additional factors that could cause results to differ 
materially from those described in the forward-looking statements can be obtained through PixarBio’s 
Corp HQ at 200 Boston Ave, Suite 1875 in Medford, MA 02155.  PixarBio Corp is a private corporation. 

The information contained in this website was current as of the date presented. The company assumes 
no duty to update the information to reflect subsequent developments. Consequently, the company will 
not update the information contained in the website and investors should not rely upon the information 
as current or accurate after the presentation date. 

Non‐Opiate: Non Addictive Pain Relief



www.pixarbio.comNon‐Opiate: Non Addictive Pain Relief

“If we go to doctors right now and say ‘Don’t overprescribe’ without providing some 
mechanisms for people in these communities to deal with the pain that they have or 
the issues that they have, then we’re not going to solve the problem, because the pain 
is real, the mental illness is real,” – President Obama

Senate passes bill to combat 
heroin, painkiller abuse

Obama Pushes For More 
Treatment for Opioid Addiction

New Hampshire Sens. Kelly Ayotte (R‐N.H.) (L) 
and Jeanne Shaheen (D‐N.H.) (R) are major 
backers of opioid abuse legislation passed by 
the Senate on Monday. 
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Non-Opiate, Non-Addictive Pain Relief

Confidentialwww.pixarbio.com

Defeating Rebound Pain – EXPAREL & Std of Care Nerve Blocks Exacerbate Problem 

15 Hrs. 
Median Time to
Rescue Opioids

72% Require 
Opioid Rescue 

by 25 Hrs. Post Op

0-8 Hours:   Less Pain
8-16 Hours:  No Difference
16-24 Hours: Worse Pain

25+ Hours = No Difference

NeuroReleaseTM      lasts for up to 14‐Days!

Rebound Pain Rebound Pain WorsensEXPAREL

Day 0:  
Procedure

Post Op:  
1-24 Hours Post Op:  Days 2 - 3

*Single Shot NB

Rebound Pain WorsensRebound Pain Nerve 
Block*

70,000,000+ Annual Surgeries in USA; 
42,000,000+ have more than 3 days Post‐op Pain

14 Days

Exparel Surgical Patients
• 74% report moderate to extreme 

pain after discharge
• 99% discharged with opioid 

prescription
• 44% taking prescription within one 

week of surgery > chance of long‐
term use

Rebound Pain= Sudden onset of 
pain after Bupivacaine/Exparel 
suddenly stops working
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2016 Current Non‐Opioid/Non‐Opiates Options or Under Review by the FDA
Supplier Product 

Name
Bupivacaince Has 
Neurotoxic issues

Active 
Pharmaceutical

Ingredient

Product 
Development

Status

Efficacious
Duration

FDA 
Approval
Expected

Generic Marcaine Bupivacaine Approved/Market Up to 8‐24 hours On The Market 

Generic Bupivacaine/
Ropivacaine

Bupivacaine/
Ropivacaine

Approved/Market Up to 8‐18 hours On The Market

Pacira Exparel NB Bupivacaine Approved/Market Up to 1‐3 days 2018

Heron HTX‐011 Bupivacaine/Meloxicam Phase II Up to 4 days 2018

Durect Posimir Bupivacaine Phase I Up to 2‐3 days 2018

PixarBio NeuroRelease Carbamazepine Pre‐Clinical 505B2 14 Days
7 Days
3‐Days
90 Days 

2018
2019
2020
2020

Other non-opiate options for management of post-op pain
• “Cocktails” and multimodal approaches                                              Anti-epileptics (e.g. Lyrica)
• NSAIDs (e.g. Ibuprofen)                                                                     Exparel “Local Anesthetic Systemic Toxicity Jun 2016

NeuroReleaseTM represents the only non‐opiate product to take on rebound pain

Clinic Based Addiction Problem: 
Eliminating Addiction from the clinic‐ Defeat Rebound Pain!
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Shoulder Surgery Animation

(Small Nerve Fiber Clinical Study)

NeuroReleaseTM blocks nociceptive and neuropathic pain signals arising from 
temperature and pressure stimuli without affecting motor function

Confidential 11
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NeuroReleaseTM blocks nociceptive and neuropathic pain signals arising from 
temperature and pressure stimuli without affecting motor function

Total Knee Arthroplasty Animation
(Large Nerve Fiber Clinical Study)

Confidential 10
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We control particle size, drug payload and release rate
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Non‐Opiate: Non Addictive Pain Relief
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Preclinical Efficacy Study: Sciatic Nerve Block Comparison with Exparel

3 Days 7 Days 14 Days
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Statistical significance determined by unpaired, parametric t-test reported and further confirmed by one-way ANOVA

(All p-values less than <0.0001) 

Sciatic 
Nerve CCI

Chronic constriction injury of the sciatic nerve is gold 
standard and most widely cited model
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NeuroRelease: Preclinical Efficacy
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Five 9’s Reliability on 3 Day, 7 Day and 14 Day Pain Treatments
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In-House Vivarium 
Maximizes R&D and 

Product Iterations
Led by Neuroscience 

Director with almost 30 
years of Pre-clinical 

neurological Vivarium work.

Non‐Opiate: Non Addictive Pain Relief



www.pixarbio.com

NeuroReleaseTM vs. Exparel (Liposomal bupivacaine – FDA approved 72-hours post-op soft tissue pain)

Material Characteristic NeuroRelease Exparel

Nerve block impacts motor 

Nerve block impacts sensory  

Rate of release – controlled and tunable 

Ability to release for >1 week 

Diffusion-based release kinetics  

Degradation-based release kinetics 

Biodegradable (no residual) 

Clearance by biodegradation 

Clearance by reticuloendothelial system (RES)  

Stability 

Cold Chain shipping and storage 

Stored as a powder at room temperature 

No changes to standard of care 

Rapid onset of efficacy 

NeuroRelease vs. Exparel

Confidential 12

‐2018 Real World Competition
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FDA Study Face-Off: NeuroRelease vs. Bupivacaine

Material Characteristic NeuroRelease Bupivacaine

Sodium channel blockade  

Membrane potential stabilization 

Potency High Low

Inherent neurotoxicity 

Inherent myotoxicity 

Nerve block impacts motor- effect Walking and moving 

Nerve block impacts discriminative touch 

Nerve block impacts sensory  

Nerve block impacts proprioception 

Nerve block selectively inhibits nociception 

Duration and magnitude of block is controllable and tunable 

Nerve block duration 14 days 8-18 Hours

NeuroRelease vs. Bupivacaine

Confidential 20
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Forecasted Acute Pain Product Pipeline: 95%+ confident will work in the clinic

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Large Nerve Knee - Femoral 
Nerve Block (NR-14 day) 

Large Nerve Knee - Femoral 
Nerve Block (NR-7 day)

Small Nerve Shoulder –
Brachial Plexus Block 

(NR-14 day)

Small Nerve Shoulder –
Brachial Plexus Block 

(NR-7 day)

“Sprinkle-On”
Nerve Block 

Soft tissue – Infiltration
(NR-3 day)

NeuroRelease: Regulatory Timelines

Confidential 18

Preclinical/INDPreclinical/IND NDANDA Approved/MarketedApproved/MarketedClinicalClinical

Preclinical/INDPreclinical/IND NDANDA Approved/MarketedApproved/MarketedClinicalClinical

Preclinical/INDPreclinical/IND NDANDA
Approved/ 
Marketed
Approved/ 
Marketed

ClinicalClinical

Preclinical/INDPreclinical/IND NDANDA Approved/MarketedApproved/MarketedClinicalClinical

Preclinical/INDPreclinical/IND NDANDA Approved/MarketedApproved/MarketedClinicalClinical
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2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Trigeminal 
Neuralgia*

Sciatic
Neuralgia

Facet Joint
Back Pain

Diabetic 
Neuropathy

Cancer 
Associated Pain

Forecasted Chronic Pain Product Pipeline: 95%+ confident will work in the clinic

NeuroRelease: Regulatory Timelines

* PixarBio filed for Orphan Designation of NeuroReleaseTM 90‐day to treat Trigeminal Neuralgia in 2015

Confidential 19

Preclinical/INDPreclinical/IND NDANDA Approved/MarketedApproved/MarketedClinicalClinical

Preclinical/INDPreclinical/IND NDANDA Approved/MarketedApproved/MarketedClinicalClinical

Preclinical/INDPreclinical/IND NDANDA Approved/MarketedApproved/MarketedClinicalClinical

Preclinical/INDPreclinical/IND NDANDA Approved/MarketedApproved/MarketedClinicalClinical

Preclinical/INDPreclinical/IND NDANDA Approved/ MarketedApproved/ MarketedClinicalClinical
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PixarBio cGMP Clean Room Manufacturing Process Flow

Raw materials 
release (QC)

Dispersant and 
Continuous Phase 

Preparation
Emulsification

Solvent extraction 
and evaporation

Purification by 
tangential flow 

filtration

Fill‐Finish

Lyophilization
Terminal E‐beam 

sterilization
Final product 
release (QC)

Packaging

NeuroRelease: cGMP Manufacturing 

14
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2017 Clinical Study Design – Combined Phase I & II Small Nerve Fiber Study
Post-Operative Shoulder Pain

Brachial Plexus Block with NeuroRelease for Post-Operative Pain: Shoulder Surgery

Phase I + II: Safety, Pharmacodynamics, Dose Ranging, Efficacy (double blinded)

Arms # of Patients Outcomes

Control (Saline) 20

1) Opiate reduction 

2) ANA Pain Scores through Day 14 post-op 

3) Sensory

4) Motor function 

5) Side effects observed for 30 days post-op

Marcaine 20

NR (Dose 1) 20

NR (Dose 2) 20

NR (Dose 3) 20

NR (Dose 1) + Marcaine 20

NR (Dose 2) + Marcaine 20

NR (Dose 3) + Marcaine 20

NeuroRelease: Clinical Studies

Confidential 22

160 Patients
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2017 Clinical Study Design – Phase III  Small Nerve Fiber
Post-Operative Shoulder Pain

Brachial Plexus Block with NeuroRelease for Post-Operative Pain: Shoulder Surgery

Phase III: Safety, Pharmacokinetics, Efficacy (double blinded)

Arms Endpoint # of Patients Outcomes

Control (Saline) Safety / Efficacy 20
Efficacy:

1) Opiate reduction

2) ANA Pain Scores through Day 14 post-op

3) Sensory

4) Motor function

Pharmacokinetics: 

1) Blood plasma concentration 

2) Half-life

Marcaine Safety / Efficacy 20

NR Safety / Efficacy 20

NR + Marcaine Safety / Efficacy 20

NR Pharmacokinetics 20

NeuroRelease: Clinical Studies

Confidential 22

100 Patients
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2017 Clinical Study Design – Combined Phase I & II Large Nerve Fiber Study
Post-Operative Knee Pain 

Femoral and Distal Sciatic Nerve Block with NeuroRelease for Post-Operative Pain: Total Knee Arthroplasty

Phase I + II: Safety, Pharmacodynamics, Dose Ranging, Efficacy (double blinded)

Arms (Injection 1) Arms (Injection 2) # of Patients Outcomes

Control (Saline) Control (Saline) 20

1) Opiate reduction 

2) ANA Pain Scores through Day 14 post-op 

3) Sensory

4) Motor function 

5) Side effects observed for 30 days post-op

Marcaine Saline 20

NR (Dose 1) NR (Dose 1) 20

NR (Dose 2) NR (Dose 2) 20

NR (Dose 3) NR (Dose 3) 20

NR (Dose 1) + Marcaine NR (Dose 1) 20

NR (Dose 2) + Marcaine NR (Dose 2) 20

NR (Dose 3) + Marcaine NR (Dose 3) 20

NeuroRelease: Clinical Studies

Confidential 21

*Note:  Injection 1 refers to the injection administered to the femoral nerve

Injection 2 refers to the injection administered to the distal sciatic nerve

160 Patients
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2017 Clinical Study Design – Phase III  Large Nerve Fiber
Post-Operative Knee Pain             100 Patients

Femoral and Distal Sciatic Nerve Block with NeuroRelease for Post-Operative Pain: Total Knee Arthroplasty

NeuroRelease: Clinical Studies

Confidential 21

Phase III: Safety, Pharmacokinetics, Efficacy (double blinded)

Arms (Injection 1) Arms (Injection 2) Endpoint # of Patients Outcomes

Control (Saline) Control (Saline) Safety / Efficacy 20
Efficacy:

1) Opiate reduction

2) ANA Pain Scores through Day 14 post-op

3) Sensory

4) Motor function

Pharmacokinetics: 

1) Blood plasma concentration 

2) Half-life

Marcaine Saline Safety / Efficacy 20

NR NR Safety / Efficacy 20

NR + Marcaine NR Safety / Efficacy 20

NR NR Pharmacokinetics 20

*Note:  Injection 1 refers to the injection administered to the femoral nerve

Injection 2 refers to the injection administered to the distal sciatic nerve
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“Picket Fence” Patents

Type of Claim Description of Claims

Composition Fabrication methods

Composition Biodegradable polymer or copolymer selection

Composition Anticonvulsant selection

Composition Control over particle size distribution

Composition Control over anticonvulsant loading

Kinetics
Ability to release less than 60% of the anticonvulsant for times spanning 
3 hours to 12 months

Duration of efficacy
Ability to maintain delivery of a therapeutically effective dose of the 
anticonvulsant for durations spanning 3 hours to 12 months

Methods of use
Utility in the treatment of a multitude of pain indications where peripheral 
nerve blocks are possible

• Provisional Patent Application Filed in 2014 with patent expiration beginning in 2034

• Nonprovisional US and Patent Cooperation Treaty (PCT) applications filed in 2015

• Additional provisional patent applications filed in 2016 to expand pain portfolio

Confidential 15
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Non‐Opiate: Non Addictive Pain Relief

TOP 15 NON‐OPIOID, NON‐ADDICTIVE POST‐OP 

OPPORTUNITIES ‐ PROCEDURES/SURGERIES

% Responders want 

a Non‐Opioid 3‐day 14‐day  Total Procedures   Total Dollarized  14‐Day Dollarized

A B C  D   E  F

Anesthesia‐nerve blocks/injections (Knee) 95% 30% 35% 4,502,370                   1,425,000,105$       473,812,535$         

Anesthesia‐nerve blocks/injections (Shoulder) 95% 33% 33% 2,251,185                   712,500,053$          225,625,017$         

Spine Surgery  81% 0% 100% 1,189,624                   376,515,996$          304,977,957$         

Fracture Repair  80% 0% 82% 995,000                      314,917,500$          207,475,059$         

Anesthesia‐nerve blocks/injections (Hip) 85% 40% 33% 2,251,185                   712,500,053$          201,875,015$         

Knee Replacement 90% 0% 73% 929,000                      294,028,500$          194,058,810$         

C‐Section Delivery 90% 20% 40% 1,300,000                   411,450,000$          148,122,000$         

Injection‐paravertebral facet joint‐w/wo ultrasound   60% 27% 40% 1,026,856                   324,999,924$          77,999,982$           

Shoulder Arthroscopy 65% 7% 53% 708,000                      224,082,000$          77,681,760$           

Hip Replacement, Total 80% 0% 71% 332,000                      105,078,000$          60,044,571$           

Hysterectomy 90% 11% 44% 400,000                      126,600,000$          50,640,000$           

Rotator Cuff Tear Repair 75% 0% 69% 272,148                      86,134,842$            44,413,278$           

Amputation 100% 15% 50% 247,000                      78,175,500$            39,087,750$           

Hip Nailing for Hip Fracture 55% 0% 69% 307,100                      97,197,150$            37,009,684$           

Ligament Reconstruction – ACL, MCL, PCL 70% 0% 67% 250,000                      79,125,000$            36,925,000$           

Averages/Total Dollars 81% 12% 57% 16,961,468                 5,368,304,622$       2,179,748,417$     

Top 15 Hospital Surgeries: Non‐Opiate Post‐Op Opportunities: $2.18 Billion Annually 

…On average, over 80% of clinicians desire a morphine strength, non‐addictive post‐surgical pain treatment (Column A), of which nearly 60% 
prefer a 14‐day timeframe for such a pain treatment (Column C)

…On average, only 12% of the same clinicians prefer a 3‐day timeframe for such a pain treatment (Column B)

…For 11 of the Top 15 surgeries/procedures, the 3‐Day timeframe was preferred at a percentage of 20% or less, 7 surgeries/procedures at 
0% preferred (Column C)
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PixarBio 10 Year Financial Forecast
Assumptions:
• Prime Focus on Large Nerve Block and Small Nerve Block thru the FDA
• In-house GMP Manufacturing for 2 products in Clinical studies in 2017
• NeuroRelease Portfolio Expansion- 7-Days, 3- Days, and 90-days in pipeline 
• Price Point:  PixarBio current reimbursement rate of Exparel which is $316.50/vial
• Forecasted units sold is conservative, based on the only market comparable, Exparel which was slowly adopted
• PixarBio expects Gross Margin to exceed 80%
• PixarBio expects Net Profit margin to exceed 40%
• First sales revenue are forecasted for early 2019, with a logical market adoption rate 
• PixarBio will employ over 500 people by the end of 2019

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Total 
Revenues $ - $ - $ - $80 $180 $400 $600 $900 $1,233 $1,688

COGS
$ - $ - $ - $13 $29 $64 $96 $144 $197 $270

EBITA
($18) ($37) ($51) ($8) $61 $236 $387 $625 $889 $1,253

Net 
Income ($18) ($37) ($51) ($8) $40 $154 $252 $406 $578 $814

Non‐Opiate: Non Addictive Pain Relief

in millions
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Non-Opiate, Non-Addictive Pain Relief

23Confidential

Financial Overview

• Current monthly cash burn of $675k

• Q4 2016E cash burn of $2.115mm

• $13.5mm in total capital raised

Use of Proceeds

Ownership as of June 30, 2016 Personnel 

Name Ownership %

Frank Reynolds 66.58%

Bob Langer 16.72%

Other Investors 16.70%

Total 100.0%

Function # of Employees

Executives 6

Controller 1

Commercial 2

Research & Development 31

Total 40

• Conduct Clinical Studies

• Acquire facilities, machinery, and additional 

personnel  to scale-up and build out processes 

and cGMP production capabilities
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Price to Investors Selling Commissions 

and Discounts (1)(3)

Proceeds to Company 

or Other Persons (2)(3)

Price per Share (1) $2.00 $0.20 $18,000,000

Minimum Subscription 

(4)

$100,000 $10,000 $90,000

Seven Year Warrant 4.50 N/A 45,000,0000

Oversubscription limit $30,000,000 $3,000,000 $27,000,000

 We are offering up to 10,000,000 Shares of Common Stock (the “Shares”) in the 
Company at the price of $2.00 per Share (i.e., up to $20,000,000) only to accredited 
investors (“you”, “your”, or the “Investor(s)”) on a “best efforts” basis in 
accordance with the terms of our Confidential Private Placement Memorandum (the 
“Memorandum”):  

 Each share purchased will receive a seven year warrant to purchase one share at 
$4.50, see Exhibit D Warrant agreement for warrants terms.  

 Management will have the authority to issue shares if the offering is oversubscribed 
up to an additional 5,000,000 shares at $2.00.

Private Placement August 2016:  $2.00/Sh. Plus a 7 year warrant $4.50

Pre‐Money $175,000,000; on 87,500,000 shares
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Type and 

Class of 

Security

Number 

Issued Prior 

to Offering

Beneficial 

Ownership 

Prior to 

Offering 

(1)(2)

Number 

Issued After 

Offering 

(3)(4)

Beneficial 

Ownership 

After Offering 

(1)(2)(3)(4)

Number 

Issued Fully 

Diluted If 

Issued Stock 

Options are 

Exercised 

(3)(4)

Beneficial 

Ownership 

Fully Diluted 

If Issued 

Stock Options 

Are Exercised 

(1)(2)(3)(4)

Current 

Common 

Issued

69,443,144 100.00% 69,443,144 87.41% 87,500,000 89.74%

Offering New 

Common 

Shares (3)

0 0.00% 10,000,000 12.59% 10,000,000 10.26%

TOTALS 69,443,144 100.00% 79,443,144 100.00% 97,500,000 100.00%

FOOTNOTES:
(1) We have adopted an employee incentive plan and award stock and/or stock options to our management and personnel in accordance with 

such plan.  Pursuant to our current incentive plan, up to 25,000,000 Shares or stock options may be issued to Company employees, personnel, 
advisors, and/or our management on terms to be determined by our Board of Directors. Presently the policy of the Board is to issue Shares and stock 
options that vest over a four (4) year period at an exercise or strike price of $1.45 per Share. In the event such Shares and/or options are issued and/or 
exercised, such will have a material dilutive effect upon your ownership in the Company (See “Dilution”).

(2) 12,765,759 Stock Options and 5,291,099 Restricted Stocks have been issued out of the 25,000,000 Share-Based Equity Pool, leaving 6,943,142 
available.

(3) Subsequent to the date of this Memorandum, we may seek capital on terms that may be different from the terms set forth herein. Such 
issuance of new equity and/or debt securities by the Company would, among other things, possibly have a material, dilutive effect upon your 
ownership in the Company (See “Dilution”).

(4) Presumes placement of all Shares offered through this Memorandum and the issuance of no additional stock options, shares, or other 
incentives. In reality, we expect for our current stock option incentive plan to continue. This Offering may close at any time prior to the placement of 
any such securities at any time for any or no reason.
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Frank Reynolds, CEO, CSO, CFO
• Co‐invented The NeuroScaffold, led invention from 
concept to the clinic

• Founded InVivo Therapeutics Corp (NVIV) COB, 
CEO & CFO until his retirement in Aug 2013. Took 
NVIV public in 2010. $520mm Mkt. Cap. in 2013

• 2013 & 2016 Best Company to work for Boston‐ BBJ
• 2013 CFO of Year BBJ, nominee
• Co‐inventor on 50+ patent applications
• 2011 David F Apple Award for SCI research 
• MIT‐Sloan; Wharton School.  Penn Engr., HBS, 
St Joe’s, Temple U, CHC, Rider U, Univ. Hong Kong S&T

Jason Criscione, PhD
Chief Technology Officer & Co‐Founder
• Co‐Inventor of  NeuroRelease System
• “2014 & 2015 PixarBio “CoInventor of the Year”
• Yale PhD in Biomedical Engineering.
• Expert in biomaterials design and fabrication
• Expert in polymeric particles, gels, immunotherapy
• Hypercube Scholar Award for Excellence in Chemistry
• Experienced Preclinical Translation

Mary Phelan, CPA, Controller
• 20 years accounting & reporting experience in compliance 
w/ SEC, GAAP, SOX regulations in pharma & medical 
technology industries

• Extensive experience in financial reporting, debt and equity 
financings, M&A

• Most recently Controller, Principal Accounting Officer & 
acting Principal Financial Officer, Mela Sciences (NASDAQ)

• Controller & Principal Accounting Officer at Alteon Inc.
• KPMG LLP manufacturing, retail & distribution audit practice

David Kaplan, Chief Commercial Officer
• 20 years experience designing and running nationally 
recognized hospital‐based sales teams focused in the 
areas of surgery, oncology and critical care.

• Extensive background bringing first‐in‐class therapies 
from Phase III to product launch, working at such 
innovative companies as Corixa, PDL BioPharma, Pacira.

• Former VP of Sales at Pacira Pharmaceuticals
• BS in Marketing from Arizona State University

Katrin Holzhaus, CAO & Co‐Founder
• 16 years working with CEO Frank Reynolds initially at Expand 
the Knowledge, then with InVivo Therapeutics Holdings Corp 
(NVIV), brings complimentary leadership skillsets to PXRB’s 
operations team & proven record of success.

• Leads PXRB Facilities and HR activities
• MBA and MS in MIS from Temple University, Master of Arts 
from Leipzig University, Germany.

Michael Lovett, PhD; Director, R&D
• 6+ yrs experience developing drug delivery formulation
• Prior research on applying biomaterials technology and 
formulation techniques to develop sustained release 
formulations of chronically administered therapeutics.

• PhD in biomedical engineering from Tufts University 
• Bachelor’s in chemical engineering from Univ. of Mass. Amherst
• Co‐authored 15 papers in peer‐reviewed journals and has 
several patent applications related to sustained drug delivery 
and his doctoral research on silk‐based vascular grafts and 
tissue constructs.

Steven Chartier, VP Regulatory Affairs
• 25+ regulatory submissions & approvals of novel drugs & 
devices in Oncology, Wound Care, Autoimmune, Anti‐
Infective & Cardiovascular diseases.

• Expert in building worldwide compliant Quality Systems
• Managed Regulatory, Quality, Manufacturing & Clinical 
departments at Biogen IDEC, Infraredx, Nucryst Pharma

• Program Management & Lab Research at Beth Israel 
Deaconess Medical Cntr & Dana Farber Cancer Institute.

• BA in Psychology, Saint Anselm College; RAC certification

Ken Stromsland, CIO/Investor Relations
• 20+ years experience as business leader in Financial 
Services – EVP at Citi, Managing Dir at TD Ameritrade

• Engineer at Johnson & Johnson
• MSE ‐Wharton School, U Penn Engineering
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Neel Mehta, MD
• Medical Director of Pain Medicine at the Weill‐
Cornell Pain Medicine Center, and New York 
Presbyterian Hospital

• Board‐certified in Anesthesia & Interventional Pain 
Medicine

• focuses on musculoskeletal pain of the back, neck, 
joints, neuropathic disorders, cancer pain.

• Fellowship in Interventional Pain Medicine in the 
Tri‐Institutional Pain Medicine Fellowship at New 
York Presbyterian‐Weill Cornell Medical Center, 
Hospital for Special Surgery and Memorial‐Sloan 
Kettering Cancer Center

• Medical Degree in 2005 from Tufts University 
School of Medicine in Boston, MA

Brian Block, MD, PhD
• Partner at Pain Medicine Specialists, PA
• President at Baltimore Spine Center. He is a 
specialist in treatment of chronic pain. 

• PhD and MD from Case Western Reserve 
University School of Medicine in Cleveland, OH. 

• Fellowship in Pain Management at Johns Hopkins. 
Joined faculty at Johns Hopkins working in the 
Blaustein Pain Center

• Engineering Degree from University of Michigan in 
Ann Arbor. 

Steven Cohen, MD
• Director of Pain Research at Walter Reed 
National Military Medical Center, and the 
Reserve Liaison to the U.S. Army Pain 
Management Consultant to the Surgeon 
General.

• Professor of Anesthesiology & Critical Care 
Medicine at the Johns Hopkins School of 
Medicine; Professor at the Uniformed Services 
University of Health Sciences in Bethesda, MD. 

• Director of Medical Education and Quality 
Improvement for the Pain Management Division 
at Johns Hopkins

Amer Khalil, MD
• Chief Spine Surgery UC Irvine
• Neurosurgery Spine Fellow at New England 
Baptist Hospital, Boston, MA

• Resident in Neurosurgery, Cleveland Clinic 
Foundation, Cleveland, OH

• Research Fellowship in Spinal Cord Injury, NVIV
• MD from University of Jordan Medical School

Amitabh Gulati, MD
• Director, Ambulatory Pain Management at 
Memorial Sloan Kettering Cancer Center

• Board certified in anesthesiology and pain 
medicine

• MD, Baylor College of Medicine 
• Fellowship at NewYork‐Presbyterian 
Hospital/Weill Cornell Medical Center; Memorial 
Sloan Kettering Cancer Center 

Robert S. Langer, ScD
• David H. Koch Institute Professor at MIT 
• 1,200+ articles, 800+ issued and pending patents 
worldwide. 

• Served as a member of the FDA’s Science Board 
1995‐2002 and as its Chairman from 1999‐2002.

• 220+ major awards incl. the U.S. National Medal 
of Science, the U.S. National Medal of Technology 
and Innovation, Charles Stark Draper Prize 
(considered engineering’s Nobel Prize), Priestley 
Medal (the highest award of the American 
Chemical Society)



www.pixarbio.comClinical Advisory Board: Ortho

Douglas Padgett, MD
• Knee Society & Hip Society
• Chief of Adult Reconstruction and Joint 
Replacement Division & Chief Emeritus of the Hip 
Service, Hospital for Special Surgery

• Authored over 100 orthopedic publications
• Focus on clinical outcomes, biomaterials research, 
robotic surgery & deep vein thrombosis prevention

• Fellowship:  Rush Presbyterian Medical Center, 
Adult Reconstructive Surgery of the Hip and Knee, 
Chicago, Illinois

• Residency: Hospital for Special Surgery, Orthopedic 
Surgery, New York

Bryan Springer, MD
• Knee Society & Hip Society
• 2014 Emerging Leader AAHKS 
• Generation Next:  Top 40 Leaders in Joint 
Replacement

• Authored over 75 orthopedic publications
• Fellowship Director, OrthoCarolina Hip & Knee 
Center

• Fellowship:  Adult Reconstruction of the Hip 
and Knee at Harvard School of Medicine

• Residency:  Mayo Clinic, Department of 
Orthopedic Surgery, Rochester, MN

Michael Meneghini, MD
• Knee Society & Hip Society
• Generation Next:  Top 40 Leaders in Joint 
Replacement

• Associate Professor and Director of Adult 
Extremity Fellowship:  Department of 
Orthopedic Surgery, Indiana University School 
of Medicine

• Specializes in adult hip and knee reconstruction
• Authored over 70 orthopedic research papers
• Fellowship:  Hip and Knee at Mayo Clinic, 
Rochester, MN

• Residency:   Orthopedic Surgery at Rush 
University Medical Center, Chicago, IL

Scott Sporer, MD
• Hip Society
• Assoc. Professor at Rush University Medical 
Center

• Board of Directors for The American Joint 
Replacement Registry and the American 
Association of Hip and Knee Surgeons

• Authored over 80 orthopedic publications
• Residency: Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center 
in Lebanon, NH & Connecticut Children’s Medical 
Center in Hartford

• Fellowship:  Adult Orthopedic Reconstruction at 
Rush University Medical Center, Chicago, IL



www.pixarbio.comClinical Advisory Board: Ortho

Anthony Sanzone, MD
• Trauma Orthopedic Surgeon, Chula 
Vista & San Diego, CA

• Fellow of the Am. Academy of Orthopedic Surgery
• Co‐founder of San Diego Orthopedic Trauma 
Fellowship

• Authored over 20 orthopedic publications
• Fellowship: Orthopedic Traumatology, Harborview 
Medical Center/Univ. of Washington Seattle, WA  

• Residency: Orthopedic Surgery, Boston University 
Medical Center Boston, MA

• Residency: General Surgery, Chicago Medical 
School

Kris Alden, MD, PhD
• Board‐Certified Orthopedic Surgeon 
specializing in Hip, Knee, & Shoulder 
Reconstruction

• Focuses on lower extremity reconstruction, 
incl. primary joint replacement, complex joint 
revision, limb salvage, knee osteotomy 

• Fellowship: Lower Extremity Joint 
Reconstruction, Mayo Clinic, Rochester, MN 

• Residency: Orthopedic Surgery, Johns Hopkins 
University

• MD/PhD, University of Illinois College of 
Medicine, Chicago

James Caillouette, MD
• Chief of Staff, Hoag Orthopedic 
Institute in Newport Beach, CA

• Chairman of the Newport Orthopedic 
Institute, a 20‐physician group practice.

• Involved in the research, design, development 
and commercialization of numerous 
orthopedic devices 

• Holds 11‐ US patents as co‐inventor for 
biomedical products and methods

• Fellowship:  Orthopedic Joint Reconstruction, 
University of California, Irvine

• Residency:  Orthopedic Surgery, University of 
California, Irvine

Mark Pagnano, MD
• Professor & Chair of Orthopedic 
Division at Mayo Clinic in Rochester, 
MN

• Focus on knee & hip replacements
• Member of Board of Directors of The Knee Society 
and of the American Academy of Orthopaedic
Surgeons

• Published in Journal of Bone & Joint Surgery
• MD from George Washington University School of 
Medicine in Washington, D.C.

• Residency in orthopedic surgery at Mayo Clinic. 
• Fellowship in knee reconstruction at Insall‐Scott‐
Kelly Institute for Orthopaedics and Sports 
Medicine, NYC
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Moeed Azam, MD
• Chief of Anesthesiology for Physicians’ 
Surgical Care Center with specialized 
skill in regional anesthesia procedures 
for ambulatory surgical patients of the 
Jewett Orthopedic Clinic

• Shareholder physician at US Anesthesia Partners, 
the nation’s leading provider of anesthesiology & 
pain management services with 2,000+ clinicians 
serving healthcare facilities in FL, TX, CO

• Served on Clinical Governance Board and Board of 
Directors of JLR Medical Group, a 200 clinician 
practice covering the Florida Hospital System

• Served as Director and Chief of Liver Transplant 
Anesthesiology at Florida Hospital

• Anesthesiology residency training at The Johns 
Hopkins Hospital; medical internship at University 
of Miami’s Jackson Memorial Hospital

Gregory Hickman, MD
• Anesthesiologist & Medical Director 
of the Andrews Institute Ambulatory 
Surgery Center, affiliated with the Andrews 
Institute for Orthopedics & Sports Medicine 
Gulf Breeze, FL 

• Clinical interests in ultrasound guided regional 
anesthesia for post‐operative analgesia and 
post‐operative pain management

• Board‐certified in Anesthesiology & Pain 
Medicine

• Co‐founder of ultrasound‐guided regional 
anesthesia education website, 
www.blockjocks.com

Brandon Winchester, MD
• Regional anesthesia fellowship director 
at the Andrews Institute for 
Orthopedics & Sports Medicine.

• Served as Assistant Professor of Anesthesiology at 
Duke University Medical Center & University of 
North Carolina

• Intern at Boston University Medical Center
• Residency in anesthesiology at Mass General 
Hospital & Duke University Medical Center

• Co‐founder of ultrasound‐guided regional 
anesthesia education website, 
www.blockjocks.com

James Mueller, MD
• Anesthesiologist affiliated with 
Medical City Dallas Hospital, Dallas, TX

• Board certified, specializing in Anesthesiology
• In practice for more than 25 years
• MD from Medical University of South Carolina 
College of Medicine

• Fellowship at Medical College of Virginia Hospital
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John Camp, MD
• Chairman of the Department of 
Anesthesiology at Carolinas 
Medical Center, one of the top five 
largest hospital systems in the nation. 

• Significant experience in regional 
anesthesia, managing one of the largest 
regional anesthesia programs in the nation.

• 30+ publications and presentations focused 
on pain management 

• MD from Jefferson Medical College 
Philadelphia, PA

• Anesthesiology residency at Wilford Hall 
Medical Center in San Antonio, TX

Ajay Suman, MD
• Medical Director of Pain Management at 
St. Barnabas Hospital in the Bronx, NY. 

• Intense fellowship training at Texas Tech University’s 
Pain Management Department

• Board‐certified by the American Board of 
Anesthesiology in Anesthesiology and Pain Medicine.

• In previous roles at Tripler Army Medical Center, he 
helped create the interdisciplinary pain department, 
working with active duty soldiers being air evacuated 
directly from Afghanistan and Iraq. 

• Extensive experience treating patients ranging from 
chronic lower back pain to severe neuropathic pain 
syndromes from the trauma of war with Spinal Cord 
Stimulation.

• Worked on Capitol Hill on Healthcare Policy through 
Boston Scientific’s Healthcare Policy Fellowship

• Served as the Hawaii State President of ASIPP
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Frank Reynolds, CEO & Chairman of the Board
• Founded InVivo Therapeutics Corp (NVIV) 
Chairman of Board, CEO and CFO until his 
retirement in Aug 2013. Took NVIV public in 
2010.  $520mm Mkt. Cap. in 2013

• 2013 & 2016 Best Company to work for BBJ
• Co‐inventor on 50+ patent applications
• 2011 David F Apple Award for SCI research 
• MIT‐Sloan; Wharton School.  Penn Engr., HBS, St Joe’s, 
Temple U, CHC, Rider U

David Cass, Independent Board Member
Chief Information Security Officer Cloud & 
SaaS Operational Services at IBM
• Global responsibility for all aspects of security 
practices, processes, and policies across IBM 
Cloud SaaS

• Former Elsevier SVP & Chief Information Security 
Officer leading global legal, risk and security team 
providing data protection, privacy, security, & risk 
management guidance

• As Sr Director of Information Security Risk and 
Governance for Freddie Mac, rebuilt the risk and 
governance function 

• As VP of Risk Management for JPMorgan Chase, 
was responsible for providing  assessment of risk 
management state, contributing to future 
direction of risk management, continuity & 
disaster recovery.

• MSE from U of Pennsylvania; MBA from MIT. 

Katrin Holzhaus, CAO & Board Member
• 20+ years of experience as entrepreneur & 
leader in operations, development, global 
marketing. 

• Worked w cofounder Frank Reynolds for 15+ years 
initially at Expand the Knowledge, then with InVivo 
Therapeutics Holdings Corp (NVIV); brings 
complimentary leadership skillsets to PixarBio’s 
operations team and a proven record of success.

• MBA and MS in MIS ‐Temple University, MA ‐ Leipzig 
University, Germany.

Derek Bridges, Independent Board 
Member; President & CEO of Next Level 
Alignment
• Extensive experience with regulatory filing, 
bidding and reimbursement with the Centers 
for Medicare and Medicaid (CMS) & Patient 
Protection and Affordable Care Act (PPACA).  

• Served as a senior executive for Anthem, 
Aetna and Delta Dental, developing growth 
strategies to double revenue/profitability in 
$100MM ‐ $1B+ organizations.  

• MBA from U of Kansas; MSE in Technology 
Management from U of Pennsylvania’s 
Wharton School

Laura B. Morse, Independent Board Member
• Founder, Entrepreneurship Ventures, a start‐up 
consulting & coaching practice 

• Former Human Capital Partner at Atlas Venture, largest 
transatlantic early stage technology VC firm 

• Specializes in human capital strategies including 
recruitment, development, reward systems

• S.W.I.F.T. sc Brussels, global financial telecom 
consortium, led worldwide recruiting & expatriate svcs

• Frequent speaker around Europe, Solvay (Belgium), 
Harvard Business School, and MIT/Sloan.
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